
 

 
 

Table of Contents 
  

UNITED STATES 
  

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION 
Washington, D.C. 20549 

  
  

Form 10-Q 
  
[ X ]   QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 
  
For the quarterly period ended April 26, 2015 

or 
  

[    ]   TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934 
  
For the transition period from ___________________________________ to ________________________________________ 
  
Commission File Number: 1-2402  
  

HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter) 

  

  

  
(507) 437-5611 

(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code) 
  

None 
(Former name, former address and former fiscal year, if changed since last report) 

  
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to 
such filing requirements for the past 90 days.                                                           X   YES            NO 
  
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its corporate Web site, if any, every Interactive Data File 
required to be submitted and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the 
registrant was required to submit and post such files).            X   YES            NO 
  
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting company.  
See the definitions of “large accelerated filer,” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reporting company” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act. 

  
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act).       Yes   X  No 
  
Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the issuer’s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date. 
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Section 1: 10-Q (10-Q) 

Delaware 
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization) 

41-0319970 
(I.R.S. Employer Identification No.) 

1 Hormel Place 
Austin, Minnesota 

(Address of principal executive offices) 
55912-3680 
(Zip Code) 

Large accelerated filer  X  Accelerated filer     
Non-accelerated filer         (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company      

Class Outstanding at May 31, 2015 
Common Stock $.0293 par value 264,275,076 
Common Stock Non-Voting $.01 par value -0- 
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PART I – FINANCIAL INFORMATION 
  
Item 1.  Financial Statements 
  

HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 

  

PART I - FINANCIAL INFORMATION  
    
Item 1. Financial Statements  

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION – April 26, 2015 and October 26, 2014  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS – Three and Six Months Ended April 26, 2015 and April 27, 2014  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME – Three and Six Months Ended April 26, 2015 and April 27, 2014  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT – Twelve Months Ended October 26, 2014 and Six 

Months Ended April 26, 2015  
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS – Six Months Ended April 26, 2015 and April 27, 2014  
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

    
Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations  

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES  
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS  

Overview  
Consolidated Results  
Segment Results  
Related Party Transactions  

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES  
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS  

    
Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk  
    
Item 4. Controls and Procedures  
    
PART II - OTHER INFORMATION  
    
Item 1. Legal Proceedings  
    
Item 1A. Risk Factors  
    
Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds  
    
Item 6. Exhibits  
    
SIGNATURES  

 
April 26, 

  
October 26,  

2015 
  

2014  
(Unaudited) 

  

ASSETS 
  
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 624,395 $ 334,174 
Accounts receivable 578,726 609,526 
Inventories 963,481 1,054,552 
Income taxes receivable 28,739 25,678 
Deferred income taxes 86,853 86,853 
Prepaid expenses 14,546 15,250 
Other current assets 5,691 6,738 

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 2,302,431 2,132,771 
            



  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION 

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts) 
  

            
GOODWILL 1,228,933 1,226,406 
            
OTHER INTANGIBLES 550,854 554,890 
            
PENSION ASSETS 139,457 130,284 
            
INVESTMENTS IN AND RECEIVABLES FROM AFFILIATES 264,054 264,451 
            
OTHER ASSETS 147,201 145,050 
            
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Land 61,426 61,809 
Buildings 807,308 803,722 
Equipment 1,652,403 1,597,044 
Construction in progress 83,382 119,657 

2,604,519 2,582,232 
Less allowance for depreciation (1,614,451) (1,580,465) 

990,068 1,001,767 
            
TOTAL ASSETS $ 5,622,998 $ 5,455,619 

 
April 26, October 26,  

2015 2014  
(Unaudited) 

            
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' INVESTMENT 

 

            
CURRENT LIABILITIES 

     

Accounts payable  $ 385,855 
 
 $ 484,042 

Accrued expenses 
 

63,619 
  

76,836 
Accrued workers compensation 

 
38,100 

  
35,406 

Accrued marketing expenses 
 

132,562 
  

89,561 
Employee related expenses 

 
177,699 

  
209,874 

Taxes payable 
 

5,792 
  

5,507 
Interest and dividends payable 

 
66,555 

  
53,466 

TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 

870,182 
  

954,692 
            
LONG-TERM DEBT—less current maturities 

 
250,000 

  
250,000 

            
PENSION AND POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

 
506,742 

  
502,693 

            
OTHER LONG-TERM LIABILITIES 

 
108,427 

  
112,176 

            
DEFERRED INCOME TAXES 

 
43,832 

  
24,002 

            
SHAREHOLDERS' INVESTMENT  

   

Preferred stock, par value $.01 a share— authorized 160,000,000 shares; issued—none 
   

Common stock, non-voting, par value $.01 a share—authorized 400,000,000 shares; issued—
none 

   

Common stock, par value $.0293 a share— authorized 800,000,000 shares; 
   

issued 264,173,415 shares April 26, 2015 
   

 
 

 
  

 



  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 

(in thousands, except per share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

  

  
See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

  

issued 263,613,201 shares October 26, 2014 
 

7,740 
  

7,724 
Additional paid-in capital 

 
6,879 

  
- 

Accumulated other comprehensive loss 
 

(199,757) 
  

(207,700) 
Retained earnings 

 
4,025,770 

  
3,805,654 

HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION SHAREHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT 
 

3,840,632 
  

3,605,678 
NONCONTROLLING INTEREST 

 
3,183 

  
6,378 

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT 
 

3,843,815 
  

3,612,056 
            
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT  $ 5,622,998 

 
 $ 5,455,619 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
 

April 26,  
2015 

April 27,  
2014 

April 26,  
2015 

April 27,  
2014 

                        
Net sales  $ 2,279,345  $ 2,244,866  $ 4,674,418  $ 4,487,538 
Cost of products sold 

 
1,819,789 

 
1,866,108 

 
3,770,257 3,710,138 

GROSS PROFIT 
 

459,556 
 

378,758 
 

904,161 777,400 
                        
Selling, general and administrative 

 
189,733 

 
165,785 

 
370,032 331,974 

                        
Equity in earnings of affiliates 

 
7,874 

 
3,583 

 
9,534 8,322 

                        
OPERATING INCOME 

 
277,697 

 
216,556 

 
543,663 453,748 

                        
Other income and expense: 

   

Interest and investment income (loss) 
 

1,117 
 

(306) 
 

2,266 867 
Interest expense 

 
(3,083) 

 
(3,093) 

 
(6,161) (6,187) 

                        
EARNINGS BEFORE INCOME TAXES 

 
275,731 

 
213,157 

 
539,768 448,428 

                        
Provision for income taxes 

 
95,296 

 
72,451 

 
186,903 153,264 

                        
NET EARNINGS 

 
180,435 

 
140,706 

 
352,865 295,164 

Less: Net earnings attributable to noncontrolling interest 
 

234 
 

616 
 

946 1,726 
NET EARNINGS ATTRIBUTABLE TO HORMEL FOODS 

CORPORATION 
  

 $ 
  

180,201 
  

 $ 
  

140,090 
  

 $ 
  

351,919 
  

 $ 
  

293,438 
                        
NET EARNINGS PER SHARE: 

BASIC  $ 0.68  $ 0.53  $ 1.33  $ 1.11 
DILUTED  $ 0.67  $ 0.52  $ 1.30  $ 1.09 

                        
WEIGHTED-AVERAGE SHARES OUTSTANDING: 

   

BASIC 264,028 263,926 263,852 263,839 
DILUTED 

 
270,444 

 
270,410 

 
270,253 270,317 

                        
DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER SHARE:  $ 0.25  $ 0.20  $ 0.50  $ 0.40 
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HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

 (in thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

  
  
  

  
  

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ INVESTMENT 

 (in thousands, except per share amounts) 
(Unaudited) 

  

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
                    
NET EARNINGS $ 180,435 $ 140,706 $ 352,865 $ 295,164 
Other comprehensive (loss) income, net of tax: 

Foreign currency translation (599) 651 178 (1,640) 
Pension and other benefits 1,905 988 3,802 2,007 
Deferred hedging (1,449) 6,964 3,557 6,492  

TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) INCOME (143) 8,603 7,537 6,859  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 180,292 149,309 360,402 302,023 

Less:  Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interest 206 551 935 1,689  
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO HORMEL 

FOODS CORPORATION $ 180,086 $ 148,758 $ 359,467 $ 300,334 

Hormel Foods Corporation Shareholders   
Accumulated 

Additional Other Non- Total 
Common Treasury Paid-in Retained Comprehensive controlling Shareholders’ 

Stock Stock Capital Earnings Income (Loss) Interest Investment 
                                        
Balance at October 27, 2013 $ 7,725 $ - $ - $ 3,452,529   $  (149,214 )   $  5,539 $ 3,316,579 
                                
Net earnings    602,677  3,349 606,026 
Other comprehensive loss     (58,486 ) (10 ) (58,496 ) 
Purchases of common stock  (58,937 )     (58,937 ) 
Stock-based compensation expense 1  14,392    14,393 
Exercise of stock options/nonvested shares 35  6,068    6,103 
Shares retired (37 ) 58,937 (20,460 ) (38,440 )   -  
Distribution to noncontrolling interest      (2,500 ) (2,500 ) 
Declared cash dividends – $.80 per share    (211,112 )   (211,112 ) 
Balance at October 26, 2014 $ 7,724 $ - $ - $ 3,805,654   $  (207,700 )   $  6,378 $ 3,612,056 
                                
Net earnings    351,919  946 352,865 
Other comprehensive income (loss)     7,548 (11 ) 7,537 
Stock-based compensation expense   12,549    12,549 
Exercise of stock options/nonvested shares 16  6,211    6,227 
Purchase of additional ownership from 

noncontrolling interest   (11,881 )  395 (2,549 ) (14,035 ) 
Distribution to noncontrolling interest      (1,581 ) (1,581 ) 

          



  
  

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
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HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

 (in thousands) 
(Unaudited) 

  

  
  

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 
  

Declared cash dividends – $.50 per share    (131,803 )   (131,803 ) 
Balance at April 26, 2015 $ 7,740 $ - $ 6,879 $ 4,025,770   $  (199,757 )   $  3,183 $ 3,843,815 

Six Months Ended 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
OPERATING ACTIVITIES   

Net earnings   $ 352,865   $ 295,164 
Adjustments to reconcile to net cash provided by operating activities:   

Depreciation 61,760 59,049 
Amortization of intangibles 3,967 4,635 
Equity in earnings of affiliates, net of dividends 487 1,702 
Provision for deferred income taxes 13,441 2,639 
Gain on property/equipment sales and plant facilities (5,129 ) (644 ) 
Non-cash investment activities (2,256 ) (582 ) 
Stock-based compensation expense 12,549 10,944 
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation (10,760 ) (10,038 ) 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquisitions:   
Decrease in accounts receivable 27,316 36,339 
Decrease (increase) in inventories 90,131 (82,840 ) 
Decrease in prepaid expenses and other current assets 17,714 9,284 
Increase in pension and post-retirement benefits 1,191 537 
Decrease in accounts payable and accrued expenses (118,875 ) (51,154 ) 
Other 1,336 - 

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 445,737 275,035 
                
INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Acquisitions of businesses/intangibles - (41,502 ) 
Purchases of property/equipment (54,984 ) (77,063 ) 
Proceeds from sales of property/equipment 11,050 6,231 
Decrease (increase) in investments, equity in affiliates, and other assets 5,379 (111 ) 

NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (38,555 ) (112,445 ) 
                
FINANCING ACTIVITIES   

Dividends paid on common stock (118,715 ) (97,594 ) 
Share repurchase - (15,126 ) 
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 5,999 5,546 
Excess tax benefit from stock-based compensation 10,760 10,038 
Payment to noncontrolling interest (11,702 ) - 
Distribution to noncontrolling interest (1,581 ) - 

NET CASH USED IN FINANCING ACTIVITIES (115,239 ) (97,136 ) 
                
EFFECT OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON CASH (1,722 ) (138 ) 
INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 290,221 65,316 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 334,174 434,014 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF QUARTER   $ 624,395   $ 499,330 
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HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

(Unaudited) 
  
NOTE A                                               GENERAL 
  
Basis of Presentation 
  
The accompanying unaudited consolidated financial statements of Hormel Foods Corporation (the Company) have been prepared in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles for interim financial information, and with the instructions to Form 10-Q and Rule 10-01 of Regulation 
S-X.  Accordingly, they do not include all of the information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete 
financial statements.  In the opinion of management, all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring adjustments) considered necessary for a fair 
presentation have been included.  Operating results for the interim period are not necessarily indicative of the results that may be expected for the 
full year.  The balance sheet at October 26, 2014, has been derived from the audited financial statements at that date but does not include all of the 
information and footnotes required by generally accepted accounting principles for complete financial statements.  For further information, refer to 
the consolidated financial statements and footnotes included in the Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 26, 
2014. 
  
Investments 
  
The Company maintains a rabbi trust to fund certain supplemental executive retirement plans and deferred income plans, which is included in other 
assets on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.  The securities held by the trust are classified as trading securities.  Therefore, 
unrealized gains and losses associated with these investments are included in the Company’s earnings.  Securities held by the trust generated gains 
of $1.5 million and $3.0 million for the second quarter and six months ended April 26, 2015, respectively, compared to gains of $0.9 million and $1.4 
million for the second quarter and six months ended April 27, 2014.  The Company has transitioned the majority of this portfolio to more fixed return 
investments to reduce the exposure to volatility in equity markets. 
  
Supplemental Cash Flow Information 
  
Non-cash investment activities presented on the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows generally consist of unrealized gains or losses on the 
Company’s rabbi trust, amortization of affordable housing investments, and amortization of bond financing costs.  The noted investments are 
included in other assets on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.  Changes in the value of these investments are included in the 
Company’s net earnings and are presented in the Consolidated Statements of Operations as either interest and investment income (loss) or interest 
expense, as appropriate. 
  
On March 16, 2015, the Company purchased the remaining 19.29% ownership interest in its Shanghai Hormel Foods Corporation joint venture from 
the minority partner Shanghai Shangshi Meat Products Co. Ltd., resulting in 100.0% ownership of that business at the end of the second quarter.  
The interest was purchased with $11.7 million in cash, along with the transfer of land use rights and buildings held by the joint venture.  The 
difference between the fair value of the consideration given and the reduction in the noncontrolling interest was recognized as an $11.9 million 
reduction in additional paid-in capital attributable to the Company.  The Company will continue to manufacture at the Shanghai facility by leasing 
the land use rights and buildings from the previous minority partner. 
  
Guarantees 
  
The Company enters into various agreements guaranteeing specified obligations of affiliated parties.  The Company’s guarantees either terminate in 
one year or remain in place until such time as the Company revokes the agreement.  The Company currently provides revocable standby letters of 
credit totaling $3.5 million to guarantee obligations that may arise under workers compensation claims of an affiliated party.  This potential 
obligation is not reflected in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. 
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New Accounting Pronouncements 
  
In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) updated the guidance within Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 
323, Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures.  The update provides guidance on accounting for investments by a reporting entity in flow-
through limited liability entities that manage or invest in affordable housing projects that qualify for the low-income housing tax credit.  The 
amendments modify the conditions that a reporting entity must meet to be eligible to use a method other than the equity or cost methods to account 
for qualified affordable housing project investments.  If the modified conditions are met, the amendments permit an entity to make an accounting 
policy election to amortize the initial cost of the investment in proportion to the amount of tax credits and other tax benefits received and recognize 
the net investment performance in the income statement as a component of income tax expense (benefit). Additionally, the amendments introduce 
new recurring disclosures about all investments in qualified affordable housing projects irrespective of the method used to account for the 
investments.  The updated guidance is to be applied retrospectively, and is effective for fiscal years, and interim periods within those years, 
beginning after December 15, 2014, with early adoption permitted.  The Company expects to adopt the new provisions of this accounting standard at 

 



the beginning of fiscal year 2016, and adoption is not expected to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 
  
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASC 606, Revenue from Contracts with Customers.  This topic converges the guidance within U.S. generally 
accepted accounting principles and international financial reporting standards and supersedes ASC 605, Revenue Recognition.  The new standard 
requires companies to recognize revenue to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the consideration to which 
the company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.  The new standard will also result in enhanced disclosures about 
revenue, provide guidance for transactions that were not previously addressed comprehensively, and improve guidance for multiple-element 
arrangements.  The new guidance is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016, including interim reporting periods 
within that reporting period, and early application is not permitted.  Accordingly, the Company plans to adopt the provisions of this new accounting 
standard at the beginning of fiscal year 2018, and is currently assessing the impact on its consolidated financial statements. 
  
In April 2015, the FASB updated the guidance within ASC 835, Interest.  The update provides guidance on simplifying the presentation of debt 
issuance cost.  The amendments require debt issuance costs related to a recognized debt liability be presented in the balance sheet as a direct 
deduction from the carrying amount of that debt liability.  The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and 
interim periods within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted.  The Company expects to adopt the new provisions of this accounting 
standard at the beginning of fiscal year 2017, and is currently assessing the impact on its consolidated financial statements. 
  
In April 2015, the FASB updated the guidance within ASC 715, Compensation — Retirement Benefits.  The update provides guidance on 
simplifying the measurement date for defined benefit plan assets and obligations.  The amendments allow employers with fiscal year ends that do 
not coincide with a calendar month end to make an accounting policy election to measure defined benefit plan assets and obligations as of the end 
of the month closest to their fiscal year ends.  The new guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2015, and interim periods 
within those fiscal years, with early adoption permitted.  The Company expects to adopt the new provisions of this accounting standard at the 
beginning of fiscal year 2017, and adoption is not expected to have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements. 
  
In May 2015, the FASB updated the guidance within ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures.  The update provides guidance on the 
disclosures for investments in certain entities that calculate net asset value (NAV) per share (or its equivalent).  The amendments remove the 
requirement to categorize within the fair value hierarchy all investments for which fair value is measured using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) 
as a practical expedient.  The updated guidance is to be applied retrospectively and is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after 
December 15, 2015, and interim periods within those fiscal years, with early application permitted.  The Company expects to adopt the provisions of 
this new accounting standard at the beginning of fiscal year 2017, and is currently assessing the impact on its consolidated financial statements. 
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NOTE B                                               ACQUISITIONS 
  
On August 11, 2014, the Company acquired CytoSport Holdings, Inc. (CytoSport) of Benicia, California for a preliminary purchase price of $424.3 
million in cash.  The purchase price is preliminary pending final working capital and other purchase accounting adjustments, and was funded by the 
Company with cash on hand and by utilizing funds from its revolving line of credit.  The agreement provides for a potential additional payment of up 
to $20.0 million subject to meeting specific financial performance criteria over the next two years.  The Company has recognized $10.3 million related 
to this potential payment as of April 26, 2015, based on the current estimated fair value determined by an independent appraisal. 
  
The acquisition was accounted for as a business combination using the acquisition method.  The Company has estimated the acquisition date fair 
values of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, using independent appraisals and other analyses, and is in the process of determining final 
working capital adjustments.  Therefore, a preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the acquired assets, liabilities, and goodwill is presented in 
the table below. 
  

  
The liabilities shown above include $15.0 million representing potential payments owed under a supplier agreement, which are contingent on future 
production levels. 
  
Goodwill is calculated as the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets recognized.  The goodwill recorded as part of the 
acquisition primarily reflects the value of the assembled workforce, manufacturing synergies, and the potential to expand presence in alternate 
channels.  The goodwill balance is not expected to be deductible for income tax purposes. The goodwill and intangible assets have been allocated to 
the Specialty Foods and International & Other reporting segments. 
  
Operating results for this acquisition have been included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations from the date of acquisition and 
are reflected in the Specialty Foods and International & Other reporting segments.  The acquisition contributed $87.2 million and $151.4 million of 

 

(in thousands)  
Accounts receivable $ 34,057 
Inventory 62,246 
Prepaid and other assets 3,133 
Property, plant and equipment 8,119 
Intangible assets 183,607 
Goodwill 267,313 
Current liabilities (52,298 ) 
Long-term liabilities (25,182 ) 
Deferred taxes (56,667 )  

Purchase price $ 424,328 



net sales for the second quarter and six months ended April 26, 2015. 
  
CytoSport is the maker of Muscle Milk  products and is a leading provider of premium protein products in the sports nutrition category.  
CytoSport’s brands align with the Company’s focus on protein while further diversifying the Company’s portfolio. 
  
On November 26, 2013, the Company acquired the China based SKIPPY peanut butter business from Conopco, Inc. (doing business as Unilever 
United States Inc.), of Englewood Cliffs, N.J. for a final purchase price of $41.9 million in cash.  This acquisition includes the Weifang, China 
manufacturing facility and all sales in Mainland China.  The purchase price was funded by the Company with cash on hand. 
  
Operating results for this acquisition have been included in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Operations from the date of acquisition and 
are reflected in the International & Other reporting segment.  The acquisition contributed an incremental $5.9 million of net sales for the first quarter 
of fiscal 2015. 
  
SKIPPY is a well-established brand that allows the Company to expand its presence in the center of the store with a non-meat protein product and 
reinforces the Company’s balanced product portfolio.  The acquisition also  
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provides the opportunity to strengthen the Company’s global presence and complements the international sales strategy for the SPAM family of 
products. 
  
Pro forma results of operations are not presented, as no acquisition was considered material, individually or in the aggregate, to the consolidated 
Company. 
  
  
NOTE C                                               STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION 
  
The Company issues stock options and nonvested shares as part of its stock incentive plans for employees and non-employee directors.  The 
Company’s policy is to grant options with the exercise price equal to the market price of the common stock on the date of grant.  Options typically 
vest over four years and expire ten years after the date of the grant.  The Company recognizes stock-based compensation expense ratably over the 
shorter of the requisite service period or vesting period.  The fair value of stock-based compensation granted to retirement-eligible individuals is 
expensed at the time of grant. 
  
A reconciliation of the number of options outstanding and exercisable (in thousands) as of April 26, 2015, and changes during the six months then 
ended, is as follows: 
  

  
  
  
The weighted-average grant date fair value of stock options granted and the total intrinsic value of options exercised (in thousands) during the 
second quarter and first six months of fiscal years 2015 and 2014, are as follows: 
  

  
The fair value of each option award is calculated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes valuation model utilizing the following weighted-
average assumptions: 
  

Shares 

Weighted- 
Average 

Exercise Price 

Weighted- 
Average 

Remaining 
Contractual 

Term 

Aggregate 
Intrinsic Value 
(in thousands) 

Outstanding at October 26, 2014 17,402 $ 24.61   
Granted 1,502 52.53   
Exercised 881 18.75   
Forfeited 1 18.71   
Outstanding at April 26, 2015 18,022 $ 27.22 5.4 years $ 497,872 
Exercisable at April 26, 2015 13,725 $ 22.55 4.4 years $ 443,314 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
Weighted-average grant date fair value $      9.00 $     9.04 $     9.84 $     9.68 
Intrinsic value of exercised options  $  23,409 $ 18,567 $ 32,601 $ 31,969 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
Risk-free interest rate 1.6% 2.4% 2.1% 2.5% 
Dividend yield 1.9% 1.8% 1.9% 1.8% 
Stock price volatility 19.0% 20.0% 19.0% 20.0% 

     

®



  
As part of the annual valuation process, the Company reassesses the appropriateness of the inputs used in the valuation models.  The Company 
establishes the risk-free interest rate using stripped U.S. Treasury yields as of the grant date where the remaining term is approximately the expected 
life of the option.  The dividend yield is  
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set based on the dividend rate approved by the Company’s Board of Directors and the stock price on the grant date.  The expected volatility 
assumption is set based primarily on historical volatility.  As a reasonableness test, implied volatility from exchange traded options is also examined 
to validate the volatility range obtained from the historical analysis.  The expected life assumption is set based on an analysis of past exercise 
behavior by option holders.  In performing the valuations for option grants, the Company has not stratified option holders as exercise behavior has 
historically been consistent across all employee and non-employee director groups. 
  
The Company’s nonvested shares granted on or before September 26, 2010, vest after five years or upon retirement.  Nonvested shares granted 
between September 27, 2010, and July 27, 2014, vest after one year.  Nonvested shares granted on or after July 28, 2014, vest on the earlier of the day 
before the Company’s next annual meeting date or one year.  A reconciliation of the nonvested shares (in thousands) as of April 26, 2015, and 
changes during the six months then ended, is as follows:  

  
The weighted-average grant date fair value of nonvested shares granted, the total fair value (in thousands) of nonvested shares granted, and the 
fair value (in thousands) of shares that have vested during the first six months of fiscal years 2015 and 2014, are as follows:  

  
Stock-based compensation expense, along with the related income tax benefit, for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal years 2015 and 
2014 is presented in the table below. 
  

  
At April 26, 2015, there was $12.3 million of total unrecognized compensation expense from stock-based compensation arrangements granted under 
the plans.  This compensation is expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of approximately 2.9 years.  During the second quarter 
and six months ended April 26, 2015, cash received from stock option exercises was $3.9 million and $6.0 million, respectively, compared to $2.1 
million and $5.5 million for the second quarter and six months ended April 27, 2014.  The total tax benefit to be realized for tax deductions from these 
option exercises for the second quarter and six months ended April 26, 2015, was $8.9 million and $12.4 million, respectively, compared to $7.0 million 
and $12.1 million in the comparable periods of fiscal 2014. 
  
Shares issued for option exercises and nonvested shares may be either authorized but unissued shares, or shares of treasury stock acquired in the 
open market or otherwise. 
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NOTE D                                               GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
  
The carrying amounts of goodwill for the second quarter and six months ended April 26, 2015, are presented in the table below.  Purchase 
adjustments during the second quarter relate to the CytoSport acquisition.  The reduction in the first six months is entirely due to the sale of an 
immaterial product line. 
  

Expected option life 8 years 8 years 8 years 8 years 

Shares 

Weighted- 
Average Grant- 
Date Fair Value 

Nonvested at October 26, 2014 70 $ 33.58 
Granted 37 51.74 
Vested 70 33.58 
Nonvested at April 26, 2015 37 $ 51.74 

Six Months Ended 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
Weighted-average grant date fair value $ 51.74 $ 43.46 
Fair value of nonvested shares granted $ 1,920 $ 1,440 
Fair value of shares vested $ 2,347 $ 2,056 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
Stock-based compensation expense recognized  $  7,025 $ 5,987 $ 12,549 $ 10,944 
Income tax benefit recognized  (2,668) (2,275) (4,765) (4,159) 
After-tax stock-based compensation expense  $  4,357 $ 3,712 $ 7,784 $ 6,785 

 
Grocery 

 
Refrigerated 

  
Specialty 

 
International 

  



  

  
The gross carrying amount and accumulated amortization for definite-lived intangible assets are presented in the table below. 
  

  
Amortization expense was $1.9 million and $4.0 million for the second quarter and six months ended April 26, 2015, respectively, compared to $2.3 
million and $4.6 million for the second quarter and six months ended April 27, 2014. 
  
Estimated annual amortization expense for the five fiscal years after October 26, 2014, is as follows: 
  
  

  
The carrying amounts for indefinite-lived intangible assets are presented in the table below. 
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NOTE E                                               INVESTMENTS IN AND RECEIVABLES FROM AFFILIATES 
  
The Company accounts for its majority-owned operations under the consolidation method.  Investments in which the Company owns a minority 
interest, and for which there are no other indicators of control, are accounted for under the equity or cost method.  These investments, along with 
any related receivables from affiliates, are included in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as investments in and receivables from 
affiliates. 
  
Investments in and receivables from affiliates consists of the following: 
  

  
Equity in earnings of affiliates consists of the following: 
  

(in thousands) Products Foods JOTS Foods & Other Total 
Balance as of January 25, 

2015   $ 322,421   $ 96,208   $ 203,214   $ 470,857   $ 132,749   $ 1,225,449 
                                     
Purchase adjustments - - - 3,484 - 3,484 
Balance as of April 26, 2015   $ 322,421   $ 96,208   $ 203,214   $ 474,341   $ 132,749   $ 1,228,933 

(in thousands) 
Grocery 
Products 

Refrigerated 
Foods JOTS 

Specialty 
Foods 

International 
& Other Total 

Balance as of October 26, 
2014   $ 322,942   $ 96,643   $ 203,214   $ 470,857   $ 132,750   $ 1,226,406 

                                     
Purchase adjustments - - - 3,484 - 3,484 
Disposal (521 ) (435 ) - - (1 ) (957 ) 
Balance as of April 26, 2015   $ 322,421   $ 96,208   $ 203,214   $ 474,341   $ 132,749   $ 1,228,933 

April 26, 2015 October 26, 2014 
Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated 

(in thousands) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization 
Customer lists/relationships   $ 56,390   $ (10,666)   $ 67,540   $ (19,336) 
Proprietary software & technology 14,820 (14,262) 14,820 (13,542) 
Formulas & recipes 10,690 (9,559) 17,854 (15,955) 
Other intangibles 1,170 (995) 4,746 (4,503) 

Total   $ 83,070   $ (35,482)   $ 104,960   $ (53,336) 

(in thousands)  
2015 $7,554 
2016 5,591 
2017 5,118 
2018 4,876 
2019 4,833 

(in thousands) April 26, 2015 October 26, 2014 
Brands/tradenames/trademarks   $ 495,282   $ 495,282 
Other intangibles 7,984 7,984 

Total   $ 503,266   $ 503,266 

(in thousands) Segment % Owned 
April 26, 

2015 
October 26, 

2014  
MegaMex Foods, LLC Grocery Products 50%    $ 199,005    $ 208,221  
Foreign Joint Ventures International & Other Various (26-50%) 65,049 56,230  

Total      $ 264,054    $ 264,451  

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) Segment 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
          



  
Equity in earnings in the first six months of fiscal 2015 included nonrecurring charges related to the exit from international joint venture businesses.  
There were $10.0 million of dividends received from affiliates for both the three and six months ended April 26, 2015, respectively, compared to $0.0 
million and $10.0 million dividends received for the three and six months ended April 27, 2014. 
  
The Company recognized a basis difference of $21.3 million associated with the formation of MegaMex Foods, LLC, of which $16.6 million is 
remaining as of April 26, 2015.  This difference is being amortized through equity in earnings of affiliates. 
  
  
NOTE F                                                EARNINGS PER SHARE DATA 
  
The reported net earnings attributable to the Company were used when computing basic and diluted earnings per share.  The following table sets 
forth the shares used as the denominator for those computations: 
  

  
For the second quarter and six months ended April 26, 2015, 1.2 million and 0.9 million weighted-average stock options, respectively, were not 
included in the computation of dilutive potential common shares since their inclusion would have had an antidilutive effect on earnings per share, 
compared to 1.0 million and 0.8 million for the second quarter and six months ended April 27, 2014. 
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NOTE G                                              ACCUMULATED OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS 
  
Components of accumulated other comprehensive loss are as follows: 
  

  

MegaMex Foods, LLC  Grocery Products    $ 7,157    $ 4,529    $ 15,214    $ 7,057 
Foreign Joint Ventures International & Other 717 (946 ) (5,680 ) 1,265 

Total     $ 7,874    $ 3,583    $ 9,534    $ 8,322 

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
Basic weighted-average shares outstanding 264,028 263,926 263,852 263,839 
                          
Dilutive potential common shares 6,416 6,484 6,401 6,478 
                          
Diluted weighted-average shares outstanding 270,444 270,410 270,253 270,317 

(in thousands) 

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Pension & 

Other Benefits 

Deferred Gain 
(Loss) - 
Hedging 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Loss 

Balance at January 25, 2015 $ 8,240 $ (204,089 ) $ (4,188 ) $ (200,037 ) 
Unrecognized gains:     

Gross (571 )  (5,033 ) (5,604 ) 
Tax effect   1,900 1,900 

Reclassification into net earnings:     
Gross  3,071 (1) 2,705 (2) 5,776 
Tax effect  (1,166 ) (1,021 ) (2,187 ) 

Net of tax amount (571 ) 1,905 (1,449 ) (115 ) 
Purchase of additional ownership from 

noncontrolling interest 395   395 
Balance at April 26, 2015 $ 8,064 $ (202,184 ) $ (5,637 ) $ (199,757 ) 

(in thousands) 

Foreign 
Currency 

Translation 
Pension & 

Other Benefits 

Deferred Gain 
(Loss) - 
Hedging 

Accumulated 
Other 

Comprehensive 
Loss 

Balance at October 26, 2014 $ 7,480 $ (205,986 ) $ (9,194 ) $ (207,700 ) 
Unrecognized gains:     

Gross 189 11 (1,370 ) (1,170 ) 
Tax effect  (4 ) 517 513 

Reclassification into net earnings:     
Gross  6,118 (1) 7,084 (2) 13,202 
Tax effect  (2,323 ) (2,674 ) (4,997 ) 

Net of tax amount 189 3,802 3,557 7,548 
Purchase of additional ownership from 

noncontrolling interest 395   395 
           



  
(1)                                   Included in the computation of net periodic cost (see Note K “Pension and Other Post-Retirement Benefits” for additional details). 
(2)                                Included in cost of products sold in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. 
  
  
NOTE H                                              INVENTORIES 
  
Principal components of inventories are: 
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NOTE I                                                 DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING 
  
The Company uses hedging programs to manage price risk associated with commodity purchases.  These programs utilize futures contracts and 
swaps to manage the Company’s exposure to price fluctuations in the commodities markets.  The Company has determined that its programs which 
are designated as hedges are highly effective in offsetting the changes in fair value or cash flows generated by the items hedged. 
  
Cash Flow Hedges:  The Company currently utilizes corn futures to offset the price fluctuation in the Company’s future direct grain purchases, and 
has historically entered into various swaps to hedge the purchases of grain and natural gas at certain plant locations.  The financial instruments are 
designated and accounted for as cash flow hedges, and the Company measures the effectiveness of the hedges at least quarterly.  Effective gains or 
losses related to these cash flow hedges are reported in accumulated other comprehensive loss (AOCL) and reclassified into earnings, through cost 
of products sold, in the period or periods in which the hedged transactions affect earnings.  Any gains or losses related to hedge ineffectiveness are 
recognized in the current period cost of products sold.  The Company typically does not hedge its grain or natural gas exposure beyond the next 
two upcoming fiscal years.  As of April 26, 2015, and October 26, 2014, the Company had the following outstanding commodity futures contracts 
that were entered into to hedge forecasted purchases: 
  

  
As of April 26, 2015, the Company has included in AOCL, hedging losses of $9.1 million (before tax) relating to these positions, compared to losses 
of $14.8 million (before tax) as of October 26, 2014.  The Company expects to recognize the majority of these losses over the next 12 months. 
  
Fair Value Hedges:  The Company utilizes futures to minimize the price risk assumed when forward priced contracts are offered to the Company’s 
commodity suppliers.  The intent of the program is to make the forward priced commodities cost nearly the same as cash market purchases at the 
date of delivery.  The futures contracts are designated and accounted for as fair value hedges, and the Company measures the effectiveness of the 
hedges at least quarterly.  Changes in the fair value of the futures contracts, along with the gain or loss on the hedged purchase commitment, are 
marked-to-market through earnings and are recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as a current asset and liability, 
respectively.  Effective gains or losses related to these fair value hedges are recognized through cost of products sold in the period or periods in 
which the hedged transactions affect earnings.  Any gains or losses related to hedge ineffectiveness are recognized in the current period cost of 
products sold.  As of April 26, 2015, and October 26, 2014, the Company had the following outstanding commodity futures contracts designated as 
fair value hedges: 
  

  
Other Derivatives:  During fiscal years 2015 and 2014, the Company has held certain futures and options contract positions as part of a 
merchandising program and to manage the Company’s exposure to fluctuations in commodity markets.  The Company has not applied hedge 
accounting to these positions. 
  
As of April 26, 2015, and October 26, 2014, the Company had the following outstanding futures related to these programs: 

  

  
 

Balance at April 26, 2015 $ 8,064 $ (202,184 ) $ (5,637 ) $ (199,757 ) 

(in thousands) 
April 26, 

2015 
October 26, 

2014 
Finished products  $ 567,063 $ 604,946 
Raw materials and work-in-process 215,631 274,105 
Materials and supplies 180,787 175,501 

Total  $ 963,481 $ 1,054,552 

Volume 
Commodity April 26, 2015 October 26, 2014 

Corn 20.4 million bushels 18.3 million bushels 

Volume 
Commodity April 26, 2015 October 26, 2014 

Corn 3.5 million bushels 8.0 million bushels 
Lean hogs 0.3 million cwt 0.7 million cwt 

Volume 
Commodity April 26, 2015 October 26, 2014 

Corn 1.9 million bushels 2.9 million bushels 
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Fair Values:  The fair values of the Company’s derivative instruments (in thousands) as of April 26, 2015, and October 26, 2014, were as follows: 
  

  
Derivative Gains and Losses:  Gains or losses (before tax, in thousands) related to the Company’s derivative instruments for the second quarter 
ended April 26, 2015, and April 27, 2014, were as follows: 
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Derivative Gains and Losses:  Gains or losses (before tax, in thousands) related to the Company’s derivative instruments for the six months ended 
April 26, 2015, and April 27, 2014, were as follows: 
  

Fair Value 
Location on Consolidated 
Statements of Financial 

Position 
April 26, 

2015 
October 26, 

2014 
Asset Derivatives: 
Derivatives Designated as Hedges:   

Commodity contracts Other current assets $ (3,354) $   (7,124) 
              
Derivatives Not Designated as Hedges:  

Commodity contracts Other current assets 99 (938) 
              

Total Asset Derivatives $ (3,255) $    (8,062) 
              
(1)  Amounts represent the gross fair value of derivative assets and liabilities.  The Company nets the derivative assets and liabilities for each of its 

hedging programs, including cash collateral, when a master netting arrangement exists between the Company and the counterparty to the 
derivative contract.  The amount or timing of cash collateral balances may impact the classification of the derivative in the Consolidated 
Statements of Financial Position.   See Note J “Fair Value Measurements” for a discussion of these net amounts as reported in the Consolidated 
Statements of Financial Position. 

 

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in AOCL 
(Effective Portion) (1) Location on 

Consolidated 

Gain/(Loss) 
Reclassified from 

AOCL into Earnings 
(Effective Portion) (1) 

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in 

Earnings (Ineffective 
Portion) (2) (4) 

 
 

Three Months Ended 
 

Three Months Ended 
 

Three Months Ended 

Cash Flow Hedges: 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
Statements 

of Operations 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015  
April 27, 

2014 
Commodity contracts $  (5,033)    $  8,309  Cost of products sold $  (2,705) $  (2,867) $    0  $    517 
                  

Location on 
Consolidated 

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in Earnings 

(Effective Portion) (3) 

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in 

Earnings (Ineffective 
Portion) (2) (5) 

 

Three Months Ended 
 

Three Months Ended 

Fair Value Hedges: 
Statements 

of Operations 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015  
April 27, 

2014 

Commodity contracts        Cost of products sold  $  (3,769)  $  (15,889)   $    203  $    (19) 
                  

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized 
in Earnings Location on 

Consolidated 
Statements 

of Operations 

 

Three Months Ended 
Derivatives Not 
Designated as Hedges: 

April 26, 
2015 

April 27, 
2014  

Commodity contracts        Cost of products sold  $    (264)  $     1,206       

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in 

AOCL 
(Effective Portion) (1) Location on 

Gain/(Loss) 
Reclassified from 

AOCL into Earnings 
(Effective Portion) (1) 

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in Earnings  

(Ineffective 
Portion) (2)(4)  

         

(1) 



  

  

  

  
NOTE J                                                 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 
  
Pursuant to the provisions of ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures (ASC 820), the Company measures certain assets and liabilities 
at fair value or discloses the fair value of certain assets and liabilities recorded at cost in the consolidated financial statements.  Fair value is 
calculated as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
the measurement date (an exit price).  ASC 820 establishes a fair value hierarchy which requires assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be 
categorized into one of three levels based on the inputs used in the valuation.  Assets and liabilities are classified in their entirety based on the 
lowest level of input significant to the fair value measurement.  The three levels are defined as follows: 
  

Level 1:  Observable inputs based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
  

Level 2:  Observable inputs, other than those included in Level 1, based on quoted prices for similar assets and liabilities in active markets, 
or quoted prices for identical assets and liabilities in inactive markets. 
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Level 3:  Unobservable inputs that reflect an entity’s own assumptions about what inputs a market participant would use in pricing the 
asset or liability based on the best information available in the circumstances. 

  
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of April 26, 2015, and October 26, 2014, and their 
level within the fair value hierarchy, are presented in the tables below. 
  

 Six Months Ended  Consolidated  Six Months Ended  Six Months Ended  

Cash Flow Hedges: 
April 26, 

2015  
April 27, 

2014  
Statements 

of Operations  
April 26, 

2015  
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014  
Commodity contracts $ (1,370) $  4,305 Cost of products sold $   (7,084) $   (6,116) $    0 $    223  

   Location on  

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in Earnings 

(Effective Portion) (3)  

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized in Earnings 

(Ineffective 
Portion) (2)(5)  

   Consolidated  Six Months Ended  Six Months Ended  

Fair Value Hedges:      
Statements 

of Operations  
April 26, 

2015  
April 27, 

2014  
April 26, 

2015  
April 27, 

2014  
Commodity contracts Cost of products sold $ (3,937) $ (14,635) $    93 $    (57)  

    Location on  

Gain/(Loss) 
Recognized 
in Earnings    

    Consolidated  Six Months Ended    
Derivatives Not 
Designated as Hedges:      

Statements 
of Operations  

April 26, 
2015  

April 27, 
2014      

Commodity contracts Cost of products sold $   (135) $     689  

(1) Amounts represent gains or losses in AOCL before tax.  See Note G “Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss” or the Consolidated Statements of 
Comprehensive Income for the after-tax impact of these gains or losses on net earnings. 

(2) There were no gains or losses excluded from the assessment of hedge effectiveness during the second quarter or first six months. 
(3) Amounts represent losses on commodity contracts designated as fair value hedges that were closed during the second quarter or first six months, which were 

offset by a corresponding gain on the underlying hedged purchase commitment.  Additional gains or losses related to changes in the fair value of open 
commodity contracts, along with the offsetting gain or loss on the hedged purchase commitment, are also marked-to-market through earnings with no impact on 
a net basis. 

(4) There were no gains or losses resulting from the discontinuance of cash flow hedges during the second quarter or first six months. 
(5) There were no gains or losses recognized as a result of a hedged firm commitment no longer qualifying as a fair value hedge during the second quarter or first six 

months. 

Fair Value Measurements at April 26, 2015 

(in thousands) 

Fair Value at 
April 26, 

2015 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Assets at Fair Value:     
Cash and cash equivalents (1) $  624,395 $  624,395 $            - $        - 
Other trading securities (2) 120,290 40,996 79,294 - 
Commodity derivatives (3) 3,088 3,088 - - 

Total Assets at Fair Value $  747,773 $  668,479 $  79,294 $        - 
          



  
  

  
The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of the financial assets and liabilities above: 
  
(1)                                 The Company’s cash equivalents consist primarily of bank deposits, money market funds rated AAA, or other highly liquid investment 

accounts.  As these investments have a maturity date of three months or less, the carrying value approximates fair value. 
(2)                                 The Company holds trading securities as part of a rabbi trust to fund certain supplemental executive retirement plans and deferred income 

plans.  The rabbi trust is included in other assets on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and is valued based on the 
underlying fair value of each fund held by the trust.  A majority of the funds held related to the supplemental executive retirement plans 
have been invested in fixed income funds managed by a third party.  The declared rate on these funds is set based on a formula using the 
yield of the general account investment portfolio that supports the fund, adjusted for expenses and other charges.  The rate is guaranteed 
for one year at issue, and may be reset annually on the policy anniversary, subject to a guaranteed minimum rate.  As the value is based on 
adjusted market rates, and the fixed rate is only reset on an annual basis, these funds are classified as Level 2.  The remaining funds held 
are also managed by a third party, and include equity securities, money market accounts, bond funds, or other portfolios for which there is 
an active quoted market.   
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Therefore these securities are classified as Level 1.  The related deferred compensation liabilities are included in other long-term liabilities 
on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and are valued based on the underlying investment selections held in each 
participant’s account.  Investment options generally mirror those funds held by the rabbi trust, for which there is an active quoted market.  
Therefore these investment balances are classified as Level 1.  The Company also offers a fixed rate investment option to participants.  The 
rate earned on these investments is adjusted annually based on a specified percentage of the United States Internal Revenue Service 
( I.R.S.) Applicable Federal Rates in effect and therefore these balances are classified as Level 2. 

(3)                                 The Company’s commodity derivatives represent futures contracts used in its hedging or other programs to offset price fluctuations 
associated with purchases of corn, and to minimize the price risk assumed when forward priced contracts are offered to the Company’s 
commodity suppliers.  The Company’s futures contracts for corn are traded on the Chicago Board of Trade, while futures contracts for lean 
hogs are traded on the Chicago Mercantile Exchange.  These are active markets with quoted prices available and therefore these contracts 
are classified as Level 1.  All derivatives are reviewed for potential credit risk and risk of nonperformance.  The Company nets the derivative 
assets and liabilities for each of its hedging programs, including cash collateral, when a master netting arrangement exists between the 
Company and the counterparty to the derivative contract.  The net balance for each program is included in other current assets or accounts 
payable, as appropriate, in the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.  As of April 26, 2015, the Company has recognized the right 
to reclaim net cash collateral of $6.3 million from various counterparties (including $13.7 million of cash less $7.4 million of realized losses on 
closed positions).  As of October 26, 2014, the Company had recognized the right to reclaim net cash collateral of $11.5 million from various 
counterparties (including $55.6 million of cash less $44.1 million of realized losses on closed positions). 

  
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities also include accounts receivable, accounts payable, and other liabilities, for which carrying value 
approximates fair value.  The Company does not carry its long-term debt at fair value in its Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.  Based on 
borrowing rates available to the Company for long-term financing with similar terms and average maturities, the fair value of long-term debt, utilizing 
discounted cash flows (Level 2), was $276.5 million as of April 26, 2015, and $273.8 million as of October 26, 2014. 
  
In accordance with the provisions of ASC 820, the Company also measures certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities at fair value that are recognized 
or disclosed on a nonrecurring basis (e.g. goodwill, intangible assets, and property, plant and equipment).  During the six months ended April 26, 
2015, and April 27, 2014, there were no remeasurements of assets or liabilities at fair value on a nonrecurring basis subsequent to their initial 
recognition. 
  
  

 

                    
Liabilities at Fair Value: 

Deferred compensation (2) $   55,311 $    25,314 $  29,997 $        - 
Total Liabilities at Fair Value $   55,311 $    25,314 $  29,997 $        - 

Fair Value Measurements at October 26, 2014 

(in thousands) 

Fair Value at 
October 26, 

2014 

Quoted Prices 
in Active 

Markets for 
Identical Assets 

(Level 1) 

Significant 
Other 

Observable 
Inputs 

(Level 2) 

Significant 
Unobservable 

Inputs 
(Level 3) 

Assets at Fair Value:     
Cash and cash equivalents (1) $  334,174 $  334,174 $            - $        - 
Other trading securities (2) 117,249 39,120 78,129 - 
Commodity derivatives (3) 3,461 3,461 - - 

Total Assets at Fair Value $  454,884 $  376,755 $  78,129 $        - 
                    
Liabilities at Fair Value: 

Deferred compensation (2) $    54,809 $    23,642 $  31,167 $        - 
Total Liabilities at Fair Value $    54,809 $    23,642 $  31,167 $        - 



NOTE K                                              PENSION AND OTHER POST-RETIREMENT BENEFITS 
  
Net periodic benefit cost for pension and other post-retirement benefit plans consists of the following: 
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NOTE L                                               INCOME TAXES 
  
The amount of unrecognized tax benefits, including interest and penalties, at April 26, 2015, recorded in other long-term liabilities was $25.3 million, 
of which $16.4 million would impact the Company’s effective tax rate if recognized.  The Company includes accrued interest and penalties related to 
uncertain tax positions in income tax expense, with $0.4 million included in expense for both the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015.  
The amount of accrued interest and penalties at April 26, 2015, associated with unrecognized tax benefits was $3.1 million. 
  
The Company is regularly audited by federal and state taxing authorities.  During the fourth quarter of fiscal year 2014 the I.R.S. opened an 
examination of the Company’s consolidated federal income tax returns for fiscal year 2013; that audit is still ongoing.  During the first quarter of 
fiscal year 2015, the Company entered into a voluntary program with the I.R.S. called the Compliance Assurance Process (“CAP”).  The objective of 
CAP is to contemporaneously work with the I.R.S. to achieve federal tax compliance and resolve all or most of the issues prior to filing of the tax 
return.  The Company has elected to participate in the CAP program for 2015 and may elect to continue participating in CAP for future tax years; the 
Company may withdraw from the program at any time. 
  
The Company is in various stages of audit by several state taxing authorities on a variety of fiscal years, as far back as 2008.  While it is reasonably 
possible that one or more of these audits may be completed within the next 12 months and that the related unrecognized tax benefits may change, 
based on the status of the examinations it is not possible to reasonably estimate the effect of any amount of such change to previously recorded 
uncertain tax positions. 
  
  
NOTE M                                            SEGMENT REPORTING 
  
The Company develops, processes, and distributes a wide array of food products in a variety of markets.  The Company reports its results in the 
following five segments: Grocery Products, Refrigerated Foods, Jennie-O Turkey Store, Specialty Foods, and International & Other. 
  
The Grocery Products segment consists primarily of the processing, marketing, and sale of shelf-stable food products sold predominantly in the 
retail market.  This segment also includes the results from the Company’s MegaMex joint venture. 
  
The Refrigerated Foods segment includes the Hormel Refrigerated operating segment and the Affiliated Business Units.  This segment consists 
primarily of the processing, marketing, and sale of branded and unbranded pork and beef products for retail, foodservice, and fresh product 
customers.  The Affiliated Business Units include the Farmer John, Burke Corporation, and Dan’s Prize businesses.  Through fiscal 2014, this 
segment also included Precept Foods, LLC, a 50.01 percent owned joint venture that was dissolved at the end of the fiscal year. 
  
The Jennie-O Turkey Store segment consists primarily of the processing, marketing, and sale of branded and unbranded turkey products for retail, 
foodservice, and fresh product customers. 
  
The Specialty Foods segment includes the Diamond Crystal Brands, CytoSport/Century Foods International, and Hormel Specialty Products 
operating segments.  This segment consists of the packaging and sale of private label shelf stable products, nutritional products, sugar, and 
condiments to industrial, retail, and foodservice customers.   

  
 

Pension Benefits 
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) April 26, 2015 April 27, 2014 April 26, 2015 April 27, 2014 
Service cost   $ 7,199   $ 6,477   $ 14,398   $ 12,980 
Interest cost 13,130 13,219 26,261 26,593 
Expected return on plan assets (22,198) (20,862) (44,396) (41,977) 
Amortization of prior service cost (1,219) (1,243) (2,439) (2,486) 
Recognized actuarial loss 4,625 3,171 9,226 6,353 

Net periodic cost   $ 1,537   $ 762   $ 3,050   $ 1,463 

Post-retirement Benefits 
Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) April 26, 2015 April 27, 2014 April 26, 2015 April 27, 2014 
Service cost   $ 443   $ 483   $ 885   $ 966 
Interest cost 3,336 3,786 6,672 7,571 
Amortization of prior service cost (334) (334) (668) (668) 
Recognized actuarial gain (1) - (1) (1) 

Net periodic cost   $ 3,444   $ 3,935   $ 6,888   $ 7,868 
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This segment also includes the processing, marketing, and sale of nutritional food products and supplements to hospitals, nursing homes, and other 
marketers of nutritional products. 
  
The International & Other segment includes the Hormel Foods International operating segment, which manufactures, markets, and sells Company 
products internationally.  This segment also includes the results from the Company’s international joint ventures and miscellaneous corporate sales. 
  
Intersegment sales are recorded at prices that approximate cost and are eliminated in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.  The Company 
does not allocate investment income, interest expense, and interest income to its segments when measuring performance.  The Company also retains 
various other income and unallocated expenses at corporate.  Equity in earnings of affiliates is included in segment operating profit; however, 
earnings attributable to the Company’s noncontrolling interests are excluded.  These items are included below as net interest and investment 
expense (income), general corporate expense, and noncontrolling interest when reconciling to earnings before income taxes. 
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Sales and operating profits for each of the Company’s reportable segments and reconciliation to earnings before income taxes are set forth below.  
The Company is an integrated enterprise, characterized by substantial intersegment cooperation, cost allocations, and sharing of assets.  Therefore, 
the Company does not represent that these segments, if operated independently, would report the operating profit and other financial information 
shown below. 
  

  
  

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
Sales to Unaffiliated Customers     

Grocery Products $ 397,265 $ 392,030 $ 807,016 $ 793,550 
Refrigerated Foods 1,022,511 1,111,244 2,166,726 2,239,665 
Jennie-O Turkey Store 438,912 380,425 878,931 779,825 
Specialty Foods 287,424 217,176 550,698 413,155 
International & Other 133,233 143,991 271,047 261,343 

Total $ 2,279,345 $ 2,244,866 $ 4,674,418 $ 4,487,538 
                                
Intersegment Sales     

Grocery Products $ - $ - $ - $ - 
Refrigerated Foods 3,560 6,601 7,743 12,347 
Jennie-O Turkey Store 36,398 36,870 71,782 69,999 
Specialty Foods 25 18 46 52 
International & Other - - - - 

Total $ 39,983 $ 43,489 $ 79,571 $ 82,398 
Intersegment elimination (39,983 ) (43,489 ) (79,571 ) (82,398 ) 

Total $ - $ - $ - $ - 
                                
                                
Net Sales     

Grocery Products $ 397,265 $ 392,030 $ 807,016 $ 793,550 
Refrigerated Foods 1,026,071 1,117,845 2,174,469 2,252,012 
Jennie-O Turkey Store 475,310 417,295 950,713 849,824 
Specialty Foods 287,449 217,194 550,744 413,207 
International & Other 133,233 143,991 271,047 261,343 
Intersegment elimination (39,983 ) (43,489 ) (79,571 ) (82,398 ) 

Total $ 2,279,345 $ 2,244,866 $ 4,674,418 $ 4,487,538 

Segment Operating Profit     
Grocery Products $ 55,327 $ 54,890 $ 96,702 $ 111,232 
Refrigerated Foods 114,837 75,397 215,989 160,696 
Jennie-O Turkey Store 74,596 52,808 167,616 112,353 
Specialty Foods 21,144 19,134 39,720 40,389 
International & Other 21,383 20,863 35,767 43,420 

Total segment operating profit $ 287,287 $ 223,092 $ 555,794 $ 468,090 
                                

Net interest and investment expense (income) 1,966 3,399 3,895 5,320 
General corporate expense 9,824 7,152 13,077 16,068 
Noncontrolling interest 234 616 946 1,726 
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NOTE N                                               SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
  
On May 26, 2015, subsequent to the end of the second quarter, the Company announced that it has entered into a definitive agreement to acquire 
Applegate Farms, LLC (Applegate), of Bridgewater, N.J. for a preliminary purchase price of $775 million in cash.  The Company expects to close the 
acquisition within 60 days subject to regulatory approvals.  The purchase price is expected to be funded by the Company with cash on hand 
generated from operations and short-term financing. 
  
Applegate  is the No. 1 brand in natural and organic value-added prepared meats and this acquisition would allow the Company to expand the 
breadth of its protein offerings to provide consumers more choice in that fast growing category.  Operating results for this acquisition will be 
reflected in the Refrigerated Foods reporting segment. 

  
25 

 

Table of Contents 
  
Item 2.  Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations 
  

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
  
There have been no material changes in the Company’s Critical Accounting Policies, as disclosed in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal 
year ended October 26, 2014. 
  

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
  

Overview 
  

The Company is a processor of branded and unbranded food products for retail, foodservice, and fresh product customers.  It operates in five 
reportable segments as described in Note M in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. 
  
The Company reported net earnings per diluted share of $0.67 for the second quarter of fiscal 2015, compared to $0.52 per diluted share in the 
second quarter of fiscal 2014.  Significant factors impacting the quarter were: 
  

·                  Record net earnings and sales with all five of the Company’s reporting segments generating segment profit growth. 
·                  The Refrigerated Foods segment delivered segment profit gains driven by strong value-added product sales and lower pork input costs. 
·                  Jennie-O Turkey Store provided segment profit gains with continued growth of value-added products and lower grain and fuel input costs. 
·                  Grocery Products segment profit benefitted from input cost relief. 
·                  Specialty Foods segment profit benefitted from synergies achieved with the recently acquired CytoSport Holdings, LLC (CytoSport) 

business. 
·                  International & Other segment profit gains were driven by improved joint venture results despite declines in exports. 

  
Consolidated Results 

  
Net earnings attributable to the Company for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 increased 28.6 percent to $180.2 million from $140.1 million in the same 
quarter of fiscal 2014.  Diluted earnings per share for the second quarter increased to $0.67 from $0.52 in the second quarter of fiscal 2014.  Net 
earnings attributable to the Company for the first six months of fiscal 2015 increased 19.9 percent to $351.9 million from $293.4 million in fiscal 2014.  
Diluted earnings per share for the same period were $1.30 in fiscal 2015, compared to $1.09 in the prior year. 
  
Adjusted net earnings attributable to the Company for the first six months of fiscal 2015 increased 25.3 percent to $367.5 million from $293.4 million 
in the same six months of fiscal 2014.  Adjusted diluted earnings per share for the same period increased 24.8 percent to $1.36 compared to $1.09 
last year. 
  
The non-GAAP adjusted financial measurements are presented to provide investors additional information to facilitate the comparison of past and 
present operations.  The non-GAAP adjusted financial measurements are used for internal purposes to evaluate the results of operations and to 
measure a component of certain employee incentive plans in fiscal year 2015.  Non-GAAP measurements are not intended to be a substitute for U.S. 
GAAP measurements in analyzing financial performance.  These non-GAAP measurements are not in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles and may be different from non-GAAP measures used by other companies. 
  

Adjusted net earnings and diluted net earnings per share exclude nonrecurring charges relating to the closure of the Stockton, California, 
manufacturing facility and the exit from international joint venture businesses in the first quarter of fiscal 2015.  The table below shows the 
calculations to reconcile from the non-GAAP adjusted measures to the GAAP measures. 
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Earnings before income taxes $ 275,731 $ 213,157 $ 539,768 $ 448,428 

®

(1) 

(1) 

(1)
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Six Months ended April 26, 2015 

  
Net sales for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 increased 1.5 percent to a record $2.28 billion from $2.24 billion in the second quarter of fiscal 2014.  
Net sales for the first six months of fiscal 2015 were also a record increasing 4.2 percent to $4.67 billion from $4.49 billion in the second quarter of 
fiscal 2014.  Tonnage increased 5.3 percent to 1.29 billion lbs. for the second quarter compared to 1.22 billion lbs. in the same quarter of last year, and 
increased 4.2 percent for the first six months of fiscal 2015 to 2.60 billion lbs. compared to 2.49 billion lbs. for the comparable period in fiscal 2014. 
  
Net sales and tonnage for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015 were enhanced by the following incremental sales of material 
product lines not included in the prior year: 
  
(in thousands) 

  
Continued sales gains of value-added products for Refrigerated Foods and Jennie-O Turkey Store also drove the increase for the second quarter.  
These gains offset lower export sales for the Company’s international businesses and the dissolution of the Precept Foods joint venture at the end 
of fiscal year 2014. 
  
Cost of products sold for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 decreased 2.5 percent to $1.82 billion compared to $1.87 billion in the second quarter last 
year, and increased 1.6 percent to $3.77 billion in the first six months compared to $3.71 billion in the prior fiscal year.  Lower pork input costs for the 
Refrigerated Foods, Grocery Products, and International & Other segments led to the decrease for the quarter.  For the second quarter and first six 
months, additional product costs from the acquisition of CytoSport and a $4.5 million charge for the closure of its production facility in Benicia, CA 
partially offset those reductions.  First six month results also reflect nonrecurring charges totaling $10.5 million related to the closure of the 
Stockton, California manufacturing facility. 
  
Gross profit for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015 was $459.6 million and $904.2 million, respectively, compared to $378.8 million 
and $777.4 million for the same periods last year.  Gross profit as a percentage of net sales increased to 20.2 percent for the second quarter of fiscal 
2015 from 16.9 percent in the same quarter of fiscal 2014, and increased to 19.3 percent for the first six months compared to 17.3 percent in fiscal 2014. 
Continued robust value-added product sales for both Refrigerated Foods and Jennie-O Turkey Store enhanced margin gains.  Lower pork input 
costs for Refrigerated Foods and favorable fuel costs for Jennie-O Turkey Store  
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also contributed to the higher margins.  Additionally, shipping and handling expenses for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015 have 
increased in the Specialty Foods and Jennie-O Turkey Store segments. 
  
The record results enjoyed in the first half of the year have well positioned the Company to deliver earnings growth for the fiscal year.  However, the 
Company expects Jennie-O Turkey Store to be challenged by the expected headwinds created from the impact of highly pathogenic avian influenza 
(HPAI) on the turkey supply chain.  Growth of value-added product lines in the Refrigerated Foods segment should offset lower pork operating 
margins.  The Grocery Products segment is expected to benefit from lower pork input costs.  Specialty Foods is positioned to deliver earnings 
increases in the second half of the year with the CytoSport business and the improving port conditions should provide some relief for the 
International segment in the second half of the year.  The Company expects the pending Applegate Foods, LLC (Applegate) acquisition to be 
neutral to earnings in fiscal 2015 after factoring in transaction costs and fair value adjustments.  The benefits of this acquisition should be fully 
realized in fiscal 2016. 

(In thousands, except per share amounts) Non-  
GAAP  

Adjusted  
Earnings 

Stockton  
Plant  

Closure 

International  
Joint Venture  

Businesses Exit 
GAAP  

Earnings 
Grocery Products $ 107,228 $ (10,526) $ 96,702 
Refrigerated Foods 215,989 215,989 
Jennie-O Turkey Store 167,616 167,616 
Specialty Foods 39,720 39,720 
International & Other 45,313 $  (9,546) 35,767 
Total segment operating profit 575,866 (10,526) (9,546) 555,794 
Net interest & investment expense (3,895) (3,895) 
General corporate expense (13,077) (13,077) 
Earnings before income taxes 558,894 (10,526) (9,546) 538,822 
Income taxes (191,358) 3,685 770 (186,903) 
Net earnings attributable to Hormel Foods 
Corporation $ 367,536 $ (6,841) $  (8,776) $ 351,919 
                  
Diluted net earnings per share $ 1.36 $ (0.03) $  (0.03) $ 1.30 

Three Months Six Months 
Segment Net Sales Tonnage (lbs.) Net Sales Tonnage (lbs.) 

Specialty Foods   $  82,655 35,082   $  143,648 62,737 
Grocery Products 24,121 15,862 41,578 30,075 
International & Other - - 5,866 3,130 



  
Selling, general and administrative expenses for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015 were $189.7 million and $370.0 million, 
respectively, compared to $165.8 million and $332.0 million in the prior year.  Selling, general and administrative expenses as a percentage of net sales 
increased to 8.3 percent and 7.9 percent of net sales in the second quarter and first six months of 2015 compared to 7.4 percent for both the second 
quarter and first six months in 2014.  Higher employee-related expenses and increased advertising expenses representing the additions from 
acquisitions led to the increase compared to last year.  The Company expects selling, general and administrative expenses to be between 7.5 percent 
and 7.8 percent for the full year in fiscal 2015. 
  
Equity in earnings of affiliates was $7.9 million and $9.5 million for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015, respectively, compared to 
$3.6 million and $8.3 million for the same periods last year.  Improved results from the Company’s MegaMex Foods joint venture reflecting incentive 
expense in the prior year more than offset overall lower results in the Company’s international joint ventures in the second quarter and pre-tax 
charges associated with the exit from international joint venture businesses totaling $9.5 million in the first quarter of fiscal 2015 compared to last 
year. 
  
The effective tax rate for both the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015 was 34.6 percent, compared to 34.0 percent and 34.2 percent for 
the second quarter and first six month of fiscal 2014.  The higher rate for the second quarter and first six months of the current year is predominantly 
due to the unfavorable impact of the exit from international joint venture businesses.  The Company expects a full-year effective tax rate between 
34.0 and 35.0 percent for fiscal 2015. 
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Segment Results 
  
Net sales and operating profits for each of the Company’s reportable segments are set forth below.  The Company is an integrated enterprise, 
characterized by substantial intersegment cooperation, cost allocations, and sharing of assets.  Therefore, the Company does not represent that 
these segments, if operated independently, would report the operating profit and other financial information shown below.  Additional segment 
financial information can be found in Note M of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q. 
  

  
Grocery Products 
  
The Grocery Products segment consists primarily of the processing, marketing, and sale of shelf-stable food products sold predominantly in the 
retail market.  This segment also includes the results from the Company’s MegaMex joint venture. 
  
Results for the Grocery Products segment for the second quarter and first six months compared to the prior year are as follows: 
  
  

Three Months Ended Six Months Ended 

(in thousands) 
April 26,  

2015 
April 27,  

2014 
%   

Change 
April 26,  

2015 
April 27,  

2014 
%   

Change 
Net Sales 

      

Grocery Products $ 397,265 $ 392,030 1.3 $ 807,016 $ 793,550 1.7 
Refrigerated Foods 1,022,511 1,111,244 (8.0) 2,166,726 2,239,665 (3.3) 
Jennie-O Turkey Store 438,912 380,425 15.4 878,931 779,825 12.7 
Specialty Foods 287,424 217,176 32.3 550,698 413,155 33.3 
International & Other 133,233 143,991 (7.5) 271,047 261,343 3.7 

Total $ 2,279,345 $ 2,244,866 1.5 $ 4,674,418 $ 4,487,538 4.2 
                          
Segment Operating Profit 

Grocery Products $ 55,327 $ 54,890 0.8 $ 96,702 $ 111,232 (13.1) 
Refrigerated Foods 114,837 75,397 52.3 215,989 160,696 34.4 
Jennie-O Turkey Store 74,596 52,808 41.3 167,616 112,353 49.2 
Specialty Foods 21,144 19,134 10.5 39,720 40,389 (1.7) 
International & Other 21,383 20,863 2.5 35,767 43,420 (17.6) 

Total segment operating profit $ 287,287 $ 223,092 28.8 $ 555,794 $ 468,090 18.7 
Net interest and investment 

expense (income) 1,966 3,399 (42.2) 3,895 5,320 (26.8) 
General corporate expense 9,824 7,152 37.4 13,077 16,068 (18.6) 
Noncontrolling interest 234 616 (62.0) 946 1,726 (45.2) 

                         
Earnings before income taxes $ 275,731 $ 213,157 29.4 $ 539,768 $ 448,428 20.4 

Three Months Six Months 

(in thousands) 
April 26,  

2015 
April 27,  

2014 
%   

Change 
April 26,  

2015 
April 27,  

2014 
%   

Change 
           



  
Additional MegaMex Foods products not included in the prior year contributed an incremental $24.1 million of net sales and 15.9 million lbs. for the 
second quarter, and $41.6 million of net sales and 30.1 million lbs. for the first six months of fiscal 2015 to top-line results.  Strong sales of the SPAM 
family of products also contributed to the improved net sales results.  Sales of Hormel Compleats microwave meals declined during the second 
quarter.  Sales of SKIPPY peanut butter products were also down due to pricing declines in the category. 
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Grocery Products continues to drive sales by leveraging the Company’s iconic brands in new and innovative ways.  The coast-to-coast 
SPAMERICAN  Tour kicked off in the second quarter, featuring the SPAM family of products. 
  
Segment profit results in the second quarter were aided by lower pork input costs and increased equity results, while the decline in segment profit in 
the first six months of fiscal 2015 was largely attributed to nonrecurring charges totaling $10.5 million related to the closure of the Stockton, 
California manufacturing facility. 
  
The Company anticipates strong segment profit growth in the second half of the year, benefitting from continued lower input costs and softer prior 
year comparisons. 
  
Refrigerated Foods 
  
The Refrigerated Foods segment includes the Hormel Refrigerated operating segment and the Affiliated Business Units.  This segment consists 
primarily of the processing, marketing, and sale of branded and unbranded pork and beef products for retail, foodservice, and fresh product 
customers.  The Affiliated Business Units include the Farmer John, Burke Corporation, and Dan’s Prize businesses.  Through fiscal 2014, this 
segment also included Precept Foods, LLC, a 50.01 percent owned joint venture that was dissolved at the end of the fiscal year. 
  
Results for the Refrigerated Foods segment for the second quarter and first six months compared to the prior year are as follows: 
  
  

  
Retail sales gains were led by Hormel pepperoni and Hormel Gatherings party trays for both the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015.  
Foodservice sales of Hormel Bacon 1 fully cooked bacon and Hormel pizza toppings also experienced gains for both the second quarter and first six 
months.  A new Austin Blues competition-style barbecue meats line was launched in the second quarter in the foodservice channel as the Company 
continues to drive innovation in the category.  Despite robust value-added sales, sales declined overall in the second quarter primarily due to price 
decreases on items such as bacon, driven by declining pork markets, and the dissolution of the Precept Foods joint venture at the end of fiscal 2014. 
  
Strong segment profit results were driven by lower input costs along with strong sales growth of value-added products.  Both the value-added retail 
and foodservice businesses as well as the Affiliated Business Units posted significant segment profit gains compared to the prior year. 
  
Entering the second half of the year, the Company expects to continue to benefit from lower input costs.  Additionally, value-added sales are 
expected to continue to enhance both top and bottom-line results, although year-over-year growth is expected to be less robust in light of difficult 
comparisons to the prior year’s strong third quarter.  Additional Applegate sales are expected towards the end of the third quarter, but the benefit of 
that business will be offset by expenses and fees related to the transaction.  The benefits of this acquisition should be fully realized in fiscal 2016. 
  
Jennie-O Turkey Store 
  
The Jennie-O Turkey Store (JOTS) segment consists primarily of the processing, marketing, and sale of branded and unbranded turkey products for 
retail, foodservice, and fresh product customers. 
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Results for the JOTS segment for the second quarter and first six months compared to the prior year are as follows: 
  
  

Net sales $ 397,265 $ 392,030 1.3 $ 807,016 $ 793,550 1.7 
Tonnage (lbs.) 219,868 212,428 3.5 450,795 440,384 2.4 
Segment profit $ 55,327 $ 54,890 0.8 $ 96,702 $ 111,232 (13.1) 

Three Months Six Months 

(in thousands) 
April 26,  

2015 April 27, 2014 
%   

Change 
April 26,  

2015 
April 27,  

2014 
%   

Change 
Net sales $ 1,022,511 $ 1,111,244 (8.0) $ 2,166,726 $ 2,239,665 (3.3) 
Tonnage (lbs.) 584,315 578,101 1.1 1,187,022 1,196,620 (0.8) 
Segment profit $ 114,837 $ 75,397 52.3 $ 215,989 $ 160,696 34.4 

Three Months Six Months 

(in thousands) 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
%  

Change 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
%  

Change 
           

TM



  
Net sales growth for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 was primarily driven by robust sales of value-added products compared to the prior year.  
Sales growth was led by strong sales of Jennie-O lean ground turkey and Jennie-O rotisserie turkey for both the second quarter and first six months 
of fiscal 2015. 
  
In addition to improved value-added product results, segment profit for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 benefitted from improved live production 
performance.  Lower feed and fuel costs also contributed to the improved performance as compared to the higher costs seen in the prior year due to 
the extended harsh winter. 
  
In late March, the Midwest began experiencing significant outbreaks of HPAI impacting farms scheduled to supply Jennie-O Turkey Store with 
turkeys, which caused a modest financial impact in the second quarter.  Looking ahead in fiscal 2015, the Company expects Jennie-O Turkey Store to 
be significantly challenged due to the impacts of HPAI on the turkey supply chain.  The number of birds through the Company’s facilities was 
reduced at the beginning of the third quarter as a result of the impact of HPAI on bird supply.  Rationalization of future sales promotions and 
product mix is taking place to properly manage the available meat supplies as prices are expected to increase as additional farms are identified. 
  
Specialty Foods 
  
The Specialty Foods segment includes the Diamond Crystal Brands (DCB), CytoSport/Century Foods International, and Hormel Specialty Products 
(HSP) operating segments.  This segment consists of the packaging and sale of private label shelf stable products, nutritional products, sugar, and 
condiments to industrial, retail, and foodservice customers.  This segment also includes the processing, marketing, and sale of nutritional food 
products and supplements to hospitals, nursing homes, and other marketers of nutritional products. 
  
Results for the Specialty Foods segment for the second quarter and first six months compared to the prior year are as follows: 
  
  

  
The comparative sales results for the second quarter and first six months reflect the addition of the CytoSport business acquired on August 11, 
2014, which contributed $82.6 million of net sales and 35.0 million lbs. for the second quarter and $143.6 million of net sales and 62.7 million lbs. for 
the first six months for Specialty Foods in fiscal 2015. 
  
The improved segment profit results for the second quarter of fiscal 2015 were primarily driven by the incremental CytoSport results, despite a $4.5 
million charge due to the closure of its production facility in Benicia, C.A. 
  
Specialty Foods is positioned for strong performance in the second half of the year as the Company has realized synergies and distribution gains 
while igniting innovation to build the Muscle Milk brand to enhance segment growth. 
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International & Other 
  
The International & Other segment includes the Hormel Foods International operating segment, which manufactures, markets, and sells Company 
products internationally.  This segment also includes the results from the Company’s international joint ventures and miscellaneous corporate sales. 
  
Results for the International & Other segment for the second quarter and first six months compared to the prior year are as follows: 
  
  

  
Lower sales in the second quarter were primarily due to declines in exports which were hampered by port challenges and demand pressure from the 
strong US dollar.  Continued strong growth in China partially offset the decline.  The additional China based SKIPPY peanut butter sales also 
enhanced top-line results for the first six months of fiscal 2015, contributing an incremental $5.9 million of net sales and 3.1 million lbs. 
  

Net sales   $ 438,912   $ 380,425 15.4   $ 878,931   $ 779,825 12.7 
Tonnage (lbs.) 229,144 201,819 13.5 460,357 413,431 11.4 
Segment profit   $ 74,596   $ 52,808 41.3   $ 167,616   $ 112,353 49.2 

Three Months Six Months 

(in thousands) 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
%  

Change 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
%  

Change 
Net sales   $ 287,424   $ 217,176 32.3   $ 550,698   $ 413,155 33.3 
Tonnage (lbs.) 177,038 151,028 17.2 345,910 295,243 17.2 
Segment profit   $ 21,144   $ 19,134 10.5   $ 39,720   $ 40,389 (1.7) 

Three Months Six Months 

(in thousands) 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
%  

Change 
April 26, 

2015 
April 27, 

2014 
%  

Change 
Net sales   $ 133,233   $ 143,991 (7.5)   $ 271,047   $ 261,343 3.7 
Tonnage (lbs.) 78,928 81,065 (2.6) 151,259 145,878 3.7 
Segment profit   $ 21,383   $ 20,863 2.5   $ 35,767   $ 43,420 (17.6) 



For segment profit results, improved royalties and positive results from the Company’s international joint ventures for the second quarter were 
partially offset by reduced exports due to the port challenges.  For the first six months, International & Other segment profits were also negatively 
impacted by nonrecurring charges of $9.5 million related to the exit from international joint venture businesses. 
  
On March 16, 2015, the Company purchased the remaining 19.29% ownership interest in its Shanghai Hormel Foods Corporation joint venture from 
the minority partner Shanghai Shangshi Meat Products Co. Ltd., resulting in 100.0% ownership of that business at the end of the second quarter. 
  
Looking ahead, the Company expects the International & Other segment to deliver growth with improved export sales and solid results from the 
Company’s China business. 
  
Unallocated Income and Expenses 
  
The Company does not allocate investment income, interest expense, and interest income to its segments when measuring performance.  The 
Company also retains various other income and unallocated expenses at corporate.  Equity in earnings of affiliates is included in segment operating 
profit; however, earnings attributable to the Company’s noncontrolling interests are excluded.  These items are included in the segment table for the 
purpose of reconciling segment results to earnings before income taxes. 
  
Net interest and investment expense (income) for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015 was a net expense of $2.0 million and $3.9 
million, respectively, compared to $3.4 million and $5.3 million for the second quarter and six months of fiscal 2014.  Interest expense was flat with the 
prior year at $3.1 and $6.2 million for the second quarter and first six months, respectively. 
  
General corporate expense for the second quarter and first six months of fiscal 2015 was $9.8 million and $13.1 million, respectively, compared to $7.2 
million and $16.1 million for the comparable periods of fiscal 2014.  The increased expense for the second quarter was primarily due to increased 
salary-related expenses while the decreased expense for the first six months reflects the miscellaneous sale of assets and sales and use tax refunds. 
  
Net earnings attributable to the Company’s noncontrolling interests were $0.2 million and $0.9 million for the second quarter and first six months of 
fiscal 2015, respectively, compared to $0.6 million and $1.7 million for the comparable periods of fiscal 2014.  The change reflects the dissolution of 
the Company’s Precept Foods joint venture at the end of fiscal 2014. 
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Related Party Transactions 
  
There has been no material change in the information regarding Related Party Transactions that was disclosed in the Company’s Annual Report on 
Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 26, 2014. 
  

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
  
Cash and cash equivalents were $624.4 million at the end of the second quarter of fiscal year 2015 compared to $499.3 million at the end of the 
comparable fiscal 2014 period. 
  
Cash provided by operating activities was $445.7 million in the first six months of fiscal 2015 compared to $275.0 million in the same period of fiscal 
2014.   Increased earnings and overall favorable changes in working capital were the primary drivers of the improved cash flows in fiscal 2015. 
  
Cash used in investing activities was $38.6 million in the first six months of fiscal 2015 compared to $112.4 million in the comparable quarter of fiscal 
2014.  The first six months of 2014 include $41.5 million spent to purchase the China based SKIPPY peanut butter business in Weifang, China from 
Unilever United States Inc.  Capital expenditures in the first six months of fiscal 2015 have decreased to $55.0 million from $77.1 million in the 
comparable six months of fiscal 2014.  The Company currently estimates its fiscal 2015 capital expenditures will be approximately $165.0 to $180.0 
million. 
  
Cash used in financing activities was $115.2 million in the first six months of fiscal 2015 compared to $97.1 million in the same period of fiscal 2014.  
On March 16, 2015, the Company purchased the remaining 19.29% ownership interest in its Shanghai Hormel Foods Corporation joint venture from 
the minority partner Shanghai Shangshi Meat Products Co. Ltd., resulting in 100.0% ownership of that business at the end of the second quarter.  
The interest was purchased with $11.7 million in cash, along with the transfer of land use rights and buildings held by the joint venture.  The 
Company did not repurchase any of its common stock in the first six months of fiscal 2015 compared to $15.1 million purchased in the first six 
months of the prior year.  For additional information pertaining to the Company’s share repurchase plans or programs, see Part II, Item 2 
“Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.” 
  
Cash dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders continue to be an ongoing financing activity for the Company.  Dividends paid in the first six 
months of fiscal 2015 were $118.7 million compared to $97.6 million in the comparable period of fiscal 2014.  For fiscal 2015, the annual dividend rate 
has been increased to $1.00 per share, representing the 49th consecutive annual dividend increase.  The Company has paid dividends for 347 
consecutive quarters and expects to continue doing so. 
  
The Company is required, by certain covenants in its debt agreements, to maintain specified levels of financial ratios and financial position.  At the 
end of the second quarter of fiscal 2015, the Company was in compliance with all of these debt covenants. 
  
Cash flows from operating activities continue to provide the Company with its principal source of liquidity.  The Company does not anticipate a 
significant risk to cash flows from this source in the foreseeable future because the Company operates in a relatively stable industry and has a 



balanced business model that provides the Company the ability to navigate challenges and continue to deliver consistent growth over the long 
term. 
  
Maximizing the value returned to shareholders through quarterly dividend payments remains a priority for the Company in fiscal 2015.  The 
Company seeks strategic acquisitions to generate growth, as evidenced by the recent announcement of the pending Applegate acquisition, and will 
continue to invest in product innovations.  Capital spending to enhance and expand current operations will also be a significant cash outflow for 
fiscal 2015. 
  
Contractual Obligations and Commercial Commitments 
  
The Company records income taxes in accordance with the provisions of ASC 740, Income Taxes.  The Company is unable to determine its 
contractual obligations by year related to this pronouncement, as the ultimate amount or timing of settlement of its reserves for income taxes cannot 
be reasonably estimated.  The total liability for unrecognized tax benefits, including interest and penalties, at April 26, 2015, was $25.3 million. 
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On May 26, 2015, subsequent to the end of the second quarter, the Company entered into a definitive agreement to acquire Applegate for a 
preliminary purchase price of $775 million in cash.  The Company expects to close the acquisition within 60 days subject to regulatory approvals.  
The purchase price is expected to be funded by the Company with existing cash on hand generated from operations and short-term financing.  There 
have been no other material changes to the information regarding the Company’s future contractual financial obligations that was disclosed in the 
Company’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended October 26, 2014. 
  
Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements 
  
As of April 26, 2015, and October 26, 2014, the Company had $42.0 million and $41.7 million, respectively, of standby letters of credit issued on its 
behalf.  The standby letters of credit are primarily related to the Company’s self-insured workers compensation programs.  However, that amount 
also includes $3.5 million of revocable standby letters of credit for obligations of an affiliated party that may arise under workers compensation 
claims.  Letters of credit are not reflected in the Company’s Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. 
  
  

FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
  
This report contains “forward-looking” information within the meaning of the federal securities laws.  The “forward-looking” information may 
include statements concerning the Company’s outlook for the future as well as other statements of beliefs, future plans, strategies, or anticipated 
events and similar expressions concerning matters that are not historical facts. 
  
The Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 (the Reform Act) provides a “safe harbor” for forward-looking statements to encourage 
companies to provide prospective information. The Company is filing this cautionary statement in connection with the Reform Act.  When used in 
this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, the Company’s Annual Report to Stockholders, other filings by the Company with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission (the Commission), the Company’s press releases, and oral statements made by the Company’s representatives, the words or phrases 
“should result,” “believe,” “intend,” “plan,” “are expected to,” “targeted,” “will continue,” “will approximate,” “is anticipated,” “estimate,” 
“project,” or similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements within the meaning of the Reform Act.  Such statements are 
subject to certain risks and uncertainties that could cause actual results to differ materially from historical earnings and those anticipated or 
projected. 
  
In connection with the “safe harbor” provisions of the Reform Act, the Company is identifying risk factors that could affect financial performance 
and cause the Company’s actual results to differ materially from opinions or statements expressed with respect to future periods.  The discussion of 
risk factors in Part II, Item 1A of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains certain cautionary statements regarding the Company’s business, 
which should be considered by investors and others.  Such risk factors should be considered in conjunction with any discussions of operations or 
results by the Company or its representatives, including any forward-looking discussion, as well as comments contained in press releases, 
presentations to securities analysts or investors, or other communications by the Company. 
  
In making these statements, the Company is not undertaking, and specifically declines to undertake, any obligation to address or update each or 
any factor in future filings or communications regarding the Company’s business or results, and is not undertaking to address how any of these 
factors may have caused changes to discussions or information contained in previous filings or communications. Though the Company has 
attempted to list comprehensively these important cautionary risk factors, the Company wishes to caution investors and others that other factors 
may in the future prove to be important in affecting the Company’s business or results of operations. 
  
The Company cautions readers not to place undue reliance on forward-looking statements, which represent current views as of the date made.  
Forward-looking statements are inherently at risk to any changes in the national and worldwide economic environment, which could include, among 
other things, economic conditions, political developments, currency exchange rates, interest and inflation rates, accounting standards, taxes, and 
laws and regulations affecting the Company and its markets. 
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Item 3.  Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk 
  
Hog Markets:  The Company’s earnings are affected by fluctuations in the live hog market.  To minimize the impact on earnings, and to ensure a 
steady supply of quality hogs, the Company has entered into contracts with producers for the purchase of hogs at formula-based prices over 
periods of up to 10 years.  Purchased hogs under contract accounted for 94 percent and 97 percent of the total hogs purchased by the Company 
during the first six months of fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.  The majority of these contracts use market-based formulas based on hog futures, 
hog primal values, or industry reported hog markets.  Other contracts use a formula based on the cost of production, which can fluctuate 
independently from hog markets.  Under normal, long-term market conditions, changes in the cash hog market are offset by proportional changes in 
primal values.  Therefore, a hypothetical 10 percent change in the cash hog market would have had an immaterial effect on the Company’s results of 
operations. 
  
Certain procurement contracts allow for future hog deliveries (firm commitments) to be forward priced.  The Company generally hedges these firm 
commitments by using hog futures contracts.  These futures contracts are designated and accounted for as fair value hedges.  The change in the 
market value of such futures contracts is highly effective at offsetting changes in price movements of the hedged item, and the Company evaluates 
the effectiveness of the contracts at least quarterly.  Changes in the fair value of the futures contracts, along with the gain or loss on the firm 
commitment, are marked-to-market through earnings and are recorded on the Consolidated Statements of Financial Position as a current asset and 
liability, respectively.  The fair value of the Company’s open futures contracts as of April 26, 2015, was $2.2 million compared to $0.6 million as of 
October 26, 2014. 
  
The Company measures its market risk exposure on its hog futures contracts using a sensitivity analysis, which considers a hypothetical 10 percent 
change in market prices.  A 10 percent increase in market prices would have negatively impacted the fair value of the Company’s April 26, 2015, open 
contracts by $2.0 million, which in turn would lower the Company’s future cost of purchased hogs by a similar amount. 
  
Turkey and Hog Production Costs:  The Company raises or contracts for live turkeys and hogs to meet some of its raw material supply 
requirements.  Production costs in raising turkeys and hogs are subject primarily to fluctuations in feed prices, and to a lesser extent, fuel costs.  
Under normal, long-term market conditions, changes in the cost to produce turkeys and hogs are offset by proportional changes in their respective 
markets. 
  
To reduce the Company’s exposure to changes in grain prices, the Company utilizes a hedge program to offset the fluctuation in the Company’s 
future direct grain purchases.  This program currently utilizes corn futures for JOTS, and these contracts are accounted for under cash flow hedge 
accounting.  The open contracts are reported at their fair value with an unrealized loss of $(7.5) million, before tax, on the Consolidated Statements of 
Financial Position as of April 26, 2015, compared to an unrealized loss of $(11.3) million, before tax, as of October 26, 2014. 
  
The Company measures its market risk exposure on its grain futures contracts using a sensitivity analysis, which considers a hypothetical 10 
percent change in the market prices for grain.  A 10 percent decrease in the market price for grain would have negatively impacted the fair value of 
the Company’s April 26, 2015, open grain contracts by $8.1 million, which in turn would lower the Company’s future cost on purchased grain by a 
similar amount. 
  
Long-Term Debt:  A principal market risk affecting the Company is the exposure to changes in interest rates on the Company’s fixed-rate, long-term 
debt.  Market risk for fixed-rate, long-term debt is estimated as the potential increase in fair value, resulting from a hypothetical 10 percent decrease 
in interest rates, and amounts to approximately $3.3 million.  The fair value of the Company’s long-term debt was estimated using discounted future 
cash flows based on the Company’s incremental borrowing rate for similar types of borrowing arrangements. 
  
Investments:  The Company holds trading securities as part of a rabbi trust to fund certain supplemental executive retirement plans and deferred 
income plans.  As of April 26, 2015, the balance of these securities totaled $120.3 million.  A majority of these securities represent fixed income 
funds.  The Company is subject to market risk due to fluctuations in the value of the remaining investments, as unrealized gains and losses 
associated with these securities are included in the Company’s net earnings on a mark-to-market basis.  A 10 percent decline in 
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the value of the investments not held in fixed income funds would have a direct negative impact to the Company’s pretax earnings of approximately 
$4.1 million, while a 10 percent increase in value would have a positive impact of the same amount. 
  
International:  While the Company does have international operations and operates in international markets, it considers its market risk in such 
activities to be immaterial. 
  
  
Item 4.  Controls and Procedures 
  
(a)               Disclosure Controls and Procedures. 

As of the end of the period covered by this report (the Evaluation Date), the Company carried out an evaluation, under the supervision and 
with the participation of management, including the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveness of the design 
and operation of its disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the 
Exchange Act)).  In designing and evaluating the disclosure controls and procedures, management recognized that any controls and 
procedures, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable assurance of achieving the desired control objectives.  
Based on that evaluation, the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of the Evaluation Date, the 
Company’s disclosure controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information the Company is required to 
disclose in reports it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized, and reported within the time periods 



specified in Commission rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and communicated to the Company’s management, 
including its Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 

  
(b)               Internal Controls. 

During the first six months of fiscal year 2015, there has been no change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined 
in Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s internal 
control over financial reporting. 

  
  

PART II - OTHER INFORMATION 
  
Item 1.  Legal Proceedings 
  
The Company is a party to various legal proceedings related to the on-going operation of its business, including claims both by and against the 
Company.  At any time, such proceedings typically involve claims related to product liability, contract disputes, wage and hour laws, employment 
practices, or other actions brought by employees, consumers, competitors, or suppliers.  The Company establishes accruals for its potential 
exposure, as appropriate, for claims against the Company when losses become probable and reasonably estimable.  However, future developments 
or settlements are uncertain and may require the Company to change such accruals as proceedings progress.  Resolution of any currently known 
matters, either individually or in the aggregate, is not expected to have a material effect on the Company’s financial condition, results of operations, 
or liquidity. 
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Item 1A.  Risk Factors 
  
The Company’s operations are subject to the general risks of the food industry. 
  
The food products manufacturing industry is subject to the risks posed by: 
  
§                  food spoilage; 
§                  food contamination caused by disease-producing organisms or pathogens, such as Listeria monocytogenes, Salmonella, and pathogenic E 

coli.; 
§                  food allergens; 
§                  nutritional and health-related concerns; 
§                  federal, state, and local food processing controls; 
§                  consumer product liability claims; 
§                  product tampering; and 
§                  the possible unavailability and/or expense of liability insurance. 
  
The pathogens which may cause food contamination are found generally in livestock and in the environment and thus may be present in our 
products as a result of food processing.  These pathogens also can be introduced to our products as a result of improper handling by customers or 
consumers.  We do not have control over handling procedures once our products have been shipped for distribution.  If one or more of these risks 
were to materialize, the Company’s brand and business reputation could be negatively impacted.  In addition, revenues could decrease, costs of 
doing business could increase, and the Company’s operating results could be adversely affected. 
  
Deterioration of economic conditions could harm the Company’s business. 
  
The Company’s business may be adversely affected by changes in national or global economic conditions, including inflation, interest rates, 
availability of capital markets, energy availability and costs (including fuel surcharges), and the effects of governmental initiatives to manage 
economic conditions.  Decreases in consumer spending rates and shifts in consumer product preferences could also negatively impact the 
Company. 
  
Volatility in financial markets and the deterioration of national and global economic conditions could impact the Company’s operations as follows: 
  
§                  The financial stability of our customers and suppliers may be compromised, which could result in additional bad debts for the Company or non-

performance by suppliers; and 
§                  The value of our investments in debt and equity securities may decline, including most significantly the Company’s trading securities held as 

part of a rabbi trust to fund supplemental executive retirement plans and deferred income plans, and the Company’s assets held in pension 
plans. 

  
The Company also utilizes hedging programs to manage its exposure to various commodity market risks, which qualify for hedge accounting for 
financial reporting purposes.  Volatile fluctuations in market conditions could cause these instruments to become ineffective, which could require 
any gains or losses associated with these instruments to be reported in the Company’s earnings each period.  These instruments may also limit the 
Company’s ability to benefit from market gains if commodity prices become more favorable than those that have been secured under the Company’s 
hedging programs. 
  
Additionally, if a highly pathogenic disease outbreak developed in the United States, it may negatively impact the national economy, demand for 
Company products, and/or the Company’s workforce availability, and the Company’s financial results could suffer.  The Company has developed 



contingency plans to address infectious disease scenarios and the potential impact on its operations, and will continue to update these plans as 
necessary.  There can be no assurance given, however, that these plans will be effective in eliminating the negative effects of any such diseases on 
the Company’s operating results. 
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Fluctuations in commodity prices of pork, poultry, feed ingredients, avocados, peanuts, energy, and whey could harm the Company’s earnings. 
  
The Company’s results of operations and financial condition are largely dependent upon the cost and supply of pork, poultry, feed grains, 
avocados, peanuts, and whey as well as energy costs and the selling prices for many of our products, which are determined by constantly changing 
market forces of supply and demand. 
  
The live hog industry has evolved to very large, vertically integrated operations operating under long-term supply agreements. This has resulted in 
fewer hogs being available on the cash spot market.  Additionally, overall hog production in the U.S. has declined.  The decrease in the supply of 
hogs could diminish the utilization of harvest and production facilities and increase the cost of the raw materials they produce.  Consequently, the 
Company uses long-term supply contracts based on market-based formulas or the cost of production to ensure a stable supply of raw materials 
while minimizing extreme fluctuations in costs over the long term.  This may result, in the short-term, in costs for live hogs that are higher than the 
cash spot market depending on the relationship of the cash spot market to contract prices.  Market-based pricing on certain product lines, and lead 
time required to implement pricing adjustments, may prevent all or part of these cost increases from being recovered, and these higher costs could 
adversely affect our short-term financial results. 
  
Jennie-O Turkey Store raises turkeys and also contracts with turkey growers to meet its raw material requirements for whole birds and processed 
turkey products.  Additionally, the Company owns various hog raising facilities that supplement its supply of raw materials.  Results in these 
operations are affected by the cost and supply of feed grains, which fluctuate due to climate conditions, production forecasts, and supply and 
demand conditions at local, regional, national, and worldwide levels.  The Company attempts to manage some of its short-term exposure to 
fluctuations in feed prices by forward buying, using futures contracts, and pursuing pricing advances.  However, these strategies may not be 
adequate to overcome sustained increases in market prices due to alternate uses for feed grains or other changes in these market conditions. 
  
International trade barriers and other restrictions could result in less foreign demand and increased domestic supply of proteins which could lower 
prices. 
  
Outbreaks of disease among livestock and poultry flocks could harm the Company’s revenues and operating margins. 
  
The Company is subject to risks associated with the outbreak of disease in pork and beef livestock, and poultry flocks, including Bovine 
Spongiform Encephalopathy (BSE), pneumo-virus, Porcine Circovirus 2 (PCV2), Porcine Reproduction & Respiratory Syndrome (PRRS), Foot-and-
Mouth Disease (FMD), Porcine Epidemic Diarrhea Virus (PEDv), and Highly Pathogenic Avian Influenza (HPAI).  The outbreak of disease could 
adversely affect the Company’s supply of raw materials, increase the cost of production, reduce utilization of the Company’s harvest facilities, and 
reduce operating margins.  Additionally, the outbreak of disease may hinder the Company’s ability to market and sell products both domestically 
and internationally.  Most recently, HPAI has impacted the Company’s Jennie-O Turkey Store operations and several of the Company’s 
independent turkey suppliers.  The spread of HPAI in the industry continues to be a concern and will reduce volume through the Company’s turkey 
facilities through at least the second half of the year.  The Company has developed business continuity plans for various disease scenarios and will 
continue to update these plans as necessary.  There can be no assurance given, however, that these plans will be effective in eliminating the 
negative effects of any such diseases on the Company’s operating results. 
  
Market demand for the Company’s products may fluctuate. 
  
The Company faces competition from producers of alternative meats and protein sources, including pork, beef, turkey, chicken, fish, peanut butter, 
and whey.  The bases on which the Company competes include: 
  
§                 price; 
§                  product quality and attributes; 
§                  brand identification; 
§                  breadth of product line; and 
§                  customer service. 
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Demand for the Company’s products is also affected by competitors’ promotional spending, the effectiveness of the Company’s advertising and 
marketing programs, and consumer perceptions.  Trends within the food industry change often, and failure to identify and react to changes in these 
trends could lead to, among other things, reduced demand and price reductions for the Company’s brands and products.  The Company may be 
unable to compete successfully on any or all of these bases in the future. 
  
The Company’s operations are subject to the general risks associated with acquisitions. 
  
The Company has made several acquisitions in recent years, including the recently announced acquisition of Applegate planned for the second half 



of fiscal 2015, and regularly reviews opportunities for strategic growth through acquisitions.  Potential risks associated with acquisitions include the 
inability to integrate new operations successfully, the diversion of management’s attention from other business concerns, the potential loss of key 
employees and customers of the acquired companies, the possible assumption of unknown liabilities, potential disputes with the sellers, potential 
impairment charges if purchase assumptions are not achieved or market conditions decline, and the inherent risks in entering markets or lines of 
business in which the Company has limited or no prior experience.  Any or all of these risks could impact the Company’s financial results and 
business reputation.  In addition, acquisitions outside the United States may present unique challenges and increase the Company’s exposure to 
the risks associated with foreign operations. 
  
The Company’s operations are subject to the general risks of litigation. 
  
The Company is involved on an ongoing basis in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business.  Trends in litigation may include class actions 
involving employees, consumers, competitors, suppliers, shareholders, or injured persons, and claims relating to product liability, contract disputes, 
intellectual property, advertising, labeling, wage and hour laws, employment practices, or environmental matters.  Litigation trends and the outcome 
of litigation cannot be predicted with certainty and adverse litigation trends and outcomes could adversely affect the Company’s financial results. 
  
The Company is subject to the loss of a material contract. 
  
The Company is a party to several supply, distribution, contract packaging, and other material contracts.  The loss of a material contract could 
adversely affect the Company’s financial results. 
  
Government regulation, present and future, exposes the Company to potential sanctions and compliance costs that could adversely affect the 
Company’s business. 
  
The Company’s operations are subject to extensive regulation by the U.S. Department of Homeland Security, the U.S. Department of Agriculture, 
the U.S. Food and Drug Administration, federal and state taxing authorities, and other state and local authorities that oversee workforce immigration 
laws, tax regulations, animal welfare, food safety standards, and the processing, packaging, storage, distribution, advertising, and labeling of the 
Company’s products.  The Company’s manufacturing facilities and products are subject to continuous inspection by federal, state, and local 
authorities.  Claims or enforcement proceedings could be brought against the Company in the future.  The availability of government inspectors due 
to a government furlough could also cause disruption to the Company’s manufacturing facilities.  Additionally, the Company is subject to new or 
modified laws, regulations, and accounting standards.  The Company’s failure or inability to comply with such requirements could subject the 
Company to civil remedies, including fines, injunctions, recalls, or seizures, as well as potential criminal sanctions. 
  
The Company is subject to stringent environmental regulation and potentially subject to environmental litigation, proceedings, and 
investigations. 
  
The Company’s past and present business operations and ownership and operation of real property are subject to stringent federal, state, and local 
environmental laws and regulations pertaining to the discharge of materials into the environment, and the handling and disposition of wastes 
(including solid and hazardous wastes) or otherwise relating to protection of the environment.  Compliance with these laws and regulations, and the 
ability to comply with any modifications to these laws and regulations, is material to the Company’s business.  New matters or sites may be 
identified in the future that will require additional investigation, assessment, or expenditures.  In addition, some of the Company’s facilities have 
been in operation for many years and, over time, the Company and other  
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prior operators of these facilities may have generated and disposed of wastes that now may be considered hazardous.  Future discovery of 
contamination of property underlying or in the vicinity of the Company’s present or former properties or manufacturing facilities and/or waste 
disposal sites could require the Company to incur additional expenses.  The occurrence of any of these events, the implementation of new laws and 
regulations, or stricter interpretation of existing laws or regulations, could adversely affect the Company’s financial results. 
  
The Company’s foreign operations pose additional risks to the Company’s business. 
  
The Company operates its business and markets its products internationally.  The Company’s foreign operations are subject to the risks described 
above, as well as risks related to fluctuations in currency values, foreign currency exchange controls, compliance with foreign laws, compliance with 
applicable U.S. laws, including the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act, and other economic or political uncertainties.  International sales are subject to 
risks related to general economic conditions, imposition of tariffs, quotas, trade barriers and other restrictions, enforcement of remedies in foreign 
jurisdictions and compliance with applicable foreign laws, and other economic and political uncertainties.  All of these risks could result in increased 
costs or decreased revenues, which could adversely affect the Company’s financial results. 
  
Deterioration of labor relations or increases in labor costs could harm the Company’s business. 
  
As of April 26, 2015, the Company had approximately 20,600 employees worldwide, of which approximately 5,300 were represented by labor unions, 
principally the United Food and Commercial Workers Union.  A significant increase in labor costs or a deterioration of labor relations at any of the 
Company’s facilities or contracted hog processing facilities that results in work slowdowns or stoppages could harm the Company’s financial 
results.  Union contracts at the Company’s facilities in Algona, Iowa; Atlanta, Georgia; Austin, Minnesota; Beloit, Wisconsin; and Fremont, 
Nebraska will expire during fiscal 2015, covering a combined total of approximately 3,300 employees.  Negotiations at these facilities have not yet 
been initiated.  A union contract at the Company’s facility in Vernon, California expired in April 2015, and the Company negotiated a new contract 
for this facility during the second quarter. 
  

 



Item 2.  Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds 
  

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities in the Second Quarter of Fiscal 2015 
  

  
The 9 shares repurchased during the second quarter, other than through publicly announced plans or programs, represent purchases for a 

Company employee award program. 
  
On January 31, 2013, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had authorized the repurchase of 10,000,000 shares of its 

common stock with no expiration date.  The repurchase program was authorized at a meeting of the Company’s Board of Directors on 
January 29, 2013. 
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Item 6.  Exhibits 
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SIGNATURES 
  
  
  
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the 
undersigned thereunto duly authorized. 
  
  
  

Period 

Total 
Number of 

Shares 
Purchased

Average 
Price Paid 
Per Share 

Total Number of 
Shares Purchased as 

Part of Publicly 
Announced Plans 

or Programs

Maximum Number 
of Shares that May 
Yet Be Purchased 
Under the Plans or 

Programs
January 26, 2015 –  

March 1, 2015 9 $      51.72 - 8,187,700 
March 2, 2015 –  

March 29, 2015 - - - 8,187,700 
March 30, 2015 –  

April 26, 2015 - - - 8,187,700 
Total 9 $      51.72 - 

2.1 Purchase Agreement by and among Hormel Foods Corporation, Applegate Farms, LLC, the management sellers listed on 
Exhibit A, Weiser, Inc., Stephen M. McDonnell, SPC Partners IV, L.P., K&E Investment Partners, L.P. and Applegate 
Investment Corporation, dated May 26, 2015 (Exhibits identified in the agreement have been omitted pursuant to Item 601(b)
(2) of Regulation S-K and will be furnished to the Commission upon request.) 

    
31.1 Certification Required Under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
    
31.2 Certification Required Under Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
    
32.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350 as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 
    
101.INS XBRL Instance Document 
    
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document 
    
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document 
    
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document 
    
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Labels Linkbase Document 
    
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document 

HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
(Registrant) 

      
      

1 2 2 

1

2
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EXHIBIT 2.1 
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  

PURCHASE AGREEMENT 
  

by and among 
  

HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION, 
  

APPLEGATE FARMS, LLC, 
  

THE MANAGEMENT SELLERS LISTED ON EXHIBIT A, 
  

WEISER, INC., 
  

STEPHEN M. MCDONNELL, 
  

SPC PARTNERS IV, L.P., 
  

K&E INVESTMENT PARTNERS, L.P. and 
  

APPLEGATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION 
  

Dated May 26, 2015 
  

 

  

      
Date: June 5, 2015 By  /s/ JODY H. FERAGEN             

JODY H. FERAGEN 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Director 
(Principal Financial Officer) 

      
Date: June 5, 2015 By /s/ JAMES N. SHEEHAN     

JAMES N. SHEEHAN 
Vice President and Controller 
(Principal Accounting Officer) 

Section 2: EX-2.1 (EX-2.1) 

ARTICLE I 
  

DEFINITIONS 
     
SECTION 1.1 Defined Terms 1
     

ARTICLE II 
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PURCHASE AGREEMENT 

  
This PURCHASE AGREEMENT (as amended or modified from time to time, this “Agreement”), dated as of 

May 26, 2015, is by and among (i) Hormel Foods Corporation, a Delaware corporation (“Buyer”), (ii) Applegate Farms, LLC, a 
Delaware limited liability company (the “Company”), (iii) the Management Sellers (as defined below), Weiser, Inc., a New Jersey 
corporation (“Weiser”), Stephen M. McDonnell (together with the Management Sellers and Weiser, the “Unit Sellers”), SPC 
Partners IV, L.P. (“SPC”) and K&E Investment Partners, L.P. (together with SPC, the “Blocker Sellers” and, together with the 
Unit Sellers, the “Sellers”), and (iv) Applegate Investment Corporation, a Delaware corporation (the “Blocker”). 

  
WHEREAS, the Unit Sellers own all of the issued and outstanding Units other than those owned by the Blocker 

(the “Subject Units”); 
  
WHEREAS, the Blocker Sellers own all of the issued and outstanding common stock of the Blocker (the “Blocker 

Interests”); 
  
WHEREAS, collectively, the Persons listed in Schedule 5.4(c) as counterparties to the Company under an 

Applegate Long-Term Incentive Plan LTIP Unit Agreement (each such counterparty is a “LTIP Holder”), hold all of the 
outstanding LTIP Units; and 

  
WHEREAS, Buyer desires to purchase from (i) the Unit Sellers, and the Unit Sellers desire to sell to Buyer, the 

Subject Units and (ii) the Blocker Sellers, and the Blocker Sellers desire to sell to Buyer, the Blocker Interests, in each case, upon 
the terms and subject to the conditions set forth herein. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the representations, warranties, covenants and agreements hereinafter 

contained, and intending to be legally bound hereby, the parties hereby agree as follows: 
  

ARTICLE I 
  

DEFINITIONS 
  

SECTION 1.1       Defined Terms. 
  

(a)       For purposes of this Agreement, the following terms shall have the meanings specified in this Section 1.1: 
  
“2014 Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a). 
  
“Accounting Firm” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(b). 
  
“Affiliate” means, with respect to any Person, any other Person that, directly or indirectly through one or more 

intermediaries, controls, or is controlled by, or is under common control with, such Person, and the term “control” (including the 
terms “controlled by” and “under common control with”) means the possession, directly or indirectly, of the power to direct 
  

 

  
or cause the direction of the management and policies of such Person, whether through ownership of voting securities, by Contract 
or otherwise. 

  
“Agreement” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  



  
“Antitrust Filings” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.4(a). 
  
“Antitrust Law” means the HSR Act, the Federal Trade Commission Act, as amended, the Sherman Act, as 

amended, the Clayton Act, as amended, and any applicable foreign antitrust Laws and all other applicable Laws that are designed 
or intended to prohibit, restrict or regulate actions having the purpose or effect of monopolization or restraint of trade or lessening 
of competition through merger or acquisition. 

  
“Audited Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a). 
  
“Balance Sheet” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a). 
  
“Balance Sheet Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a). 
  
“Bankruptcy and Equity Exception” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.2. 
  
“Blocker” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
“Blocker Documents” has the meaning set forth in Section 6.2. 
  
“Blocker Interests” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 
  
“Blocker Sellers” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
“Books and Records” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.10(a). 
  
“Business Day” means any day of the year on which national banking institutions in New York, New York are 

open to the public for conducting business and are not required or authorized to close. 
  
“Buyer” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
“Buyer 401(k) Plan” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.9(c). 
  
“Buyer Documents” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.2. 
  
“Chosen Courts” has the meaning set forth in Section 12.6. 
  
“Claim” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.7(b). 
  
“Claiming Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.5(a). 
  
“Closing” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2. 
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“Closing Cash” means the amount of all cash, cash equivalents and marketable securities held by the Company, 

determined in accordance with GAAP, including (i) any uncleared checks and drafts of wire transfers received or deposited for the 
account of the Company that are not yet credited to the account of the Company, as of the time immediately preceding the Closing 
and (ii) the items set forth on Schedule 1.1(a); provided, however, that “Closing Cash” shall be reduced by the amount of any 
checks written (but not yet cashed by the payee thereof) by Company as of the time immediately preceding the Closing. 

  
“Closing Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.2. 
  
“Closing Indebtedness” means the Indebtedness of the Company as of the time immediately preceding the Closing. 
  



“Closing Net Working Capital” means an amount equal to (i) current assets of the Company (excluding any Closing 
Cash) minus (ii) current liabilities of the Company (excluding any Closing Indebtedness or Transaction Expenses), in each case 
determined as of the time immediately preceding the Closing, and calculated in accordance with GAAP consistently applied with 
the application thereof in the 2014 Financial Statements (including customary end of year adjustments), subject to the accounting 
principles, methodologies, procedures and classifications set forth in Exhibit B attached hereto. 

  
“Closing Payment” means (i) the Estimated Purchase Price, minus (ii) the Reconciliation Escrow Amount, minus 

(iii) the Indemnification Escrow Amount, minus (iv) the Representative Expense Amount. 
  
“Closing Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(a). 
  
“Closing Transaction Expenses” means Transaction Expenses unpaid as of the time immediately preceding the 

Closing (including any such expenses triggered by the Closing). 
  
“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended. 
  
“Company” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
“Company 401(k) Plans” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.9(c). 
  
“Company Benefit Plan” means a Plan (i) which is maintained or sponsored by the Company, (ii) with respect to 

which contributions, premiums or other payments are made or required to be made by the Company with respect to any Employee, 
or (iii) pursuant to which the Company would reasonably be expected to have any liability. 

  
“Company Documents” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.2. 
  
“Company Employee Agreement” means any legally binding employment, individual consulting, severance, 

termination, bonus or incentive compensation, change in control, retention, deferred compensation or other compensatory 
agreement, contract, understanding, obligation or commitment with any Employee to which the Company is a party and under 
which the Company would reasonably be expected to have any liability. 
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“Company Intellectual Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(a). 
  
“Company Operating Agreement” means the Company’s Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company 

Operating Agreement, dated as of April 2, 2009, as amended. 
  
“Company Pension Plan” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.12(b). 
  
“Company Registered Intellectual Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(a). 
  
“Company Related Person” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.18. 
  
“Confidentiality Agreement” means that certain letter agreement entered into by the Company and Buyer, dated as 

of October 17, 2014, and any related clean team agreement. 
  
“Contract” means any legally binding contract, purchase order, warranty, guaranty, use agreement, indenture, note, 

bond, lease (whether for real estate, capital lease, an operating lease or other), license, commitment, instrument or other agreement, 
and in each case whether oral or written. 

  
“Credit Agreement” means that certain Amended and Restated Credit Agreement, dated as of December 15, 

2011, between the Company, as borrower, and Bank of America, N.A. 
  



“Customers” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.21. 
  
“Deductible” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.3(a). 
  
“Disclosure Schedules” has the meaning set forth in the introductory paragraph to Article IV. 
  
“DOJ” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.4(a). 
  
“Employee” means any current or former employee, officer, director, manager or individual consultant of the 

Company. 
  
“Enterprise Value” means Seven Hundred Seventy-Five Million Dollars ($775,000,000). 
  
“Environmental Law” means any Law relating to pollution or the protection of human health with respect to 

exposures to Hazardous Materials, the environment or natural resources, as amended, and the regulations promulgated pursuant 
thereto. 

  
“ERISA” means the Employee Retirement Income Security Act of 1974, as amended. 
  
“Escrow Agent” means U.S. Bank National Association, a national banking association. 
  
“Escrow Agreement” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.4. 
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“Estimated Purchase Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1. 
  
“Estimated Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.1. 
  
“Final Asset Allocation Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.12(j). 
  
“Final Purchase Price” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(e). 
  
“Final Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2. 
  
“Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a). 
  
“FTC” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.4(a). 
  
“Fundamental Representation” means any representation or warranty in Section 4.1 (Organization), 4.2 

(Authorization of Agreement), 4.4 (Title), 5.1 (Organization), 5.2 (Authorization of Agreement), 5.4 (Capitalization), 5.8 
(Taxes), 5.19 (No Brokers), 6.1 (Organization), 6.2 (Authorization of Agreement), 6.4 (Capitalization), 6.5 (Title), 6.7 (Tax 
Representations), 7.1 (Organization), 7.2 (Authorization of Agreement), or 7.6 (No Brokers). 

  
“GAAP” means generally accepted accounting principles in the United States in effect from time to time. 
  
“Governmental Body” means any government or governmental or regulatory body thereof, or political subdivision 

thereof, whether federal, state, local or foreign, or any agency, instrumentality or authority thereof, or any court or arbitrator (public 
or private). 

  
“Hazardous Material” means any substance, material or waste that is regulated, classified, or otherwise 

characterized under or pursuant to any Environmental Law as “hazardous,” “toxic,” or a “contaminant,” including petroleum and its 
by-products, asbestos and polychlorinated biphenyls. 

  



“HSR Act” means the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, and the rules and 
regulations promulgated thereunder. 

  
“Indebtedness” of any Person means, as at a specified date, without duplication: (i) all obligations or liabilities under 

or for (A) indebtedness of such Person for money borrowed and (B) indebtedness evidenced by notes, debentures, bonds, letters 
of credit or other similar instruments for the payment of which such Person is responsible or liable (to the extent drawn); (ii) all 
obligations or liabilities of such Person issued or assumed as the deferred purchase price of any property, including all conditional 
sale obligations of such Person (but excluding trade accounts payable and other current liabilities); (iii) all obligations or liabilities of 
such Person under capitalized leases, but excluding any breakage costs, prepayment penalties or fees or other similar amounts 
payable in connection with any capitalized leases unless such breakage costs, prepayment penalties or fees or other similar amounts 
payable are due at the Closing; (iv) all obligations and liabilities of such Person for deferred compensation; (v) all obligations and 
liabilities of such Person with respect to swap or hedging Contracts; (vi) all obligations or liabilities of the type referred to in 
clauses (i) through (v) of another Person guaranteed by such 
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first Person (whether or not such obligation is assumed by such Person); and (vii) in the case of each of the foregoing (other than 
clause (iii)), any and all accrued interest, prepayment fees, expenses, premiums or penalties related thereto; provided, however, 
with respect to the Company, Indebtedness shall not include any Transaction Expenses or any obligation or liability with respect to 
any Management Incentive Unit or LTIP Unit or under the Long-Term Incentive Plan or any Applegate Long-Term Incentive Plan 
LTIP Unit Agreement. 

  
“Indemnification Escrow Account” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3(a)(ii). 
  
“Indemnification Escrow Amount” means an amount equal to Forty-Eight Million Four Hundred Thousand Dollars 

($48,400,000). 
  
“Indemnifying Party” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.5(a). 
  
“Indemnitee” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.7(a). 
  
“Initial Claim Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.5(a). 
  
“Intellectual Property” means all intellectual property rights and industrial property rights whether arising under the 

laws of the United States or of any other jurisdiction, including (i) patents, (ii) trademarks and service marks, (iii) copyrights, 
(iv) trade secrets, (v) domain names and (vi) applications and registrations for any of the foregoing. 

  
“Interim Balance Sheet” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a). 
  
“Interim Financial Statements” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.5(a). 
  
“IRS” means the United States Internal Revenue Service. 
  
“Knowledge of the Company” means the actual knowledge (after reasonable investigation) of Stephen M. 

McDonnell, Kerry Collins, Neil Leinwand, Eric Miller and Leah Pires. 
  
“Law” means any applicable foreign, federal, state or local law, common law, statute, code, ordinance, rule or 

regulation of any Governmental Body. 
  
“Law Firm” means Ballard Spahr Andrews & Ingersoll, LLP, Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP and 

Kirkland & Ellis LLP. 
  
“Leased Real Property” means the real property leased to the Company pursuant to any of the Leased Real 

Property Leases. 
  



  
“Leased Real Property Leases” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.9. 
  
“Licensed Intellectual Property” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(a). 
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“Lien” means any lien, encumbrance, pledge, mortgage, deed of trust, security interest, claim, lease, charge, option, 

right of first refusal, easement, reservation, servitude or similar restriction. 
  
“Long-Term Incentive Plan” means the Applegate Long-Term Incentive Plan, dated April 10, 2012. 
  
“Loss” means any claim, demand, loss, fine, interest, penalty, assessment, cost or expense (including reasonable 

attorneys’ fees or expenses), damage or any other liability (but excluding (i) punitive, indirect, incidental, consequential, exemplary 
or special damages, (ii) loss of future profits, future revenues or future income or (iii) losses based on valuation metrics or other 
multipliers, or diminution in value, except in each case, to the extent the same are awarded by a court of competent jurisdiction 
(A) to a third party in respect of a Third Party Claim or (B) to Buyer in respect of a breach of Section 8.6 (Confidentiality) by a 
Seller, in each case for which indemnification hereunder is applicable). 

  
“LTIP Cancellation Agreement” means a phantom unit cancellation agreement, substantially in the form attached 

hereto as Exhibit C. 
  
“LTIP Holder” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 
  
“Management Incentive Units” means the Units designated Management Incentive Units under the Company 

Operating Agreement. 
  
“Management Sellers” shall mean the individuals designated as “Management Sellers” on Exhibit A. 
  
“Material Adverse Effect” means any change, event, circumstance or effect that, individually or in the aggregate, has 

or would reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on the results of operations, financial condition, properties, 
assets, liabilities, or operations of the Company, other than a change, event, circumstance or effect to the extent resulting from one 
or more of the following: (i) the effect of any change in the United States or foreign economies or capital, credit or financial markets 
in general; (ii) the effect of any change that generally affects any industry in which the Company operates; (iii) the effect of any 
change arising in connection with hostilities, acts of war, sabotage or terrorism or military actions or any escalation or material 
worsening of any such hostilities, acts of war, sabotage or terrorism or military actions existing or underway as of the date hereof; 
(iv) the effect of any action taken by Buyer or any of its Affiliates with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
or with respect to the Company; (v) the effect of any earthquakes, hurricanes, tornadoes or other natural disasters; (vi) the effect of 
any changes in applicable Laws or GAAP; (vii) any effect resulting from the public announcement of this Agreement; or (viii) any 
effect resulting from compliance with the terms of this Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement; provided, however, that any change, event, circumstance or effect set forth in the foregoing clauses (i), (ii), (iii), (v) or 
(vi) may be taken into account in determining whether there has been a Material Adverse Effect to the extent such change, event, 
circumstance or effect has, or would reasonably be expected to have, a material disproportionate adverse effect on the results of 
operations, financial condition, properties, assets, liabilities, or 
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operation of the Company relative to other Persons operating in the same industry as the Company. 

  
“Material Contract” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.11(a). 
  
“Objection Notice” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(b). 
  
“Order” means any order, injunction, judgment, decree, ruling, writ, assessment or arbitration award of a 



Governmental Body. 
  
“Ordinary Course of Business” means the ordinary and usual course of business of the Company, consistent with 

the Company’s past practices. 
  
“Other Indemnified Person” means, for any Person, such Person’s Affiliates and each of such Person’s and each of 

such Affiliate’s shareholders, officers, directors, partners, members, governors, managers, employees, agents, representatives and 
permitted successors and assigns. 

  
“Outside Date” has the meaning set forth in Section 11.1(a). 
  
“Payment Schedule” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.5. 
  
“Permits” means any approvals, authorizations, consents, licenses, permits or certificates of a Governmental Body. 
  
“Permitted Exceptions” means all (i) defects, exceptions, restrictions, easements, rights of way and encumbrances 

disclosed in policies of title insurance made available to Buyer; (ii) Liens for Taxes, assessments or other governmental charges not 
yet delinquent, or for which adequate reserves have been established in accordance with GAAP; (iii) mechanics’, carriers’, 
workers’, repairers’ and similar Liens arising or incurred in the Ordinary Course of Business or that are being contested in good 
faith; (iv) zoning, entitlement and other similar land use regulations by any Governmental Body; (v) title of a lessor under a capital or 
operating lease; (vi) non-exclusive licenses granted in the Ordinary Course of Business; (vii) Liens that will be released prior to or 
as of the Closing; (viii) Liens arising under this Agreement; (ix) Liens created by or through Buyer, and (x) Liens set forth on 
Schedule 1.1(b). 

  
“Person” means any individual, corporation, partnership, firm, joint venture, limited liability company, association, 

joint-stock company, trust, unincorporated organization, Governmental Body or other entity. 
  
“Plan” or “Plans” means (a) any employee benefit plan (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA, whether or not 

subject to ERISA) and (b) any retirement, deferred compensation, severance, retention, incentive, stock option or other equity 
compensation, fringe benefit, insurance, vacation, paid-time off, supplemental unemployment, supplemental or excess benefit, or 
other employee benefit plan, program or arrangement, in each case, other than a Company Employee Agreement. 
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“Pre-Closing Blocker Taxes” means (i) all Taxes of the Blocker with respect to taxable periods ending on or 

before the Closing Date, and (ii) the Pre-Closing Date Share of all Taxes of the Blocker with respect to Straddle Periods. 
  
“Pre-Closing Company Taxes” means (i) all Taxes of the Company with respect to taxable periods ending on or 

before the Closing Date, and (ii) the Pre-Closing Date Share of all Taxes of the Company with respect to Straddle Periods. 
  
“Pre-Closing Date Share” means with respect to any Tax liability for a Straddle Period, the portion of such Tax 

liability that would be due for the portion of such Straddle Period beginning on the first day of such Straddle Period and ending on 
(and including) the Closing Date, calculated in accordance with Section 8.12(d). 

  
“Privacy Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.10(d). 
  
“Pro Rata Portion” means, with respect to any Seller, an amount equal to the quotient of:  (a) the number of Units 

held by such Seller (or in the case of a Blocker Seller, the number of Units indirectly held by such Blocker Seller) divided by 
(b) the number of all Units.  Pro Rata Portion may be expressed as a percentage or fraction, as applicable in the context and 
whether or not expressed as both in any listing in connection herewith. 

  
“Proceeding” means any action, complaint, audit, litigation, suit, hearing, claim, administrative charge, investigation, 

arbitration or proceeding (whether civil, criminal, administrative, investigative or for damages, injunctive relief or otherwise). 
  



“Products” means all products of the Company, whether or not represented by SKUs, and any products currently 
in development by, or being developed for, the Company, including products currently in development that may have been 
developed or obtained for use by the Company. 

  
“Proposed Asset Allocation Statement” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.12(j). 
  
“Purchase Price” means, without duplication, (i) the Enterprise Value, minus (ii)  the amount of the Closing 

Indebtedness, plus (iii) the amount of the Closing Cash, minus (iv) the amount of the Closing Transaction Expenses, plus (v) the 
amount (if any) by which the Closing Net Working Capital exceeds the Target Net Working Capital, minus (vi) the amount (if any) 
by which the Target Net Working Capital exceeds the Closing Net Working Capital. 

  
“Reconciliation Escrow Account” has the meaning set forth in Section 2.3(a)(iii). 
  
“Reconciliation Escrow Amount” means an amount equal to Five Million Dollars ($5,000,000). 
  
“Releasees” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.13(g). 
  
“Releasing Persons” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.13(e). 
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“Representative” means Weiser. 
  
“Representative Expense Amount” means an amount equal to One Million Dollars ($1,000,000). 
  
“Representative Expenses” has the meaning set forth in Section 12.12(e). 
  
“Securities Act” has the meaning set forth in Section 7.5. 
  
“Sellers” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
“Seller Documents” has the meaning set forth in Section 4.1. 
  
“Shortfall Amount” has the meaning set forth in Section 3.2(e)(ii). 
  
“SPC” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
“Straddle Period” means any taxable period that begins on or before the Closing Date and ends after the Closing 

Date. 
  
“Subject Units” has the meaning set forth in the Recitals. 
  
“Subsidiary” of any Person means any other Person of which fifty percent (50%) or more of the outstanding voting 

securities or other voting equity interests, or a majority of any other interests having the power to direct or cause the direction of the 
management and policies of such other Person, are owned or controlled, directly or indirectly, by such first Person or one or more 
of the other Subsidiaries of such first Person or a combination thereof. 

  
“Suppliers” has the meaning set forth in Section 5.20. 
  
“Target Net Working Capital” means Twenty-Four Million Four Hundred Thousand Dollars ($24,400,000). 
  
“Tax” or “Taxes” means (i) all federal, state, local or foreign taxes, including all net income, gross receipts, capital, 

sales, use, ad valorem, value added, franchise, profits, alternative, inventory, capital stock, license, withholding, payroll, 
employment, social security, unemployment, excise, severance, stamp, occupation, and property (real or personal) taxes, customs 



duties, fees, assessments and similar charges imposed by any Taxing Authority, and (ii) all interest, penalties, additions to Tax or 
additional amounts imposed by any Taxing Authority in connection with any item described in clause (i). 

  
“Tax Claim” means any claim, audit, litigation or other administrative or judicial Proceeding by a Taxing Authority 

with respect to any Tax that, if successful, might result in an indemnity obligation hereunder. 
  

“Tax Representation” means any representation or warranty in Section 5.8 (Taxes) or 6.7 (Tax Representations). 
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“Tax Return” means all returns, declarations, reports, estimates, information returns and statements required to be 

filed in respect of any Taxes. 
  
“Taxing Authority” means the IRS and any other Governmental Body responsible for the imposition of any Tax. 
  
“Third Party Claim” has the meaning set forth in Section 10.5(a). 
  
“Transaction Expenses” means (i) all of the fees and expenses of the Company payable in connection with or as a 

result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including all attorneys’ fees, accountants’ fees, investment bankers’ fees, 
and other professionals’ and third parties’ fees and expenses), (ii) all amounts payable under the Long-Term Incentive Plan, 
severance, transaction bonuses, sale bonuses, retention bonuses, change-of-control payments or bonuses, in each case, payable 
solely as a result of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and not as a result of any expenses occurring post-Closing, 
(iii) the obligations and liabilities set forth in Schedule 1.1(c), (iv) all costs and expense of the “tail” policy in respect of the existing 
policy of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 8.7(c), and (v) the Sellers’ 
portion of the Taxes or charges identified in Section 12.1. 

  
“Transferred Employees” has the meaning set forth in Section 8.9(a). 
  
“Unit Sellers” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
“Units” means the issued and outstanding equity interests of the Company. 
  
“Weiser” has the meaning set forth in the Preamble. 
  
(b)                         Unless otherwise expressly provided, for purposes of this Agreement, the following rules of interpretation 

shall apply: 
  

(i)                                  Calculation of Time Period.  When calculating the period of time before which, within which or 
following which any act is to be done or step is to be taken pursuant to this Agreement, the date that is the reference date in 
calculating such period shall be excluded.  If the last day of such period is a non-Business Day, the period in question shall end on 
the next succeeding Business Day. 

  
(ii)                              Dollars.  Any reference in this Agreement to “$” means U.S. dollars.  The specification of any dollar 

amount in the representations and warranties or otherwise in this Agreement or in the Disclosure Schedules is not intended and shall 
not be deemed to be an admission or acknowledgment of the materiality of such amounts or items, nor shall the same be used in 
any dispute or controversy between the parties to determine whether any obligation, item or matter (whether or not described 
herein or included in any schedule) is or is not material for purposes of this Agreement. 

  
(iii)                          Exhibits/Schedules.  All Exhibits and Schedules annexed hereto or referred to herein are hereby 

incorporated in and made a part of this Agreement as if set forth in full herein and are an integral part of this Agreement.  Any 
capitalized terms used in any 
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Schedule or Exhibit but not otherwise defined therein shall be defined as set forth in this Agreement.  References to the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement include the transactions contemplated by the Seller Documents, the Company Documents, the 
Blocker Documents and the Buyer Documents. 

  
(iv)                          Gender and Number.  Any reference in this Agreement to gender shall include all genders, and 

words imparting the singular number only shall include the plural and vice versa. 
  
(v)                              Headings.  The provision of a Table of Contents, the division of this Agreement into Articles, 

Sections and other subdivisions and the insertion of headings are for convenience of reference only and shall not affect or be utilized 
in construing or interpreting this Agreement.  All references in this Agreement to any “Article” or “Section” are to the corresponding 
Article or Section of this Agreement unless otherwise specified. 

  
(vi)                          Herein.  The words such as “herein,” “hereinafter,” “hereof,” “hereby,” “hereto” and “hereunder” 

refer to this Agreement as a whole and not merely to a subdivision in which such words appear unless the context otherwise 
requires. 

  
(vii)                      Including.  The word “including” or any variation thereof means “including, without limitation,” and 

shall not be construed to limit any general statement that it follows to the specific or similar items or matters immediately following it. 
  
(viii)                  Reflected On or Set Forth In.  An item arising with respect to a specific representation or warranty 

shall be deemed to be “reflected on” or “set forth in” a balance sheet or financial statements, to the extent any such phrase appears 
in such representation or warranty, if (A) there is a reserve, accrual or other similar item underlying a number on such balance sheet 
or financial statements that is related to the subject matter of such representation, (B) such item is otherwise specifically set forth on 
the balance sheet or financial statements or (C) such item is reflected on the balance sheet or financial statements and is specifically 
set forth in the notes thereto. 

  
(ix)                          Or.  The word “or” is not exclusive. 
  
(x)                              Joint Drafting.  The parties hereto have participated jointly in the negotiation and drafting of this 

Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby and, in the event an ambiguity or question of intent or interpretation 
arises, this Agreement shall be construed as jointly drafted by the parties hereto and no presumption or burden of proof shall arise 
favoring or disfavoring any party by virtue of the authorship of any provision of this Agreement. 

  
(xi)                          Disclosure Schedules.  The Disclosure Schedules have been arranged in sections corresponding to 

the sections of this Agreement.  Each schedule of the Disclosure Schedules will be deemed to incorporate by reference all 
information disclosed in any other schedule of the Disclosure Schedules to the extent reasonably apparent on its face that such 
information applies to such other section.  No reference to or disclosure of any item or other matter in the Disclosure Schedules 
shall be construed as an admission or indication that such item or other matter is material (nor shall it establish a standard of 
materiality for any purpose 
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whatsoever) or that such item or other matter is required to be referred to or disclosed in the Disclosure Schedules.  The 
information set forth in the Disclosure Schedules is disclosed solely for the purposes of this Agreement, and no information set forth 
therein shall be deemed to be an admission by any party hereto to any third party of any matter whatsoever, including any violation 
of Law or breach of any agreement or other instrument or obligation, or deemed or interpreted to expand in any way the scope or 
effect of the representations and warranties, covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement. 

  
ARTICLE II 

  
PURCHASE AND SALE 

  
SECTION 2.1                           Purchase and Sale.  Upon the terms and subject to the conditions set forth in this Agreement, at the 

Closing, Buyer shall (i) purchase from each Unit Seller, and each Unit Seller shall assign, transfer and convey to Buyer, all Subject 



Units owned by such Unit Seller and (ii) purchase from each Blocker Seller, and each Blocker Seller shall assign, transfer and 
convey to Buyer, all Blocker Interests owned by such Blocker Seller. 

  
SECTION 2.2                           Closing Date.  Unless this Agreement shall have been terminated pursuant to Section 11.1 

(Termination of Agreement), the closing of the transactions contemplated hereby (the “Closing”) shall take place at the offices of 
Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP, One New York Plaza, New York, NY 10004 (or at such other place as Buyer 
and the Representative may designate in writing) at 10:00 a.m. local time on the third (3rd) Business Day after the satisfaction or 
waiver of each condition to the Closing set forth in Article IX (other than conditions that by their nature are to be satisfied at the 
Closing, but subject to the satisfaction or waiver of such conditions).  The date on which the Closing shall occur is referred to in this 
Agreement as the “Closing Date”.  The Closing shall be deemed to have occurred at 12:01 a.m. on the day upon which the Closing 
Date occurs. 

  
SECTION 2.3                           Closing Deliverables. 
  

(a)                          At the Closing, Buyer shall: 
  

(i)                                  pay or cause to be paid to each Seller, each Seller’s share (as set forth on the Payment Schedule) 
of the Closing Payment, by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account specified in the Payment Schedule; 

  
(ii)                              pay or cause to be paid the Indemnification Escrow Amount by wire transfer of immediately 

available funds to an account (the “Indemnification Escrow Account”) designated and administered by the Escrow Agent pursuant 
to the Escrow Agreement; 

  
(iii)                          pay or cause to be paid the Reconciliation Escrow Amount by wire transfer of immediately available 

funds to an account (the “Reconciliation Escrow Account”) designated and administered by the Escrow Agent pursuant to the 
Escrow Agreement; 

  
(iv)                          pay or cause to be paid the Representative Expense Amount by wire transfer of immediately 

available funds to one or more accounts designated by the Representative; 
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(v)                              pay or cause to be paid, on behalf of the Company, to the lender under the Credit Agreement the 

amount set forth on the Payment Schedule by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the account specified in the Payment 
Schedule; and 

  
(vi)                          pay or cause to be paid, on behalf of the Company, the Closing Transaction Expenses (as set forth 

on the Payment Schedule) by wire transfer of immediately available funds to the accounts specified in the Payment Schedule. 
  

(b)                         At the Closing, the Company shall deliver to Buyer: 
  

(i)        written resignations, dated as of the Closing Date, duly executed by each of the members of the 
board of managers of the Company, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer; 

  
(ii)                              an LTIP Cancellation Agreement duly executed by each LTIP Holder; 
  
(iii)      a customary payoff letter with respect to the Credit Agreement that lists all obligations of the 

Company to the lenders thereunder as of the Closing Date under the Credit Agreement; and 
  
(iv)                          a good standing certificate, dated within five (5) Business Days before Closing, from the Delaware 

Secretary of State stating that the Company is in good standing therein. 
  

(c)                          At the Closing, the Blocker shall deliver to Buyer: 
  



(i)                                  written resignations, dated as of the Closing Date, duly executed by each of officers and directors 
of the Blocker, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer; and 

  
(ii)                              a good standing certificate, dated within five (5) Business Days before Closing, from the Delaware 

Secretary of State stating that the Blocker is in good standing therein. 
  

(d)                        At the Closing, each Blocker Seller shall deliver to Buyer stock certificates evidencing the Blocker Interests 
owned by such Blocker Seller, duly endorsed in blank or accompanied by powers or other instruments of transfer duly executed in 
blank, in form and substance reasonably satisfactory to Buyer. 

  
(e)                          At the Closing, each of the Unit Sellers shall deliver to Buyer an assignment and assumption agreement to 

effect the assignment of each Unit Seller’s Subject Units to Buyer, duly executed by each Unit Seller, in form and substance 
reasonably satisfactory to Buyer. 

  
SECTION 2.4                           Escrow Agreement.  On the Closing Date, Buyer and the Representative shall enter into an escrow 

agreement with the Escrow Agent effective as of the Closing Date which shall be substantially in the form attached hereto as 
Exhibit D (the “Escrow 
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Agreement”).  Subject to Section 10.9 (Reconciliation Escrow Amount and Indemnification Escrow Amount), at the eighteen 
(18) month anniversary of the Closing (the “Indemnification Escrow Release Date”), Buyer and the Representative shall issue joint 
written instructions to the Escrow Agent authorizing the distribution to the Sellers, in accordance with payment instructions delivered 
by the Representative to Buyer, the amount of funds then remaining in the Indemnification Escrow Account, if any, to the extent 
(i) not subject to unresolved indemnfication claims made by Buyer or Buyer’s Other Indemnified Persons in accordance with 
Article X prior to that time (and such funds subject to unresolved claims shall remain in the Indemnification Escrow Account until 
the resolution thereof) and (ii) the aggregate amount in dispute under Section 3.2 does not exceed the then current balance of the 
Reconciliation Escrow Account (and the portion of the aggregate amount in dispute under Section 3.2 that exceeds the then current 
balance of the Reconciliation Escrow Account shall remain in the Indemnification Escrow Account until resolution thereof).  In the 
event of any conflict between this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement, the terms of this Agreement shall control. 

  
SECTION 2.5                           Payment Schedule.  No later than three (3) Business Days prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall 

deliver to Buyer a schedule (i) setting forth each Seller’s share of the Closing Payment, (ii) setting forth each Person to whom any 
Transaction Expense is owing and such Person’s share of the Closing Payment, (iii) setting forth the Person to whom amounts are 
owing under the Credit Agreement and such Person’s share of the Closing Payment and (iv) designating the accounts to which the 
Closing Payment due each Seller, each Person to whom any Transaction Expense is owing, and the Person to whom amounts are 
owing under the Credit Agreement shall be paid by Buyer at the Closing (the “Payment Schedule”), which shall be prepared 
consistently in all material respects with the methodology contained in the illustrative Payment Schedule set forth on Exhibit E. 

  
ARTICLE III 

  
ESTIMATED PURCHASE PRICE AND POST-CLOSING ADJUSTMENT 

  
SECTION 3.1                           Estimated Purchase Price.  No later than three (3) Business Days prior to the Closing, the Company 

shall prepare and deliver to Buyer a statement (the “Estimated Statement”) reflecting the Company’s calculation of the Purchase 
Price (the “Estimated Purchase Price”) based on good faith estimates of the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing 
Transaction Expenses and the Closing Net Working Capital, all of which shall be calculated on a basis consistent with this 
Agreement, including, as applicable, Exhibit B. 

  
SECTION 3.2                           Post-Closing Adjustment. 
  

(a)                          As promptly as practicable after the Closing, but no later than ninety (90) days after the Closing Date, Buyer 
shall prepare and deliver to the Representative a statement (the “Closing Statement”) setting forth Buyer’s good faith calculation of 
the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing Transaction Expenses and the Closing Net Working Capital, which shall 



be calculated on a basis consistent with this Agreement, including, as applicable, Exhibit B. 
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(b)                         The Company and Buyer shall (i) permit the Representative and its representatives to have reasonable 

access at reasonable times to the books and records of the Company pertaining to or used in connection with the preparation of the 
Closing Statement and provide the Representative with copies thereof as reasonably requested by the Representative (except that 
no party hereto will be required to give access to or otherwise disclose any information if such access or disclosure would 
jeopardize any attorney-client or other privilege or contravene any applicable Law) and (ii) provide the Representative and its 
representatives reasonable access at reasonable times to the employees and accountants of the Company, Buyer and its 
Subsidiaries as reasonably requested by the Representative for the purpose of discussing the books and records pertaining to or 
used in connection with the preparation of the Closing Statement.  If the Representative claims that Buyer has failed to comply with 
its obligations under this Section 3.2(b) to provide access to books, records and personnel, it may initiate the appointment of the 
Accounting Firm.  The Accounting Firm shall have the authority to determine if Buyer has complied with its obligations to provide 
access and to order (if necessary) Buyer to comply with any such obligations.  If the Representative disagrees with any part of 
Buyer’s calculation of the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing Transaction Expenses or the Closing Net Working 
Capital as set forth on the Closing Statement, the Representative shall, within forty-five (45) days after the Representative’s receipt 
of the Closing Statement, notify Buyer in writing of such disagreement (an “Objection Notice”).  The Objection Notice shall specify 
the items and amounts of which aspects of the Closing Statement are being disputed and reasonably describe the basis for such 
dispute.  Items and amounts identified in the Closing Statement that are not disputed by the Representative in the Objection Notice, 
shall be considered final and binding on all of the parties and such items and amounts shall not be subject to further review.  If the 
Representative does not deliver an Objection Notice within such forty-five (45) day period to Buyer, then the Closing Statement 
shall be conclusive, final and binding on all of the parties (in such instance, a “Final Statement”).  If the Representative delivers an 
Objection Notice to Buyer, then Buyer and the Representative shall negotiate in good faith to resolve their disagreements with 
respect to the computation of the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing Transaction Expenses and/or the Closing 
Net Working Capital, and any such resolution shall be conclusive and binding on all of the parties (in such instance, a “Final 
Statement”).  In the event that Buyer and the Representative are unable to resolve all such disagreements within fifteen (15) days 
after Buyer’s receipt of such Objection Notice, either Buyer or the Representative may elect that the parties shall jointly submit 
such remaining disagreements to KPMG LLP or, if KPMG LLP declines to serve, any other nationally recognized certified public 
accounting firm as is reasonably acceptable to Buyer and the Representative (the “Accounting Firm”). 

  
(c)                          Buyer and the Representative shall use commercially reasonable efforts to cause the Accounting Firm to 

resolve all remaining disagreements with respect to the computation of the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing 
Transaction Expenses and/or the Closing Net Working Capital identified in the Objection Notice as promptly as practicable, but in 
any event shall direct the Accounting Firm to render a determination within thirty (30) days after its retention.  The Accounting Firm 
shall consider only those items and amounts in Buyer’s and the Representative’s respective calculations of the Closing 
Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing Transaction Expenses and the Closing Net Working Capital, that are identified as 
being items and amounts to which Buyer and the Representative have been unable to agree.  The Accounting Firm may not 
consider any items or amounts that were not 
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presented on the Closing Statement or Objection Notice.  In resolving any disputed item, the Accounting Firm may not assign a 
value to any item greater than the greatest value for such item claimed by either party in the Closing Statement or the Objection 
Notice, as applicable, or less than the smallest value for such item claimed by either party in the Closing Statement or the Objection 
Notice, as applicable.  The Accounting Firm’s determination of the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing 
Transaction Expenses and/or the Closing Net Working Capital, as applicable, shall be based solely on written materials submitted 
by Buyer and the Representative and oral submissions made by Buyer and the Representative (i.e., not on independent review) and 
on the definitions set forth in this Agreement.  The determination of the Accounting Firm shall be conclusive and binding upon the 
parties hereto and shall not be subject to appeal or further review (other than with respect to errors in arithmetic calculations) (in 
such instance, a “Final Statement”). 

  
(d)                        The costs and expenses of the Accounting Firm in determining the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, 



the Closing Transaction Expenses and/or the Closing Net Working Capital shall be borne by Buyer and the Representative, 
respectively, in the proportion that the aggregate dollar amount of the disputed items submitted to the Accounting Firm by such 
party that are unsuccessfully disputed by such party (as finally determined by the Accounting Firm) bears to the aggregate dollar 
amount of disputed items submitted by Buyer and the Representative. 

  
(e)                          For purposes of this Agreement, the “Final Purchase Price” means the Purchase Price as calculated based 

on the Closing Indebtedness, the Closing Cash, the Closing Transaction Expenses and the Closing Net Working Capital set forth 
on any Final Statement as determined in accordance with this Section 3.2.  Within five (5) Business Days after the Final Purchase 
Price is determined pursuant to this Section 3.2: 

  
(i)                                  If the Final Purchase Price exceeds the Estimated Purchase Price, (A) Buyer will promptly pay to, 

or at the direction of, the Representative, for payment to the Sellers, an amount equal to such excess by wire transfer of 
immediately available funds and (B) Buyer and the Representative shall provide joint written instructions to the Escrow Agent to 
release all amounts remaining in the Reconciliation Escrow Account to, or at the direction of, the Representative, for payment to the 
Sellers, by wire transfer of immediately available funds. 

  
(ii)                              If the Final Purchase Price is less than the Estimated Purchase Price (such difference being the 

“Shortfall Amount”), Buyer and the Representative shall provide joint written instructions to the Escrow Agent to (A) release to 
Buyer an amount equal to the lesser of (x) the Shortfall Amount and (y) the amount remaining in the Reconciliation Escrow 
Account, and (B) release all amounts remaining in the Reconciliation Escrow Account after the distribution described in clause 
(A) (if any) to, or at the direction of, the Representative, for payment to the Sellers, in each case, by wire transfer of immediately 
available funds.  Pursuant to Section 10.9, Buyer shall have recourse against the Indemnification Escrow Amount to the extent the 
Shortfall Amount exceeds the Reconciliation Escrow Amount. 

  
(f)                           Any payment to be made pursuant to Section 3.2(e) shall be treated by all parties for tax purposes as an 

adjustment to the purchase price, unless otherwise required under applicable Law. 
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ARTICLE IV 

  
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE SELLERS 

  
Except as disclosed in the disclosure schedules (the “Disclosure Schedules”) delivered to Buyer in connection with this 

Agreement, each Seller, severally and not jointly, hereby represents and warrants to Buyer that each statement contained in this 
Article IV is true and correct with respect to such Seller. 

  
SECTION 4.1                           Organization.  If such Seller is a corporation or other legal entity, such Seller is duly incorporated or 

organized, validly existing and in good standing under the Laws of its jurisdiction of organization, and has all requisite power and 
authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the other documents, instruments, certificates, and agreements contemplated 
hereby to be executed by such Seller in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the 
“Seller Documents”) and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.  If such Seller is a corporation or other 
legal entity, the execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and each Seller Document by such Seller have been duly 
authorized and approved by all necessary action with respect to such Seller, and each such authorization and approval remains in 
full force and effect.  If such Seller is an individual, he or she has full legal capacity, right and authority to execute and deliver this 
Agreement and the Seller Documents and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby. 

  
SECTION 4.2                           Authorization of Agreement.  This Agreement has been, and each of the Seller Documents has been or 

will be at or prior to the Closing, duly and validly executed and delivered by such Seller, and this Agreement constitutes, and each 
Seller Document constitutes or when so executed and delivered will constitute, the legal, valid and binding obligation of such Seller, 
enforceable against such Seller in accordance with its terms, subject to applicable bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, 
moratorium and similar laws affecting creditors’ rights and remedies generally, and subject, as to enforceability, to general principles 
of equity (regardless of whether enforcement is sought in a proceeding at law or in equity) (the “Bankruptcy and Equity 
Exception”). 

  



  
SECTION 4.3                           Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties. 
  

(a)                          None of the execution and delivery by such Seller of this Agreement or the Seller Documents, the 
consummation by such Seller of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or compliance by such Seller with any of the 
provisions hereof or thereof will result (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) in any amendment, suspension, 
modification, acceleration of rights or obligations under, the imposition of any Lien, violation of or default under, or give rise to a 
right of amendment, suspension, modification, acceleration of rights or obligations, termination, cancellation, or to impose any Lien 
under, any provision of (i) if such Seller is a corporation or other legal entity, the certificate of incorporation or by-laws or 
comparable organizational documents of such Seller; (ii) any Order applicable to such Seller or by which any of the properties or 
assets of such Seller is bound; or (iii) any applicable Law, other than, in the case of clauses (i), (ii) and (iii), such amendments, 
suspensions, modifications, accelerations, obligations, impositions, violations, defaults, terminations or cancellations that 
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would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on such Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement or the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby. 

  
(b)                         No consent, waiver, approval or authorization of, or declaration or filing with, or notification to, any 

Governmental Body is required on the part of such Seller in connection with the execution and delivery by such Seller of this 
Agreement or the Seller Documents or the consummation by such Seller of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, 
except for (i) compliance with the applicable requirements of the HSR Act and any other applicable Antitrust Laws, (ii) such 
consents, waivers, approvals, authorizations, declarations or filings that, if not obtained, made or given, would not, individually or in 
the aggregate, have a material adverse effect on such Seller’s ability to perform its obligations under this Agreement or the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby, and (iii) as may be necessary as a result of any facts or circumstance 
relating solely to Buyer or any of its Affiliates. 

  
SECTION 4.4                           Title.  If such Seller is a Unit Seller, such Seller is the sole record and beneficial owner of, and has good 

and valid title to, the Units set forth opposite its name on Exhibit A and such Seller will deliver to Buyer at the Closing such Units 
free and clear of any Lien, and if such Seller is a Blocker Seller, such Seller is the sole record and beneficial owner of, and has 
good and valid title to, the Blocker Interests set forth opposite its name on Exhibit A and such Seller will deliver to Buyer at the 
Closing such Blocker Interests free and clear of any Lien. 

  
SECTION 4.5                           Exclusivity of Seller Representations.  Except for the representations and warranties expressly set forth 

in this Article IV (as modified by the Disclosure Schedules) and any representations and warranties expressly set forth in any Seller 
Document, such Seller makes no other representation or warranty, and such Seller hereby disclaims all liability and responsibility for 
any other representation, warranty, projection, forecast, statement or information made, communicated or furnished (orally or in 
writing) to Buyer or any of its Affiliates or representatives (including any opinion, information, projection or advice that may have 
been or may be provided to Buyer or any of its Affiliates or representatives by any director, manager, officer, employee, agent, 
consultant or representative of any Seller, the Company, the Blocker or any of their respective Affiliates). 

  
ARTICLE V 

  
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE COMPANY 

  
Except as disclosed in the Disclosure Schedules, the Company hereby represents and warrants to Buyer that each 

statement contained in this Article V is true and correct. 
  

SECTION 5.1                           Organization.  The Company is a limited liability company duly organized, validly existing and in good 
standing under the laws of the State of Delaware, and has all requisite power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties 
and to carry on its business as now conducted.  The Company is duly qualified or authorized to do business as a foreign entity in 
each other jurisdiction in which it owns, leases or operates properties, or conducts business, so as to require such qualification or 
authorization, except where the failure to 
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be so qualified or authorized would not, individually or in the aggregate, have a Material Adverse Effect. 

  
SECTION 5.2                           Authorization of Agreement.  The Company has all requisite limited liability company power and 

authority to execute and deliver this Agreement and the other documents, instruments, certificates, and agreements contemplated 
hereby to be executed by the Company in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement 
(the “Company Documents”) and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.  The execution, delivery and 
performance of this Agreement and each Company Document by the Company have been duly authorized and approved by all 
necessary action with respect to the Company, and each such authorization and approval remains in full force and effect.  This 
Agreement has been, and each of the Company Documents has been or will be at or prior to the Closing, duly and validly executed 
and delivered by the Company, and this Agreement constitutes, and each Company Document constitutes or when so executed 
and delivered will constitute, the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Company, enforceable against it in accordance with its 
terms, subject to the Bankruptcy and Equity Exception. 

  
SECTION 5.3                           Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties. 
  

(a)                          Except as set forth in Schedule 5.3(a), none of the execution and delivery by the Company of this 
Agreement or the Company Documents, the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, 
or compliance by the Company with any of the provisions hereof or thereof will result (with or without notice or lapse of time, or 
both) in any amendment, suspension, modification, acceleration of rights or obligations under, the imposition of any Lien, violation 
of or default under, or give rise to a right of amendment, suspension, modification, acceleration of rights or obligations, termination, 
cancellation, or to impose any Lien under any provision of (i) the certificate of formation of the Company or the Company 
Operating Agreement; (ii) any Contract or Permit to which the Company is a party or by which it or any of the properties or assets 
of the Company is bound; (iii) any Order applicable to the Company or by which any of the properties or assets of the Company is 
bound; or (iv) any applicable Law, other than, in the case of clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv), such amendments, suspensions, accelerations, 
impositions, violations, defaults, terminations or cancellations that are not material or that arise solely as a result of any facts or 
circumstances relating to Buyer or any of its Affiliates. 

  
(b)                         No consent, waiver, approval or authorization of, or declaration or filing with, or notification to, any 

Governmental Body is required on the part of the Company in connection with the execution and delivery by the Company of this 
Agreement or the Company Documents or the consummation by the Company of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, 
except for (i) compliance with the applicable requirements of the HSR Act and any other applicable Antitrust Laws, (ii) such 
consents, waivers, approvals, authorizations, declarations, filings or notifications that, if not obtained, made or given, would not be 
material, and (iii) as may be necessary as a result of any facts or circumstance relating solely to Buyer or any of its Affiliates. 
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SECTION 5.4                           Capitalization. 
  

(a)                          The record owners of all of the outstanding Units are set forth in Schedule 5.4(a). 
  
(b)                         All outstanding Units are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and not subject to 

and were not issued in violation of any purchase option, call option, right of first refusal, preemptive right, subscription right or any 
similar right under any provision of the Delaware Limited Liability Company Act, the certificate of formation of the Company or the 
Company Operating Agreement Company or any Contract to which the Company is a party or otherwise bound. 

  
(c)                          Except as set forth in Schedule 5.4(c), (i) there is no option, warrant, call, put, convertible instrument, 

Contract, commitment, purchase right, subscription right, conversion right, exchange right, right of first refusal, or similar right, 
agreement, arrangement or undertaking of any kind whereby any Person has, or has a right to receive, any equity interest of, or 
right or obligation to acquire any equity interest of, the Company, (ii) there are no proxies, voting trusts, voting agreements or 
similar rights or Contracts with respect to the Units or the Company, and (iii) there are no unit appreciation rights, profit 
participation rights, phantom units or similar rights with respect to the Company. 

  



(d)                        The Company does not own, or have any ownership interest in, any other Person. 
  

SECTION 5.5                           Financial Statements. 
  

(a)                          The Company has delivered to Buyer copies of (i) the audited balance sheet of the Company as of each of 
December 28, 2012 and December 27, 2013 and the related audited statements of income and members’ equity and cash flows of 
the Company for the fifty-two (52) weeks ended December 28, 2012 and December 27, 2013 (the December 28, 2012 and 
December 27, 2013 audited statements of income and members’ equity and cash flows, together with the audited balance sheets of 
the Company as of December 28, 2012 and December 27, 2013, are the “Audited Financial Statements”), (ii) the balance sheet of 
the Company as of December 26, 2014 (the “Balance Sheet Date” and such balance sheet, the “Balance Sheet”) and the related 
statements of income and members’ equity and cash flows of the Company for the fifty-two (52) weeks ended December 26, 
2014 (the December 26, 2014 statements of income and members’ equity and cash flows, together with the Balance Sheet, are the 
“2014 Financial Statements”), and (iii) the unaudited balance sheet of the Company as of March 31, 2015 (the “Interim Balance 
Sheet”) and the related unaudited statements of income and members’ equity and cash flows of the Company for the three (3) fiscal 
months ended March 31, 2015 (the Interim Balance Sheet and the related unaudited statements of income and members’ equity 
and cash flows of the Company for the three (3) fiscal months ended March 31, 2015, are collectively the “Interim Financial 
Statements” and all of the foregoing, together with the Audited Financial Statements and the 2014 Financial Statements, are 
collectively the “Financial Statements”).  The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with GAAP consistently 
applied and fairly present, in all material respects, the financial position, results of operations and cash flows of the Company as of 
the dates and for the periods indicated therein, subject in the case of the 
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Interim Financial Statements, to the absence of footnote disclosure and to normal, recurring end-of-year adjustments.  The 
Financial Statements were prepared in accordance with, and are consistent with, the books of account and financial records of the 
Company (which books and records are correct and complete in all material respects). 

  
(b)                         The Company has delivered to Buyer a true, correct and complete copy of its certificate of formation and 

the Company Operating Agreement as in effect as of the date hereof.  Schedule 5.5(b) sets forth a list of all the officers and 
directors of the Company as of the date hereof. 

  
SECTION 5.6                           No Undisclosed Liabilities.  The Company does not have any liabilities of a nature that would have 

been required to be reflected on the Balance Sheet or in the notes thereto in accordance with GAAP and were not so reflected, 
other than (i) liabilities incurred in the Ordinary Course of Business after the Balance Sheet Date, (ii) liabilities incurred in connection 
with the transactions contemplated hereby, (iii) liabilities that have been discharged or paid in full prior to the date hereof in the 
Ordinary Course of Business, or (iv) taken into account in the Estimated Statement or the Final Statement. 

  
SECTION 5.7                           Absence of Certain Developments.  Except as contemplated by this Agreement or as set forth in 

Schedule 5.7, since the Balance Sheet Date, (i) the Company has conducted its business in the Ordinary Course of Business, 
(ii) there has not been any event, condition or change that, individually or in the aggregate, constitutes a Material Adverse Effect, 
and (iii) the Company has not taken any action that, if such action had occurred after the signing of this Agreement and prior to the 
Closing, would have required the consent of Buyer pursuant to Section 8.2(b). 

  
SECTION 5.8                           Taxes. 
  

(a)                          The Company has timely filed all material Tax Returns required to be filed by it and such Tax Returns were 
true and correct in all material respects, and all material Taxes owed by the Company have been timely paid (whether or not shown 
as due on any Tax Return). 

  
(b)                         The Company has withheld and paid over, or caused to be withheld and paid over, to the appropriate 

Taxing Authorities, all material Taxes required to be so withheld and paid over for all periods under all applicable Law. 
  
(c)                          No examination, claim, litigation or other Proceeding is pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, 

threatened with regard to any material Taxes of the Company. 
  



  
(d)                        No requests for waivers of the time to assess any material Tax have been made that are still pending (other 

than extensions of time to file Tax Returns obtained in the ordinary course). 
  
(e)                          The Company is not engaged in any “listed transaction” within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 

1.6011-4(b)(2). 
  
(f)                           The Company has been taxed as a partnership for U.S. federal income and applicable state and local tax 

purposes since its organization. 
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(g)                         No written claim has been made in the last three (3) years by a Taxing Authority in a jurisdiction where the 

Company does not file any Tax Return that the Company is or may be subject to taxation by such jurisdiction. 
  
(h)                         The Company will not be required to include any material item of income in, or exclude any material item of 

deduction from, taxable income for any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing Date as a result of any 
(i) change in method of accounting for a taxable period ending on or before the Closing Date, (ii) “closing agreement” as described 
in Section 7121 of the Code or other agreement with a Taxing Authority (or any similar provision of any Law) executed on or 
before the Closing Date, (iii) intercompany transaction or excess loss account described in Treasury Regulations under Section 
1502 of the Code (or any similar provision of any Law), (iv) installment sale or open transaction disposition made on or before the 
Closing Date, or (v) prepaid amount received on or before the Closing Date other than any such amount received in the Ordinary 
Course of Business. 

  
(i)                             Neither the Company, nor any predecessor of the Company, has been a member of a group (including an 

affiliated group) with which it has filed or been included in a combined, consolidated or unitary income tax Tax Return, other than a 
group in which it is currently a member.  The Company has not been a party to or bound by any Tax indemnity agreement, Tax 
sharing agreement, Tax allocation agreement or similar Contract that includes any Person other than the Company (other than any 
such agreement or Contract not primarily related to Taxes).  Neither the Company nor any predecessor of the Company is liable 
for any Tax of any Taxpayer other than the Company under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of any 
Law), as a transferee or successor, by Contract (including any Tax allocation agreement, Tax sharing agreement or Tax indemnity 
agreement) or otherwise,  in each case for any Taxable period beginning before the Closing Date.  After the Closing Date, neither 
the Company nor any predecessor of the Company will be bound by or have any liability under any Tax indemnity agreement, Tax 
sharing agreement, Tax allocation agreement or similar Contract entered into before the Closing (other than any such agreement or 
Contract not primarily related to Taxes), including for any amount due with respect to any taxable period ending on or before the 
Closing Date. 

  
SECTION 5.9                           Real Property. 
  

(a)                          The Company does not own, and has never owned, any real property. 
  
(b)                         Schedule 5.9 sets forth a list by street or location of all leases or subleases of real property leased by the 

Company as tenant or lessee (including as subtenant or sublessee) or by the Company as lessor (including as sublessor) 
(collectively, the “Leased Real Property Leases”).  The Leased Real Property Leases are in full force and effect, subject to proper 
authorization and execution of such lease by the other party thereto and the Bankruptcy and Equity Exception.  The Company is 
not in default or material breach under any Leased Real Property Lease, and, to the Knowledge of the Company, no other party is 
in default or otherwise in material breach thereof.  Sellers have provided to Buyer a true, correct and complete copy of each 
Leased Real Property Lease. 

  
23 

 

  
(c)                          To the Knowledge of the Company (provided that, for purposes of this sentence, “Knowledge of the 

Company” shall not require any inquiry or investigation), as of the date hereof, there is no material defect in any structural 
component of any improvement on any Leased Real Property or any of its electrical, plumbing, HVAC, life safety or other building 



systems.  As of the date hereof, there is no pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened condemnation or other 
eminent domain proceeding affecting any Leased Real Property or any sale or other disposition of any Leased Real Property in lieu 
of condemnation. 

  
(d)                        The Company has not given any mortgagee or other Person any estoppel certificate or similar instrument that 

would preclude assertion of any claim under any Leased Real Property Lease, affect any right or obligation under any Leased Real 
Property Lease or otherwise be binding upon any successor to the Company’s position under any Leased Real Property Lease. 

  
SECTION 5.10                   Intellectual Property. 
  

(a)                          Schedule 5.10(a) sets forth a list of all (i) patents and patent applications and trademark, service mark, 
domain names and copyright registrations and applications for registration, in each case, that are owned by the Company 
(collectively, “Company Registered Intellectual Property”) and (ii) licenses of Intellectual Property (other than any non-exclusive 
license concerning commercially available data or software involving in any such case aggregate payments by the Company of less 
than $100,000) granted by third parties to the Company or by the Company to a third party (“Licensed Intellectual Property”).  
Except as set forth in Schedule 5.10(a), the Company either owns free and clear of all Liens (except for Permitted Exceptions), or 
has sufficient rights to use, all Intellectual Property used to conduct the business of the Company as currently conducted 
(collectively, the “Company Intellectual Property”). 

  
(b)                         All necessary registration, maintenance, renewal, and annuity fees have been paid, and all necessary 

documents have been filed, in connection with the Company Registered Intellectual Property.  In connection with the Company 
Registered Intellectual Property, all registrations are in force and all applications for the same are pending in good standing and 
without any adverse action or proceedings pending or threatened by or before the Governmental Body in which the registrations or 
applications are issued or filed.  The Company Registered Intellectual Property is valid and enforceable and none of the Company 
Registered Intellectual Property has been declared invalid or unenforceable or been limited by any court or arbitration panel.  There 
are no pending or threatened actions by third parties challenging the validity or enforceability of, or contesting the Company’s rights 
with respect to, any of the Company Registered Intellectual Property, other than office actions in the ordinary course of 
prosecution.  The Company has not received in the past three (3) years any notice or claim challenging the validity or enforceability 
of any Company Registered Intellectual Property, other than office actions in the ordinary course of prosecution. 

  
(c)                          The Company has taken reasonable steps to protect, preserve and maintain the secrecy and confidentiality 

of its confidential and proprietary information and data that the Company wishes to maintain as confidential and that is not otherwise 
disclosed by the Company’s published patents, patent applications or copyrights. 
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(d)                        A privacy statement addressing the collection, retention, use and distribution of the personally identifiable 

information of individuals visiting the websites of the Company (the “Privacy Statement”) is posted and accessible to individuals on 
each website of the Company.  The Company (i) complies in all material respects with each of the Privacy Statements applicable to 
any given set of personally identifiable information collected by the Company; and (ii) complies in all material respects with all Laws 
regarding the collection, retention, use and disclosure of personally identifiable information. The Company has taken measures to 
protect and maintain the confidential nature of the personally identifiable information provided to the Company by individuals and to 
personal information collected from individuals against loss, theft and unauthorized access or disclosure, which measures are, as a 
whole, not less protective and comprehensive than those that would be taken by reasonably prudent business persons operating in 
the Company’s industry.  The Company has not received in the past three (3) years any written claims, notices or complaints 
regarding the Company’s information practices or the disclosure, retention, or misuse of any personally identifiable information by 
the Federal Trade Commission, any similar foreign bodies, or any other Governmental Body. 

  
(e)                          Except as set forth in Schedule 5.10(e), no Proceeding is currently pending and in the past six (6) years no 

claim or demand has been made or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened in writing by any Person that (i) the use by the 
Company of the Company Intellectual Property infringes, misappropriates or otherwise violates the Intellectual Property of a third 
party, or (ii) that the Company is required to pay any royalty, license fee, charge or other amount in regard to, any Company 
Intellectual Property other than as set forth in the applicable license agreement.  No Proceeding is currently pending and in the past 
six (6) years no claim or demand has been made or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened in writing against any third 



party involving an infringement, misappropriation or violation by such third party of any Company Intellectual Property owned by 
the Company or exclusively licensed to the Company and, to the Knowledge of the Company, no third party is engaging in any 
activity that infringes, misappropriates or violates any Company Intellectual Property owned by the Company or exclusively 
licensed to the Company.  Except as set forth in Schedule 5.10(e), the conduct of the business of the Company has not in the past 
six (6) years and does not infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate any rights of any Person in respect of Intellectual Property.  
The representations and warranties set forth in this Section 5.10(e) constitute the only representations and warranties the Company 
makes in respect of infringement, misappropriation or other violation of third party Intellectual Property. 

  
SECTION 5.11                   Material Contracts. 
  

(a)                          Schedule 5.11(a) sets forth a true, correct and complete list (and to the extent that a Material Contract is 
oral, such Schedule contains an accurate description of the material terms thereof, and such Schedule indicates the applicable 
clause(s) among the following to which each such Material Contract relates) of Contracts to which the Company is a party or by 
which it or its assets is bound as of the date of this Agreement (each a “Material Contract” and, collectively, the “Material 
Contracts”) and which: 
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(i)                                  involve payments of more than $200,000 per year and relate to the borrowing of money or to 

mortgaging, pledging or otherwise placing a Lien on any of the assets of the Company, other than Permitted Exceptions; 
  
(ii)                              relate to partnerships, joint ventures or similar arrangements; 
  
(iii)                          provide for transaction, sale, retention, change of control, or similar payments to employees; 
  
(iv)                          would impose any material restriction upon the ability of the Company to freely engage in its 

business anywhere in the world; 
  
(v)          constitute a guaranty of any obligation of any Person (other than the Company) or under which the 

Company remains obligated to lend to or make any investment in (in the form of a loan, capital contribution or otherwise) any other 
Person; 

  
(vi)                          relate to the supply, manufacturing, distribution, marketing, advertising or promotion of products or 

services involving in any such case payments by the Company of more than $200,000 per year (other than purchases made 
pursuant to purchase orders in the Ordinary Course of Business); 

  
(vii)                      relate to the supply of products (including distribution, dealer, broker, and sales representative 

Contracts) or services by the Company (other than any such Contract that is or on the Closing Date will be terminable at will or 
upon not more than 30 days’ notice by the Company without any liability of the Company); 

  
(viii)                  relate to pending acquisitions or sales of any business; 
  
(ix)                          provide for employment or severance of any employee of the Company, other than any such 

Contract that is terminable without cost or penalty by the Company by notice of not more than sixty (60) days; 
  
(x)          are terminable, cancellable or modifiable upon a change in control of the Company; 
  
(xi)                          relate to capital expenditures or the acquisition of fixed assets with expected aggregate expenditures 

in excess of $200,000; 
  
(xii)                      are subject to United States Department of Agriculture, Grain Inspection, Packers & Stockyards 

Administration oversight or the Packers and Stockyards Act, 1921 (7 U.S.C § 181, et seq.), as amended, or regulations 
promulgated thereunder; 

  



(xiii)                  relates to the hedging of currency, commodity or interest rate risk or contains a swap or similar 
arrangement; 

  
(xiv)                  contains a license of Intellectual Property (other than any non-exclusive license concerning 

commercially available software involving in any such case 
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aggregate payments by the Company of less than $100,000) granted by a third party (or third parties) to the Company or by the 
Company to a third party (or third parties); 

  
(xv)                      contains any form of most-favored-nation clause or grants any party exclusivity; or 
  
(xvi)                  relate to the indemnification of any individual who at the Closing is, or at any time prior to the 

Closing was, a director, manager or officer of the Company in such individual’s capacity as director, manager or officer of the 
Company. 

  
(b)                         To the Knowledge of the Company, the Company has not received any written notice of any material 

breach or default or event that with or without notice or lapse of time, or both, would constitute a material breach or default by the 
Company under any Material Contract.  The Company is not and, to the Knowledge of the Company, no other party thereto is in 
material breach of or default under any Material Contract.  No event has occurred with respect to the Company that (with or 
without the passage of time or giving of notice, or both) would constitute a material breach or default of, or permit termination, 
modification, acceleration or cancellation of, any Material Contract or of any material right or obligation thereunder.  To the 
Knowledge of the Company, no event has occurred with respect to any party to a Material Contract that (with or without the 
passage of time or giving of notice, or both) would constitute a material breach or default of, or permit termination, modification, 
acceleration or cancellation of, any Material Contract or of any material right or obligation thereunder.  The Company has not 
waived in writing any material right under any Material Contract.  Except as set forth in Schedule 5.11(b), as of the date hereof, (i) 
the Company has not terminated, modified, accelerated or canceled any Material Contract or any material right or liability 
thereunder or communicated in writing its intent to do so, and (ii) the Company has not received any written notice from any party 
to any Material Contract communicating its intent to terminate, modify, accelerate or cancel any Material Contract.  The Company 
has not received any prepayment under any Material Contract for any service that has not been fully performed or good that has 
not been supplied (other than as is fully reflected in the Interim Balance Sheet and will be in Closing Net Working Capital).  If the 
parties to a Material Contract are performing under terms that have expired by the express terms of such Material Contract, then 
Schedule 5.10(a) identifies such expiration and describes the material terms under which such parties continue to perform.  As of 
the date hereof, there are no ongoing negotiations with respect to any Material Contract, and the Company has not received any 
notice of a party’s desire or intent to renegotiate a Material Contract. 

  
(c)                          Each of the Material Contracts is legal, valid and binding on the Company and, to the Knowledge of the 

Company, each other party thereto, and is in full force and effect and enforceable (except to the extent enforceability may be 
limited by the Bankruptcy and Equity Exception) in accordance with its terms against the Company and, to the Knowledge of the 
Company, against each other party thereto, except to the extent such failures to be legal, valid, binding, in full force and effect or 
enforceable would not, individually or in the aggregate, be material. 
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SECTION 5.12                   Employee Benefits Plans. 
  

(a)                          Schedule 5.12(a) sets forth a list of each material Company Benefit Plan or Company Employee 
Agreement.  The Company has made available to Buyer true, correct and complete copies of (i) each Company Benefit Plan or 
Company Employee Agreement (or, in the case of any such Company Benefit Plan or Company Employee Agreement that is 
unwritten, a description thereof) and any amendments, (ii) the most recent annual reports on Form 5500 required to be filed with 
the IRS with respect to each Company Benefit Plan (if any such report was required), (iii) the most recent summary plan 
description, and any summaries of material modifications, for each Company Benefit Plan for which such summary plan description 



is required, (iv) each trust agreement and insurance or group annuity contract relating to any Company Benefit Plan, and (v) all 
written communication to or from any Governmental Body materially affecting the Company Benefit Plans or Company Employee 
Agreements for the past three (3) years.  The Company Benefit Plans and Company Employee Agreements are all in material 
compliance with their terms and the applicable provisions of ERISA, the Code and all other applicable Laws. 

  
(b)                         All Company Benefit Plans that are “employee pension plans” (as defined in Section 3(3) of ERISA) and 

that are intended to be tax qualified under Section 401(a) of the Code that are sponsored or maintained by the Company (each, a 
“Company Pension Plan”) have received a current favorable determination letter from the IRS or may rely on the opinion letter 
received by the pre-approved plan sponsor from the IRS with respect to the tax-qualified status thereof and (ii) to the Knowledge 
of the Company, no event has occurred since the date of the most recent determination or opinion letter relating to any such 
Company Pension Plan that would reasonably be expected to result in such Company Pension Plan losing tax-qualified status.  The 
Company has made available to Buyer the most recent determination or opinion letter received with respect to each Company 
Pension Plan. 

  
(c)                          None of the Company Benefit Plans or Company Employee Agreements provide retiree medical or other 

retiree welfare benefits to any Person, other than health continuation coverage as required by Section 4980B of the Code or Part 6 
of Title I of ERISA or applicable state laws, and all such coverage is provided solely at the individual’s expense. 

  
(d)                        No Company Benefit Plan is (i) an employee benefit plan subject to Title IV of ERISA or Section 412 of 

the Code or (ii) a “multiemployer plan” (within the meaning of Section 4001(a)(3) of ERISA).  Neither the Company nor any 
Person that, together with the Company is or was (within the past six (6) years) treated as a single employer under Section 414 of 
the Code, has at any time contributed to, or has had any liability or obligation in respect of, any plan subject to Title IV of ERISA. 

  
(e)                          There are no material claims, actions, administrative agency charges, proceedings or investigations pending 

or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened against the Company with respect to any Company Benefit Plans or Company 
Employee Agreements (other than claims for benefits in the Ordinary Course of Business). 

  
(f)                           Except as set forth in Schedule 5.12(f), no Company Benefit Plan or Company Employee Agreement exists 

that, as a result of the execution of this Agreement or the 
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transactions contemplated by this Agreement (whether alone or in connection with any subsequent event), would reasonably be 
expected to (i) result in the payment of severance or any increase in severance pay upon any termination of employment after the 
date of this Agreement to any employee or (ii) accelerate the time of payment or vesting or result in any forfeiture, payment or 
funding (through a grantor trust of otherwise) of compensation or benefits under, or increase the amount payable pursuant to, any 
Company Benefit Plan or Company Employee Agreement with respect to any individual (other than with respect to any portion of 
the Purchase Price, if any, to which such individual is entitled as a Seller). 

  
(g)                         All nonqualified deferred compensation plans (as defined in Section 409A of the Code) of the Company are 

in compliance with Section 409A of the Code and neither the Company Benefit Plans or Company Employee Agreements nor the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement will cause a participant in such Company Benefit Plan or 
Company Employee Agreement to be subject to the tax imposed by Section 409A of the Code. 

  
(h)                         Upon the termination of any Company Benefit Plan, no benefits would be due to any participant other than 

the benefits described in such Company Benefit Plan. 
  
(i)                             The execution of this Agreement and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby will not, as 

of the Closing, constitute an event under any Company Benefit Plan or Employee Agreement resulting in the payment of any amount 
that may be deemed an “excess parachute payment” under Section 280G of the Code. 

  
(j)                             The Company has not engaged in a non-exempt “prohibited transaction” within the meaning of Section 4975 

of the Code with respect to any Company Benefit Plan.  There are no facts or circumstances that would reasonably be expected to 
result in the imposition on the Company of any Tax under Section 4980H of the Code. 

  



  
SECTION 5.13                   Labor. 
  

(a)                          Schedule 5.13(a) contains a complete and accurate list identifying all current Employees of the Company as 
of the date hereof and specifying with respect to each such individual, as of the date hereof: (i) job title, primary work location, start 
date, base salary or regular hourly wage rate, target bonus for 2015 (if applicable), classification as full-time or part-time and as 
exempt or non-exempt under the Fair Labor Standards Act; (ii) whether the individual is on or, to the Knowledge of the Company, 
is expected to start any disability leave or other leave of absence (other than the use of vacation leave in the Ordinary Course of 
Business); and (iii) whether the individual is subject to any agreement with the Company that makes the relationship between the 
individual and the Company anything other than an “at-will” relationship that may be terminated by either party at any time, with or 
without notice, without any liability to the Company. 

  
(b)                         Schedule 5.13(b) sets forth a list of all written Company policies, procedures, handbooks or codes of 

conduct that apply to any current Employee of the Company. 
  
(c)                          Except as set forth in Schedule 5.13(c), (i) there are no pending or otherwise unresolved or, to the 

Knowledge of the Company, threatened workers’ compensation 
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Proceedings with respect to any Employee; (ii) there is no pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened Proceeding 
or investigation by any Governmental Body with respect to any Employee that involves any alleged violation or breach by the 
Company (or any of its officers or directors) of any applicable labor Law or Contract; and (iii) the Company has not been the 
subject of any pending, or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened complaints or investigations conducted by the 
Occupational Safety and Health Administration or similar state Governmental Body and, to the Knowledge of the Company, the 
Company has complied in all material respects with all applicable Laws concerning occupational safety and health. 

  
(d)        The Company is not a party to any unexpired labor or collective bargaining agreement. The Company is not 

a party or subject to any pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened material labor strike, organized work 
stoppage, slowdown, lock out, unfair labor practice charge or similar labor activity or dispute affecting the Company. 

  
(e)      The Company has materially complied with the applicable Laws relating to the preparation and retention of 

Form 1-9 for each current Employee with respect to whom such form is required under applicable Law. 
  
(f)         To the Knowledge of the Company, no current Employee is subject to any obligation of confidentiality or 

non-competition that would reasonably be expected to restrict or impede the activities of any such Employee on behalf of the 
Company. 

  
(g)        Except as set forth on Schedule 5.13(g), to the Knowledge of the Company, as of the date hereof, no 

member of the Company’s senior leadership team has any intention to terminate such Employee’s relationship with the Company 
either before or after the Closing. 

  
SECTION 5.14                   Litigation.  There are no (a) investigations by a Governmental Body pending or, to the Knowledge of 

the Company, threatened against the Company, or (b) material Proceedings pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, 
threatened against the Company.  The Company is not subject to any Order, except to the extent the same would not reasonably 
be material to the Company.  The Company is not in breach or default of any Order. 

  
SECTION 5.15                   Compliance with Laws; Permits. 
  

(a)                          The Company is, and for the last three (3) years has been, in compliance in all material respects with all 
Laws applicable to its business or operations.  During the last three (3) years, to the Knowledge of the Company, the Company 
has not received any written notice of the violation of any Laws by the Company. 

  
(b)                         The Company currently has all material Permits required for the operation of its business as presently 

conducted, and each such Permit is listed in Schedule 5.15.  The Company is in compliance in all material respects with the terms 



of the Permits to which it is a party.  During the last three (3) years, to the Knowledge of the Company, the Company has not 
received any notice of revocation, suspension, modification or termination with respect to any such Permit.  No such Permit is 
subject to revocation, suspension, modification or termination as a result of transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 
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(c)                          Except as to meat and poultry products exempt from compliance, during the last six (6) years, the Company 

and its Products have been in compliance with California’s Safe Drinking Water and Toxic Enforcement Act of 1986 (Proposition 
65). 

  
(d)                        During the last six (6) years, the Company’s Products are and have at all times been produced, 

manufactured, packaged, distributed, and labeled in compliance with the Federal Meat Inspection Act (FMIA), the Poultry 
Product Inspection Act (PPIA), the Federal Food, Drug and Cosmetic Act (FDCA), and all similar U.S. Federal and state laws 
and regulations relating to food products. 

  
(e)                          During the last six (6) years, the Company’s Products have not been adulterated or misbranded within the 

meaning of the FMIA, PPIA, and FDCA, and all similar U.S. state laws, nor have such Products been an article prohibited from 
introduction into interstate commerce under the FMIA, PPIA or FDCA at the time such article was delivered to the Company’s 
customers. 

  
(f)                           During the last six (6) years, the Company’s advertising, labeling, and claims for the Company’s Products 

have been in compliance with the FMIA, PPIA, FDCA, Federal Trade Commission Act (FTCA), state law equivalents to the 
FTCA, the Uniform Deceptive Trade Practices Act (as adopted by the U.S. states), and any other similar unfair or deceptive trade 
practices or false advertising laws. 

  
(g)                         Each source of raw material used in the Company’s Products, including all producers and processors that 

supply product to any co-packer on behalf of the Company, is compliant in all material respects with all written specifications or 
standards of production or care required by the Company to ensure that production output conforms to labeling claims, and the 
Company has access to and the right to have audited all production records to ensure that raw material used in the Products 
conforms to the specifications and standards of production and processing that are required to meet all advertising or labeling 
claims for such Products. All raw material used in the Company’s Products in transit from any jurisdiction outside of the United 
States conforms with applicable USDA inspection requirements that are applicable to the import of such material into the United 
States. 

  
(h)                         During the last six (6) years, to the Knowledge of the Company, the Company has not received written 

notice of any allegations or claims made by the FDA, USDA, FTC, state attorneys general, any other government agency, 
consumer, consumer group, competitor, supplier, customer, or attorney that any of the Company’s Products were (1) unsafe; (2) 
posed a threat to human safety; (3) defective; (4) misbranded; or (5) falsely or misleading labeled or advertised. 

  
(i)                             Except as set forth in Schedule 5.15(i), during the last six (6) years, (i) there have been no recalls or market 

withdrawals (as those terms are defined by the FDA and USDA, as applicable) of any Product of the Company, whether ordered 
by a Governmental Body or undertaken voluntarily by the Company, and (ii) none of the Products of the Company have been 
adulterated, misbranded, mispackaged, or mislabeled in violation of applicable Law, or pose a threat to the health or safety of a 
consumer when consumed in the intended manner. 
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SECTION 5.16                   Environmental Matters. 
  

(a)                          The Company is in material compliance with all applicable Environmental Laws. The Company has obtained 
each material Permit that it is required to obtain under any Environmental Law.  The Company is, and during the last six (6) years 
has been, in compliance in all material respects with the terms and conditions of all material Permits issued to the Company pursuant 
to any Environmental Law. To the Knowledge of the Company, no incident, condition, change, effect or circumstance with respect 



to the Company has occurred during the last six (6) years that would reasonably be expected to prevent or interfere with the 
effectiveness or renewal of any material Permit. 

  
(b)                         The Company is not a party to any pending or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened Proceeding 

alleging material non-compliance by the Company with, or that the Company has any material liability under, Environmental Laws.   
To the Knowledge of the Company, during the last six (6) years the Company has not installed, used, generated, treated, disposed 
of or arranged for the disposal of any Hazardous Material in any manner so as to create any liability under any Environmental Law 
or any other liability for the Company or Buyer. 

  
(c)                          Sellers have delivered to Buyer a true, correct and complete copy of all reports, Permits, authorizations, 

disclosures and other documents relating to the status of any of the Leased Real Property or otherwise relating to the business of 
the Company with respect to any Environmental Law (including all Phase I and Phase II environmental site assessments related to 
any of the Leased Real Property) that are in the Company’s or the Sellers’ possession or control. 

  
SECTION 5.17                   Insurance.  All insurance policies maintained by the Company as of the date of this Agreement are set 

forth on Schedule 5.17.  As of the date of this Agreement, all such policies are legal, valid, binding, enforceable and in full force and 
effect, all premiums due and payable thereon have been paid (other than retroactive or retrospective premium adjustments that are 
not yet but may be required to be paid with respect to any period ending prior to the Closing Date) and to the Knowledge of the 
Company no notice of cancellation or termination has been received with respect to any such policy which has not been replaced 
on substantially similar terms prior to the date of such cancellation.  The Company is not in default or otherwise in breach thereof 
(including regarding payment of premiums or giving of notices) in any material respect. 

  
SECTION 5.18                   Transactions with Affiliates.  Except as set forth in Schedule 5.18, the Company is not, and for the three 

(3) years immediately preceding the date of this Agreement has not been, indebted to, or a party to any agreement with, any Seller, 
director, employee, manager or officer (or any of their Affiliates) of the Company (or in the case of any such Person who is an 
individual, any member of his or her immediate family) (each, a “Company Related Person”), other than the Company Employee 
Agreements, or for reimbursable business expenses in the Ordinary Course of Business or benefits under the Plans, nor is any 
Company Related Person indebted to the Company, other than for advances made to employees of the Company in the Ordinary 
Course of Business to meet reimbursable business expenses reasonably anticipated to be incurred by such obligor.  No Company 
Related Person currently has any interest in real or personal property used by the Company. 

  
32 

 

  
SECTION 5.19    No Brokers.  Except as set forth in Schedule 5.19 (all of which arrangements constitute Transaction 

Expenses), no Person has acted, directly or indirectly, as a broker, finder or financial advisor for the Company in connection with 
the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and no such Person is entitled to any fee or commission or like payment from the 
Company in respect thereof. 

  
SECTION 5.20                   Suppliers.  Schedule 5.20(a) sets forth a list (listing the dollar volume for each) of (a) the ten (10) 

largest suppliers or vendors by dollar volume to the Company (or any co-packer or processor for the benefit of the Company) 
(based on purchases during the Company’s 2014 fiscal year) (collectively, “Suppliers”) and (b) in percentage terms, the sources of 
raw materials supplied to each of the Suppliers.  Except as set forth in Schedule 5.20(b), during the twelve (12) months 
immediately prior to the date hereof, no Supplier has materially reduced, made any material adverse change in, canceled or 
otherwise terminated, or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened to materially reduce, make any material adverse change in, 
cancel or otherwise terminate, its relationship with the Company. 

  
SECTION 5.21                   Customers.  Schedule 5.21(a) sets forth a list (listing the dollar volume for each) of the ten (10) largest 

customers by dollar volume (“Customers”) of the Company (based on purchases during the Company’s 2014 fiscal year).  During 
the twelve (12) months immediately prior to the date hereof, no Customer has materially reduced, made any material adverse 
change in, canceled or otherwise terminated, or, to the Knowledge of the Company, threatened to materially reduce, make any 
material adverse change in, cancel or otherwise terminate, its relationship with the Company.  As of the date hereof, no material 
changes have been made since the date of the Interim Financial Statements (with such amount determined by aggregating the line 
items for Sales Adjustments, CPU, Coupon and Trade in the Interim Financial Statements) to the aggregate amount of discounts, 
trade ins, allowances, price concessions, incentive or rebate programs (including discount, slotting/intro allowances, bill-back price 



concessions, or volume incentives) utilized by the Company, except changes due to seasonality that are consistent with the 
Company’s 2015 annual budget provided to Buyer by the Company. 

  
SECTION 5.22                   Exclusivity of Company Representations.  Except for the representations and warranties expressly set 

forth in this Article V (as modified by the Disclosure Schedules) and any representations and warranties expressly set forth in any 
Company Document, the Company makes no other representation or warranty, and the Company hereby disclaims all liability and 
responsibility for any other representation, warranty, projection, forecast, statement or information made, communicated or 
furnished (orally or in writing) to Buyer or its Affiliates or representatives (including any opinion, information, projection or advice 
that may have been or may be provided to Buyer or any of its Affiliates or representatives by any director, manager, officer, 
employee, agent, consultant or representative of any Seller, the Company, the Blocker or any of their respective Affiliates). 
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ARTICLE VI 

  
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF THE BLOCKER 

  
Except as disclosed in the Disclosure Schedules, the Blocker hereby represents and warrants to Buyer that each statement 

contained in this Article VI is true and correct. 
  
SECTION 6.1                           Organization.  The Blocker is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under 

the laws of the State of Delaware, and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and 
to carry on its business as now conducted.  The Blocker is duly qualified or authorized to do business as a foreign entity in each 
other jurisdiction in which it owns, leases or operates properties, or conducts business, so as to require such qualification or 
authorization, except where the failure to be so qualified or authorized would not have a material adverse effect on the Blocker and 
the Company taken as a whole. 

  
SECTION 6.2                           Authorization of Agreement.  The Blocker has all requisite corporate power and authority to execute 

and deliver this Agreement and the other documents, instruments, certificates, and agreements contemplated hereby to be executed 
by the Blocker in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (the “Blocker 
Documents”) and to consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.  The execution, delivery and performance of 
this Agreement and each Blocker Document by the Blocker have been duly authorized and approved by all necessary action with 
respect to the Blocker, and each such authorization and approval remains in full force and effect.  This Agreement has been, and 
each of the Blocker Documents has been or will be at or prior to the Closing, duly and validly executed and delivered by the 
Blocker, and this Agreement constitutes, and each Blocker Document constitutes or when so executed and delivered will 
constitute, the legal, valid and binding obligation of the Blocker, enforceable against it in accordance with its terms, subject to the 
Bankruptcy and Equity Exception. 

  
SECTION 6.3                           Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties. 
  

(a)                          None of the execution and delivery by the Blocker of this Agreement or the Blocker Documents, the 
consummation by the Blocker of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or compliance by the Blocker with any of the 
provisions hereof or thereof will result (with or without notice or lapse of time, or both) in any amendment, suspension, 
modification, acceleration of rights under, the imposition of any Lien, violation of or default under, or give rise to a right of 
amendment, suspension, modification, acceleration of rights or obligations, termination, cancellation, or right to impose any Lien 
under any provision of (i) the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of the Blocker; (ii) any material Contract or material Permit to 
which the Blocker is a party or by which it or any of the properties or assets of the Blocker is bound; (iii) any Order applicable to 
the Blocker or by which any of the properties or assets of the Blocker is bound; or (iv) any applicable Law. 

  
(b)                         No consent, waiver, approval or authorization of, or declaration or filing with, or notification to, any 

Governmental Body is required on the part of the Blocker in connection with the execution and delivery by the Blocker of this 
Agreement or the Blocker 
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Documents or the consummation by the Blocker of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, except (i) for compliance with 
the applicable requirements of the HSR Act and any other applicable Antitrust Laws and (ii) as may be necessary as a result of any 
facts or circumstance relating solely to Buyer or any of its Affiliates. 

  
SECTION 6.4                           Capitalization. 
  

(a)                          The record owners of all of the outstanding Blocker Interests are set forth in Exhibit A. 
  
(b)                         All outstanding Blocker Interests are duly authorized, validly issued, fully paid and non-assessable and not 

subject to and were not issued in violation of any purchase option, call option, right of first refusal, preemptive right, subscription 
right or any similar right under any provision of the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware, the organizational 
documents of the Blocker or any Contract to which the Blocker is a party or otherwise bound. 

  
(c)                          There is no option, warrant, call, put, convertible instrument, Contract, commitment, purchase right, 

subscription right, conversion right, exchange right, right of first refusal, or similar right, agreement, arrangement or undertaking of 
any kind whereby any Person has, or has a right to receive, any equity interest of, or right or obligation to acquire any equity 
interest of, the Blocker.  There are no proxies, voting trusts, voting agreements or similar rights or Contracts with respect to the 
Blocker Interests or the Blocker.  There are no stock appreciation rights, profit participation rights, phantom stock or similar rights 
with respect to the Blocker. 

  
(d)                        The Blocker does not own, or have any ownership interest in, any Person other than the Company. 
  

SECTION 6.5                           Title.  The Blocker is the sole record and beneficial owner of, and has good and valid title to, the Units 
set forth opposite its name on Exhibit A. 

  
SECTION 6.6                           Blocker Operations.  The Blocker was formed solely for the purpose of acquiring and holding Units 

and, other than the transactions pursuant to which the Blocker acquired the Units set forth opposite its name on Exhibit A and 
activities incidental to its ownership of the Units, the Blocker has not engaged in any business activities or conducted any operations 
whatsoever.  As of the Closing Date, the Blocker will not have any liabilities, other than (i) its obligations in respect of Taxes and (ii) 
its obligations under this Agreement and the Blocker Documents, its certificate of incorporation, by-laws and similar governing 
documents.  The Blocker has no liability, actual or contingent, with respect to any Plan sponsored or contributed to by the Blocker 
or any Person that, together with the Blocker, is or was (at a relevant time) treated as a single employer under Section 414 of the 
Code. 

  
SECTION 6.7                           Tax Representations. 
  

(a)                          The Blocker has timely filed all material Tax Returns required to be filed by it and such Tax Returns were 
true and correct in all material respects, and all material Taxes owed by the Blocker have been timely paid (whether or not shown 
as due on any Tax Return). 
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(b)                         The Blocker has withheld and paid over, or caused to be withheld and paid over, to the appropriate Taxing 

Authorities, all material Taxes required to be so withheld and paid over for all periods under all applicable Law. 
  
(c)         Except as set forth in Schedule 6.7(c), no examination, claim, litigation or other Proceeding is pending or, to 

the knowledge of the Blocker, threatened with regard to any material Taxes of the Blocker. 
  
(d)        No requests for waivers of the time to assess any material Tax have been made that are still pending (other 

than extensions of time to file Tax Returns obtained in the ordinary course). 
  
(e)         The Blocker is not engaged in any “listed transaction” within the meaning of Treasury Regulations Section 

1.6011-4(b)(2). 
  



  
(f)         In the last two (2) years, the Blocker has not distributed stock of another Person or had its stock distributed 

by another Person in a transaction that was purported or intended to be governed in whole or in part by Sections 355 or 361 of the 
Code. 

  
(g)        No written claim has been made in the last three (3) years by a Taxing Authority in a jurisdiction where the 

Blocker does not file any Tax Return that the Blocker is or may be subject to Taxation by such jurisdiction. 
  
(h)                         The Blocker will not be required to include any material item of income in, or exclude any material item of 

deduction from, Taxable income for any Taxable period (or portion thereof) ending after the Closing Date as a result of any 
(i) change in method of accounting for a Taxable period ending on or before the Closing Date; (ii) “closing agreement” as described 
in Section 7121 of the Code or other agreement with a Taxing Authority (or any similar provision of any Law) executed on or 
before the Closing Date; (iii) intercompany transaction or excess loss account described in Treasury Regulations under Section 
1502 of the Code (or any similar provision of any Law); (iv) installment sale or open transaction disposition made on or before the 
Closing Date; or (v) prepaid amount received on or before the Closing Date, other than any such amount received in the Ordinary 
Course of Business. 

  
(i)                             Neither the Blocker, nor any predecessor of the Blocker, has been a member of a group (including an 

affiliated group) with which it has filed or been included in a combined, consolidated or unitary income tax Tax Return, other than 
the group in which it is currently a member.  The Blocker has not been a party to or bound by any Tax indemnity agreement, Tax 
sharing agreement, Tax allocation agreement or similar Contract that includes any Person other than the Blocker (other than any 
such agreement or Contract not primarily related to Taxes).  Neither the Blocker nor any predecessor of the Blocker is liable for 
any Tax of any Taxpayer other than the Blocker under Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar provision of any 
Law), as a transferee or successor, by Contract (including any Tax allocation agreement, Tax sharing agreement or Tax indemnity 
agreement) or otherwise, in each case for any Taxable period beginning before the Closing Date.  After the Closing Date, neither 
the Blocker nor any predecessor of the Blocker will be bound by or have any liability under any Tax indemnity agreement, Tax 
sharing agreement, Tax allocation agreement or similar Contract 
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entered into before the Closing (other than any such agreement or Contract not primarily related to Taxes), including for any 
amount due with respect to any taxable period ending on or before the Closing Date. 

  
SECTION 6.8                           Exclusivity of Blocker Representations.  Except for the representations and warranties expressly set 

forth in this Article VI (as modified by the Disclosure Schedules) and any representations and warranties expressly set forth in any 
Blocker Document, the Blocker makes no other representation or warranty, and the Blocker hereby disclaims all liability and 
responsibility for any other representation, warranty, projection, forecast, statement or information made, communicated or 
furnished (orally or in writing) to Buyer or its Affiliates or representatives (including any opinion, information, projection or advice 
that may have been or may be provided to Buyer or any of its Affiliates or representatives by any director, manager, officer, 
employee, agent, consultant or representative of any Seller, the Company, the Blocker or any of their respective Affiliates). 

  
ARTICLE VII 

  
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES OF BUYER 

  
Buyer hereby represents and warrants to the Company, the Blocker and the Sellers that each statement contained 

in this Article VII is true and correct. 
  

SECTION 7.1                           Organization.  Buyer is a corporation duly organized, validly existing and in good standing under the 
laws of the State of Delaware and has all requisite corporate power and authority to own, lease and operate its properties and 
carry on its business as now being conducted, except where the failure to have such power and authority would not, individually or 
in the aggregate, have an adverse effect on the ability of Buyer to perform its obligations under this Agreement or consummate the 
transactions contemplated hereby. 

  



SECTION 7.2                           Authorization of Agreement.  Buyer has all requisite corporate power and authority to execute and 
deliver this Agreement and the other documents, instruments, certificates, and agreements contemplated hereby to be executed by 
Buyer in connection with the consummation of the transactions contemplated this Agreement (the “Buyer Documents”), and to 
consummate the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby.  The execution, delivery and performance of this Agreement and 
each Buyer Document by Buyer have been duly authorized and approved by all necessary action with respect to Buyer, and each 
such authorization and approval remains in full force and effect. This Agreement has been, and each Buyer Document has been or 
will be at or prior to the Closing, duly and validly executed and delivered by Buyer, and this Agreement constitutes, and each Buyer 
Document constitutes or when so executed and delivered will constitute, the legal, valid and binding obligation of Buyer, 
enforceable against Buyer in accordance with its terms, subject to the Bankruptcy and Equity Exception. 

  
SECTION 7.3                           Conflicts; Consents of Third Parties. 
  

(a)                          None of the execution and delivery by Buyer of this Agreement or the Buyer Documents, the consummation 
of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, or compliance by Buyer with any of the provisions hereof or thereof will result 
(with or without 
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notice or lapse of time, or both) in any amendment, suspension, modification, acceleration of rights under, the imposition of any 
Lien, violation of or default under, or give rise to a right of amendment, suspension, modification, acceleration of rights or 
obligations, termination, cancellation, or to impose any Lien under, any provision of (i) the certificate of incorporation or by-laws of 
Buyer; (ii) any Contract or Permit to which Buyer is a party or by which it or any of the properties or assets of Buyer is bound; 
(iii) any Order applicable to Buyer or by which any of the properties or assets of Buyer is bound; or (iv) any applicable Law, other 
than, in the case of clauses (ii), (iii) and (iv), such amendments, suspensions, modifications, accelerations, impositions, violations, 
defaults, terminations or cancellations that would not, individually or in the aggregate, have an adverse effect on the ability of Buyer 
to perform its obligations under this Agreement or consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement. 

  
(b)                         No consent, waiver, approval or authorization of, or declaration or filing with, or notification to, any 

Governmental Body is required on the part of Buyer in connection with the execution and delivery of this Agreement or the Buyer 
Documents or the consummation by Buyer of the transactions contemplated hereby or thereby, except for compliance with the 
applicable requirements of the HSR Act, any other applicable Antitrust Laws and Section 13(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 
1934, as amended, and the rules and regulations promulgated thereunder. 

  
SECTION 7.4                           Litigation.  There are no Proceedings pending or, to the knowledge of Buyer, threatened against Buyer 

that are reasonably likely to prohibit or restrain the ability of Buyer to enter into this Agreement or consummate the transactions 
contemplated hereby. 

  
SECTION 7.5                           Investment Intention.  Buyer is acquiring the Units and the Blocker Interests for its own account, for 

investment purposes only and not with a view to the distribution (as such term is used in Section 2(11) of the Securities Act of 
1933, as amended (the “Securities Act”)) thereof.  Buyer understands that the Units and the Blocker Interests have not been 
registered under the Securities Act and cannot be sold, offered for sale, pledged or otherwise transferred unless subsequently 
registered under the Securities Act or unless an exemption from such registration is available.  Buyer is an “accredited investor” (as 
such term is defined under Rule 501(a) of Regulation D under the Securities Act) and possesses such knowledge and experience in 
financial and business matters that it is capable of evaluating the merits and risks of its investment in the Units and the Blocker 
Interests. 

  
SECTION 7.6                           No Brokers.  Buyer has no obligation to any Person, directly or indirectly, as a broker, finder or 

financial advisor for Buyer in connection with the transactions contemplated by this Agreement that would cause any Seller, the 
Company or the Blocker to become liable for payment of any fee or expense with respect thereto. 

  
SECTION 7.7                           Sufficient Funds.  Buyer has and will have as of the Closing cash available or existing borrowing 

facilities which together are and will be sufficient to pay all amounts to be paid by Buyer in connection with this Agreement and the 
other Buyer Documents and the transactions contemplated hereby and thereby, including the payment by Buyer of all obligations 
pursuant to Section 2.3(a), and Buyer’s costs and expenses on the terms and conditions contained in this Agreement, and there is 



not, nor will there be, any restriction on the use of such cash for such purpose. 
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SECTION 7.8                           Solvency.  Buyer is not entering into the transactions contemplated by this Agreement with the actual 

intent to hinder, delay or defraud either present or future creditors of the Company.  Assuming the accuracy of the representations 
and warranties of the Company contained in Article V, at Closing, and after giving effect to the transactions contemplated by this 
Agreement, Buyer and the Company (a) will be solvent (in that both the fair value of its assets will not be less than the sum of its 
debts and the present fair saleable value of its assets will not be less than the amount required to pay its probable liabilities on its 
debts as they become absolute and matured); (b) will have adequate capital and liquidity with which to engage in its business; and 
(c) will not have incurred and will not incur debts beyond its ability to pay as they become absolute and matured. 

  
SECTION 7.9                           Condition of the Business.  Notwithstanding anything contained in this Agreement to the contrary, Buyer 

acknowledges that none of the Company, the Blocker, any Seller, any of their respective Affiliates or any other Person is making 
any representations or warranties whatsoever, express or implied, beyond those expressly given by the Sellers in Article IV (as 
modified by the Disclosure Schedules) or in the Seller Documents, the Company in Article V (as modified by the Disclosure 
Schedules) or in the Company Documents and the Blocker in Article VI (as modified by the Disclosure Schedules) or in the 
Blocker Documents.  Buyer further acknowledges that none of the Company, the Blocker, any Seller, any of their respective 
Affiliates or any other Person has made any representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of 
any information regarding the Sellers, the Company, the Blocker or the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, not expressly 
set forth in this Agreement, the Seller Documents, the Company Documents or the Blocker Documents, and none of the Company, 
the Blocker, any Seller or any of their respective Affiliates or any other Person will have or be subject to any liability to Buyer or 
any other Person resulting from the distribution to Buyer or any of its Affiliates or representatives of, or Buyer’s or any such other 
Person’s use of, any such information, including any confidential memoranda distributed on behalf of the Company or other 
publications or data room information provided to Buyer or any of its Affiliates or representatives, or any other document or 
information in any form provided to Buyer or any of its Affiliates or representatives in connection with the transactions contemplated 
hereby. 

  
ARTICLE VIII 

  
COVENANTS 

  
SECTION 8.1                           Access to Information.  Subject to the Confidentiality Agreement and applicable Law relating to the 

sharing of information, prior to the Closing Date, upon reasonable notice to the Company, Buyer shall be entitled, through its 
officers, employees and representatives, to make such investigation of the properties, businesses and operations of the Company 
and such examination of the books and records of the Company as it reasonably requests (provided that Buyer and its 
representatives shall conduct any such activities in such a manner as not to interfere unreasonably with the business or operations of 
the Company) and, at Buyer’s cost and expense, to make extracts and copies of such books and records.  Any such investigation 
and examination shall be conducted during regular business hours upon reasonable advance notice and under reasonable 
circumstances and shall be subject to restrictions under applicable Law.  Buyer and its representatives shall cooperate with the 
Company and its 
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representatives and shall use reasonable best efforts to minimize any disruption to the business in connection with such investigation 
and examination.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, no such investigation or examination shall be permitted if such 
investigation or examination would jeopardize any attorney-client privilege or other privilege or contravene applicable Law.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained herein, prior to the Closing, without the prior written consent of a representative 
of the Company (who shall be identified in writing to Buyer as the representative contemplated by this Section 8.1), (i) Buyer shall 
not contact any suppliers to, or customers or employees of, the Company with respect to the transactions contemplated hereby, 
and (ii) Buyer shall have no right to perform invasive or subsurface investigations of the properties or facilities of the Company.  
Buyer shall and shall cause Buyer’s Affiliates and representatives to keep confidential any non-public information received from the 
Company, its Affiliates or its representatives, directly or indirectly, pursuant to this Section 8.1 in accordance with the 



Confidentiality Agreement. 
  
SECTION 8.2                           Conduct of the Business Pending the Closing. 
  

(a)                          Prior to the Closing, except (i) as set forth on Schedule 8.2, (ii) as required by applicable Law, (iii) as 
otherwise contemplated by this Agreement or (iv) with the prior written consent of Buyer (which consent shall not be unreasonably 
withheld, conditioned or delayed), each of the Company and the Blocker shall use its commercially reasonable efforts to conduct its 
business in the Ordinary Course of Business. 

  
(b)                         Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, except (w) as set forth on Schedule 8.2, (x) as required by 

applicable Law, (y) as otherwise contemplated by this Agreement or (z) with the prior written consent of Buyer (which consent 
shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed), the Company and the Blocker shall not: 

  
(i)                                  issue or sell any shares of the Company’s or the Blocker’s capital stock or other equity securities; 
  
(ii)                              issue or sell any securities convertible into, or options with respect to, warrants to purchase, or 

rights to subscribe for, any shares of the Company’s or the Blocker’s capital stock or other equity securities; 
  
(iii)                          effect any recapitalization, reclassification, stock dividend, stock split or like change in the 

capitalization of the Company or the Blocker; 
  
(iv)                          amend in any material respect the certificate of incorporation or by-laws or comparable 

organizational documents of the Company or the Blocker; 
  
(v)                              other than in the Ordinary Course of Business or as contemplated by an existing Company Benefit 

Plan or Company Employee Agreement, agreement, policy or arrangement (including any collective bargaining agreement) 
(A) increase the annual level of compensation of any officer of the Company, (B) modify or amend any Company Benefit Plan or 
Company Employee Agreement in any manner that materially increases the amount of the liability attributable to the Company in 
respect of such Company Benefit Plan or Company Employee Agreement, (C) grant or pay any extraordinary bonus or other 
extraordinary discretionary compensation to any employee of the Company, or (D) enter into any employment 
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Contract (other than any Contract terminable without cost or penalty by the Company by notice of not more than sixty (60) days) 
with any individual to serve as an officer of the Company; 

  
(vi)                          subject to any Lien any of the properties or assets (whether tangible or intangible) of the Company 

or the Blocker, except (A) in the Ordinary Course of Business or (B) for Permitted Exceptions; 
  
(vii)                      become legally committed to make any capital expenditures, except for capital expenditures 

pursuant to projects for which work has already commenced or is otherwise contemplated in the capital expenditure budget; 
  
(viii)                  enter into any merger or consolidation with any Person, or acquire the securities or a substantial 

portion of the assets of any Person; 
  
(ix)                          incur or assume any indebtedness for borrowed money in excess of $200,000 or guarantee any 

such indebtedness, other than indebtedness incurred (A) in the Ordinary Course of Business or (B) under any existing credit 
facilities; 

  
(x)                              other than with respect to customers in the Ordinary Course of Business and employees or 

managers as advances of business expenses in the Ordinary Course of Business, loan or advance any funds to any Person; 
  
(xi)                          other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, sell, assign, license, transfer, convey or lease or 

otherwise dispose of any properties or assets of the Company having a value, in any individual case, in excess of $100,000; 
  



  
(xii)                      make or rescind any material election relating to Taxes, settle or compromise any material 

Proceeding relating to Taxes, or, except as required by GAAP, make any material change to any of its methods of accounting or 
methods of reporting income or deductions for Tax or accounting practice or policy from those employed in the preparation of its 
most recent Tax Returns, other than to account for the transactions contemplated by this Agreement (including making appropriate 
adjustments to estimated tax payments after the date hereof); 

  
(xiii)                  enter into any collective bargaining agreement; 
  
(xiv)                  other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, amend any material term of, or terminate or 

otherwise modify in any material respect any Material Contract; 
  
(xv)                      other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, materially delay, decrease or increase the rate of 

promotional or marketing expenditures; 
  
(xvi)                  cancel, terminate or modify any material insurance policy naming the Company as a beneficiary or a 

loss payable payee without obtaining reasonably comparable substitute insurance coverage; 
  
(xvii)              other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, license or sublicense any Company Intellectual 

Property; 
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(xviii)          other than in the Ordinary Course of Business, settle or compromise any litigation, except for cash 

payments to be made prior to Closing; 
  
(xix)                  acquire, purchase, redeem or encumber any equity interest; or 
  
(xx)                      authorize, or commit or agree to do, anything prohibited by this Section 8.2(b). 
  

(c)                          Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties to this Agreement acknowledge and agree that (i) nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall give Buyer, directly or indirectly, the right to control or direct the Company’s operations for 
purposes of the HSR Act or any other applicable Antitrust Law prior to the expiration or termination of any applicable waiting 
period under the HSR Act or any other applicable Antitrust Law waiting period, or prior to receipt of any applicable approval 
under any antitrust or competition law; and (ii) notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in this Agreement, no consent of 
Buyer will be required with respect to any matter set forth in this Agreement to the extent the requirement of such consent would 
violate any applicable Law. 

  
SECTION 8.3                           Consents.  Subject to Section 8.4, from the date hereof until the Closing, the Sellers, Buyer, the 

Company and the Blocker shall use their respective reasonable best efforts to obtain at the earliest practicable date all consents and 
approvals required to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement, including under the HSR Act; provided, 
however, that none of the Sellers, Buyer, the Company or the Blocker shall be obligated to pay any consideration to any third party 
from whom consent or approval is requested, other than the filing fees contemplated in Section 8.4. 

  
SECTION 8.4                           Regulatory Approvals. 
  

(a)                          Each of Buyer and, where applicable, the Company, the Blocker and the Sellers shall (i) make or cause to 
be made the registrations, declarations and filings required of such party under the HSR Act and any other Antitrust Law listed in 
Schedule 8.4 (“Antitrust Filings”) with respect to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement as promptly as reasonably 
practicable and advisable after the date of this Agreement (but in no event later than ten (10) Business Days from the execution of 
this Agreement), and Buyer shall pay any filing fees associated therewith and such initial filings from Buyer and the Company shall 
request early termination of any applicable waiting period under the HSR Act, (ii) agree not to extend any waiting period under the 
HSR Act or enter into any agreement with any Governmental Body not to consummate the transaction contemplated by this 
Agreement, except with the prior written consent of the other party not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed, 
(iii) subject to applicable Law, furnish to the other party as promptly as reasonably practicable all information required for any 



application or other filing to be made by the other party pursuant to any applicable Law in connection with the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement, (iv) respond as promptly as reasonably practicable to any inquiries received from, and supply as 
promptly as reasonably practicable any additional information or documentation that may be requested by the Antitrust Division of 
the U.S. Department of Justice (the “DOJ”), the Federal Trade Commission (the “FTC”) or any other Governmental Body in 
respect of such Antitrust Filings, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, (v) promptly notify the other 
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party of any material communication between that party and the FTC, the DOJ or any other Governmental Body in respect of any 
Antitrust Filings or any inquiry or Proceeding relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby and of any material 
communication received or given in connection with any Proceeding by a private party relating to the transactions contemplated 
hereby, (vi) subject to applicable Law, discuss with and permit the other party (and its counsel) to review in advance, and consider 
in good faith the other party’s reasonable comments in connection with, any Antitrust Filing or communication to the FTC, the DOJ 
or any other Governmental Body or in connection with any Proceeding by a private party to any other Person, relating to any 
Antitrust Filing or inquiry or other Proceeding relating to this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, (vii) not 
participate or agree to participate in any substantive meeting, telephone call or discussion with the FTC, the DOJ or any other 
Governmental Body in respect of any Antitrust Filing, inquiry or Proceeding relating to this Agreement or the transactions 
contemplated hereby unless it consults with the other party in advance and, to the extent permitted by such Governmental Body, 
gives the other party the opportunity to attend and participate in such meeting, telephone call or discussion, (viii) subject to 
applicable Law, furnish the other party promptly with copies of all correspondence, filings and communications between them and 
their Affiliates on the one hand, and the FTC, the DOJ or any other Governmental Body or members of their respective staffs on 
the other hand, with respect to any Antitrust Filing, inquiry or Proceeding relating to this Agreement or the transactions 
contemplated hereby and (ix) act in good faith and reasonably cooperate with the other party in connection with any Antitrust 
Filings and in connection with resolving any investigation or inquiry of any such agency or other Governmental Body under the HSR 
Act or any other Antitrust Law with respect to any such Antitrust Filing, this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby. 

  
(b)                         In furtherance and not in limitation of the foregoing, the parties hereto agree to use their reasonable best 

efforts to resolve, avoid or eliminate impediments or objections, if any, that may be asserted with respect to the transactions 
contemplated hereby under any Antitrust Law; provided, however, that the parties hereto will not be required to propose, 
negotiate, commit to or effect, by consent decree, hold separate orders or otherwise, the sale, divesture, disposition or license of, 
or otherwise take or commit to take actions that after the Closing Date would limit Buyer’s, any of its Affiliates’, or the Company’s 
freedom of action with respect to, or its or their ability to retain, one or more of the assets, properties, businesses, product lines or 
services of Buyer, any of its Affiliates, or the Company or any interest or interests therein. 

  
SECTION 8.5                           Further Assurances.  Subject to Section 8.4, each Seller and each of Buyer, the Blocker and the 

Company shall use its reasonable best efforts to (i) take all actions necessary or appropriate to consummate the transactions 
contemplated by this Agreement, (ii) cause the fulfillment at the earliest practicable date of all of the conditions to their respective 
obligations to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (iii) cause the Closing to occur.  None of Buyer, 
the Sellers, the Blocker or the Company shall take any action that would, or that would reasonably be expected to, result in any of 
the conditions set forth in Article IX not being satisfied. 

  
SECTION 8.6                           Confidentiality.  Buyer acknowledges that the information provided to it in connection with this 

Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby and the 
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transactions contemplated hereby and thereby is subject to the Confidentiality Agreement, the terms of which are incorporated 
herein by reference.  Effective upon, and only upon, the Closing, the Confidentiality Agreement shall terminate.  During the period 
beginning immediately following the Closing and ending on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Closing Date (except, with respect 
to any confidential and non-public information that is a trade secret under applicable Law, the following obligations will remain in 
effect so long as such information remains a trade secret), each Seller will keep confidential and not disclose, any confidential and 
non-public information of the Company or the Blocker, except (i) to the extent such information becomes available to such Seller 
after Closing as a result of disclosure not known by such recipient to have been improper or generally known to the public or (ii) as 



required by Law, regulation, legal process or Proceeding, in which case, to the extent practicable, such Seller will provide Buyer 
notice and such Seller will cooperate with Buyer’s reasonable efforts to contest and oppose such disclosure, at Buyer’s expense. 

  
SECTION 8.7                           Indemnification, Exculpation and Insurance. 
  

(a)                          From and after the Closing, Buyer shall, and shall cause the Company to, (i) indemnify and hold harmless 
each individual who at the Closing is, or at any time prior to the Closing was, a director, manager or officer of the Company (each, 
an “Indemnitee” and, collectively, the “Indemnitees”) with respect to all claims, liabilities, losses, damages, judgments, fines, 
penalties, costs (including amounts paid in settlement or compromise) and expenses (including fees and expenses of legal counsel) in 
connection with any Proceeding (whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative), whenever asserted, based on or arising out 
of, in whole or in part, (A) the fact that an Indemnitee was a director, manager or officer of the Company or (B) acts or omissions 
by an Indemnitee in the Indemnitee’s capacity as a director, manager, officer, employee or agent of the Company or taken at the 
request of the Company (including in connection with serving at the request of the Company as a director, manager, officer, 
employee, agent, trustee or fiduciary of another Person (including any employee benefit plan)), in each case under clause (A) or 
(B), at, or at any time prior to, the Closing (including any Proceeding relating in whole or in part to the transactions contemplated by 
this Agreement), to the fullest extent permitted under applicable Law, and (ii) assume all obligations of the Company to the 
Indemnitees in respect of indemnification and exculpation from liabilities for acts or omissions occurring at or prior to the Closing as 
provided in (x) the Company’s organizational documents as currently in effect and (y) any other indemnification arrangements 
between the Company and the Indemnitees, which arrangements shall survive the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
by this Agreement and continue in full force and effect in accordance with their respective terms.  Without limiting the foregoing, 
Buyer, for the six (6)-year period commencing at the Closing, shall cause the organizational documents of the Company to contain 
provisions no less favorable to the Indemnitees with respect to limitation of liabilities of directors, managers and officers and 
indemnification than are set forth as of the date of this Agreement in the organizational documents of the Company, which 
provisions shall not be amended, repealed or otherwise modified in a manner that would adversely affect the rights thereunder of 
the Indemnitees.  In addition, from and after the Closing, Buyer shall, and shall cause the Company to, pay any expenses (including 
fees and expenses of legal counsel) of any Indemnitee under this Section 8.7 (including in connection with enforcing the indemnity 
and other obligations referred to in this Section 8.7) as incurred to the fullest extent permitted under applicable Law, provided that 
the person to whom expenses are advanced or paid provides an 
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undertaking to repay such advances or payments to the extent required by applicable Law or the organizational documents of the 
Company. 

  
(b)                         An Indemnitee shall have the right, but not the obligation, to assume and control the defense of any 

Proceeding relating to any acts or omissions covered under this Section 8.7 (each, a “Claim”) with counsel selected by the 
Indemnitee, which counsel shall be reasonably acceptable to Buyer; provided, however, that Buyer shall be permitted to participate 
in the defense of such Claim at its own expense.  Each of Buyer, the Company and the Indemnitees shall cooperate in the defense 
of any Claim and shall provide access to properties and individuals as reasonably requested and furnish or cause to be furnished 
records, information and testimony, and attend such conferences, discovery proceedings, hearings, trials or appeals, as may be 
reasonably requested in connection therewith. 

  
(c)                          Prior to the Closing Date, the Company shall obtain, at the expense of the Company (which shall be a 

Transaction Expense), a “tail” policy in respect of the existing policy of directors’ and officers’ liability insurance maintained by the 
Company, for a period of six (6) years after the Closing Date to provide insurance coverage for acts or omissions occurring at or 
prior to the Closing with respect to those persons who are currently (and any additional persons who prior to the Closing become) 
covered by the Company’s directors’ and officers’ liability insurance policy on terms and scope with respect to such coverage, and 
in amount, not less favorable to such individuals than those of such policy in effect on the date hereof.  Buyer shall cause such policy 
to be maintained in full force and effect, for its full term, and cause all obligations thereunder to be honored by the Company. 

  
(d)                        The provisions of this Section 8.7 are (i) intended to be for the benefit of, and shall be enforceable by, each 

Indemnitee, his or her heirs and his or her representatives and (ii) in addition to, and not in substitution for, any other rights to 
indemnification or contribution that any such Person may have by contract or otherwise.  The obligations of Buyer and the 
Company under this Section 8.7 shall not be terminated or modified in such a manner as to adversely affect the rights of any 



Indemnitee to whom this Section 8.7 applies unless (x) such termination or modification is required by applicable Law or (y) the 
affected Indemnitee shall have consented in writing to such termination or modification (it being expressly agreed that the 
Indemnitees to whom this Section 8.7 applies shall be third party beneficiaries of this Section 8.7). 

  
SECTION 8.8                           Publicity.  No party hereto shall issue any press release or public announcement concerning this 

Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby without obtaining the prior written approval of Buyer and the Representative, 
which approval will not be unreasonably withheld, unless, in the judgment of counsel to the applicable party, public disclosure is 
otherwise required by applicable Law or by the applicable rules of any stock exchange, provided that, to the extent required by 
applicable Law or by the applicable rules of any stock exchange, the party intending to make such release shall use its commercially 
reasonable efforts consistent with applicable Law to consult with Buyer and the Representative with respect to the text thereof.  
The parties agree that the initial press release to be issued in connection with the transactions contemplated hereby shall be in a 
form mutually agreed.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, the parties hereto may disclose the terms of this Agreement to their 
respective employees, accountants, advisors, general and limited partners, Affiliates and 
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other representatives as necessary in connection with the ordinary conduct of their respective businesses (so long as such Persons 
agree to or are bound by contract to keep the terms of this Agreement confidential). 

  
SECTION 8.9                           Employment and Employee Benefits. 
  

(a)                          Buyer shall cause the Company to provide to each of the Employees who is an employee of the Company 
as of immediately prior to the Closing Date and continues to be employed by the Company after the Closing Date (the “Transferred 
Employees”): 

  
(i)                                  for the period of twelve (12) months immediately following the Closing Date, (x) annual base salary 

or hourly wages, as applicable, no less favorable to the Transferred Employee than such Transferred Employee’s annual base 
salary or hourly wages, as applicable, in effect immediately prior to the Closing Date, (y) employee benefit and incentive plans, 
programs, contracts and arrangements that are no less favorable to the Transferred Employee, in the aggregate, than those 
employee benefit plans, programs, contracts and arrangements (excluding stock-based compensation, including the Long-Term 
Incentive Plan, the Management Incentive Units and any Weiser Options) provided by the Company to such Transferred Employee 
immediately prior to the Closing Date, and (z) continued coverage under the Company’s severance plans or policies to the extent 
disclosed on Schedule 5.12(a) (other than such Company Employee Agreements that are Transaction Expenses), on the same 
terms and conditions of such plans or policies in place immediately prior to the Closing Date 

  
(ii)                              For the period immediately following the Closing Date until December 31, 2015, cash incentive 

bonus opportunities that are at least as favorable as those provided in the Ordinary Course of Business to such Transferred 
Employee immediately prior to the Closing Date; and 

  
(iii)                          provided, however, that, without limiting subparagraph (i)(z) above, for the period of twelve (12) 

months immediately following the Closing Date, each of the Transferred Employees set forth on Schedule 8.9(a)(iii)(1) shall be 
entitled to severance benefits of at least twelve (12) months’ base salary continuation upon a termination of such individual’s 
employment without “Cause” (as defined in the Company Operating Agreement as of the date hereof) and for the period 
immediately following the Closing Date until December 31, 2015, each of the Transferred Employees set forth on Schedule 8.9(a)
(iii)(2) shall be entitled to severance benefits of at least twelve (12) months’ base salary continuation upon a termination of such 
individual’s employment without “Cause” (as defined in the Company Operating Agreement as of the date hereof). 

  
From and after the Closing Date, Buyer or one of its Affiliates shall honor, and shall cause the Company to honor, in accordance 
with their terms, all employment, retention and severance agreements and all severance, incentive and bonus plans, programs and 
arrangements (excluding with respect to stock-based compensation or such arrangements that are Transaction Expenses) as in 
effect immediately prior to the Closing Date that are applicable to any Employees, to the extent disclosed on Schedule 5.12(a).  
Buyer or one of its Affiliates shall recognize or cause to be recognized the service of the Transferred Employees with the Company 
(including any and all predecessors, parents, Subsidiaries and Affiliates) prior to the Closing Date as service with 

  



46 

 

  
Buyer and its Affiliates in connection with any and all pension, welfare, and other employee benefit plans, programs, policies, 
agreements, and arrangements (including vacations, paid time-off, and holiday policies) sponsored or maintained by Buyer or one 
of its Affiliates (but excluding any retiree medical plan) which is made available to Transferred Employees following the Closing 
Date by Buyer or one of its Affiliates for any and all purposes, including any waiting period, vesting, eligibility, and benefit 
entitlement (but not for benefit accruals under a defined benefit plan).  Buyer shall (i) waive, or cause its insurance carriers to waive, 
all limitations as to pre-existing and at-work conditions, if any, with respect to participation and coverage requirements applicable 
to Transferred Employees under any welfare benefit plan (as defined in Section 3(1) of ERISA) which is made available to 
Transferred Employees following the Closing Date by Buyer or one of its Affiliates, and (ii) provide credit to Transferred 
Employees for any co-payments, deductibles and out-of-pocket expenses paid by such Transferred Employees under the 
employee benefit plans, programs and arrangements of the Company during the portion of the relevant plan year including the 
Closing Date. 
  

(b)                         Buyer shall cause the Company to (i) credit each of the Transferred Employees with an amount of paid time 
off days following the Closing Date equal to the amount of paid time off days each such Transferred Employee has accrued but not 
yet used or cashed out as of the Closing Date under the Company’s vacation and sick leave policies as in effect immediately prior 
to the Closing Date, to the extent such amount is properly accrued in Closing Net Working Capital and disclosed to Buyer and 
(ii) allow each of the Transferred Employees to use such accrued paid time off days at such times as each would have been allowed 
under the Company’s paid time off policies as in effect immediately prior to the Closing Date. 

  
(c)                          The Company will take all actions necessary to terminate all Company Pension Plans that are defined 

contribution plans with a qualified cash or deferred arrangement within the meaning of Section 401(k) of the Code, including The 
Applegate Farms, LLC Retirement Plan, (the “Company 401(k) Plans”), effective immediately before and subject to the Closing 
Date, including adopting any relevant resolutions and any actions required under the terms of such Company 401(k) Plan and any 
other contractual obligations of the Company and applicable Law.  Buyer shall cause the defined contribution plan maintained or 
sponsored by Buyer or an Affiliate of Buyer that includes a qualified cash or deferred arrangement within the meaning of 
Section 401(k) of the Code (the “Buyer 401(k) Plan”) to allow each Transferred Employee to make a “direct rollover” to the 
Buyer 401(k) Plan of the account balances of such Transferred Employee (including promissory notes evidencing any outstanding 
loans) under the Company’s 401(k) Plan if such direct rollover is elected in accordance with applicable Law by such Transferred 
Employee. 

  
SECTION 8.10                   Preservation of Books and Records.  For a period of seven (7) years after the Closing Date or such 

longer time as may be required by Law: 
  

(a)                          Buyer shall not and shall cause its Affiliates not to dispose of or destroy any of the books and records of the 
Company or the Blocker relating to periods prior to the Closing (the “Books and Records”) without first offering to turn over 
possession thereof to the Representative by written notice to the Representative at least ninety (90) days prior to the proposed date 
of such disposition or destruction. 
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(b)                         Buyer shall and shall cause its Affiliates to allow the Sellers and their respective agents access to all Books 

and Records on reasonable notice and at reasonable times at Buyer’s principal place of business or at any location where any 
Books and Records are stored, and any Seller shall have the right, at its own expense, to make copies of any Books and Records; 
provided that any such access or copying shall be had or done in such a manner so as not to unduly interfere with the normal 
conduct of Buyer’s business. 

  
(c)                          Buyer shall and shall cause its Affiliates to make available to any of the Sellers upon reasonable notice and at 

reasonable times (i) Buyer’s personnel to assist such Sellers in locating and obtaining any Books and Records, and (ii) any of 
Buyer’s personnel whose assistance or participation is reasonably required by such Sellers or any of their respective Affiliates in 
anticipation of, or preparation for, existing or future litigation or other matters in which such Sellers or any of their respective 
Affiliates are involved, subject to such Sellers reimbursing Buyer for reasonable out-of-pocket expenses incurred in performing the 



covenants contained in this Section 8.10(c). 
  

SECTION 8.11                   CERCLA Waiver.  Effective upon the Closing, each of Buyer, the Blocker and the Company, for itself, 
its Subsidiaries and their respective successors and assigns, hereby waives, and unconditionally releases each Seller from, any rights 
or remedies that Buyer, the Blocker, the Company, any of their Subsidiaries or any of their respective successors or assigns may 
otherwise have against such Seller under any Environmental Law, including any claim for contribution under the Comprehensive 
Environmental Response, Compensation, and Liability Act (42 U.S.C. § 9601 et seq.), as amended, or common law. 

  
SECTION 8.12                   Tax Matters. 
  

(a)                          The parties agree that the sale of the Subject Units to Buyer shall be treated as giving rise to a termination of 
the Company for U.S. federal income tax purposes under Section 708(b) of the Code.  The Company has made, or shall make, a 
valid election under Section 754 of the Code to adjust the basis of its assets in accordance with Section 743(b) of the Code for the 
Company’s taxable period that ends on or prior to the Closing Date.  The parties hereto agree that with respect to taxable periods 
beginning on the day following the Closing Date, Buyer shall file a consolidated tax return with the Blocker under Sections 1501 
through 1504 of the Code and the regulations thereunder. 

  
(b) 
  

(i)                                  To the extent provided (and subject to the limitations set forth) in this Section 8.12, the Blocker 
Sellers shall indemnify and hold harmless Buyer and its Affiliates against (A) all Pre-Closing Blocker Taxes, and (B) any liability of 
the Blocker for Taxes pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar or comparable provision of state or local 
Law); provided, however, that no Blocker Seller shall be liable for (w) any Taxes imposed on the Blocker as a result of 
transactions occurring on the Closing Date that are properly allocable (based on, among other relevant factors, factors set forth in 
Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-76(b)(1)(ii)(B)) to the portion of the Closing Date after the Closing, (x) any interest or 
penalties attributable to the negligence, delay or bad faith of Buyer or any of its Affiliates, or (y) any interest or penalties imposed or 
assessed, or losses incurred, to the extent 
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attributable to the late filing of any Tax Return or late payment of any Taxes by Buyer or any of its Affiliates.  Notwithstanding 
anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Buyer and its Affiliates shall not have any right to indemnification under this Agreement 
(including Section 10.1) with respect to, or based on, Taxes of the Blocker to the extent such Taxes (1) are attributable to Tax 
periods (or portions thereof) beginning after the Closing Date, or (2) are due to the unavailability in any Tax period (or portion 
thereof) beginning after the Closing Date of any net operating losses, credits or other Tax attribute of the Blocker. 

  
(ii)                              To the extent provided (and subject to the limitations set forth) in this Section 8.12, the Sellers shall 

indemnify and hold harmless Buyer and its Affiliates against (A) all Pre-Closing Company Taxes, and (B) any liability of the 
Company for Taxes pursuant to Treasury Regulations Section 1.1502-6 (or any similar or comparable provision of state or local 
Law); provided, however, that no Seller shall be liable for (v) any such Taxes to the extent such Taxes were taken into account in 
the computation of Closing Net Working Capital, (w) any Taxes imposed on the Company as a result of transactions occurring on 
the Closing Date that are properly allocable (based on, among other relevant factors, factors set forth in Treasury Regulations 
Section 1.1502-76(b)(1)(ii)(B)) to the portion of the Closing Date after the Closing, (x) any interest or penalties attributable to the 
negligence, delay or bad faith of Buyer or any of its Affiliates, or (y) any interest or penalties imposed or assessed, or losses 
incurred, to the extent attributable to the late filing of any Tax Return or late payment of any Taxes by Buyer or any of its Affiliates.  
Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, Buyer and its Affiliates shall not have any right to indemnification under 
this Agreement (including Section 10.1) with respect to, or based on, Taxes of the Company to the extent such Taxes (1) are 
attributable to Tax periods (or portions thereof) beginning after the Closing Date, or (2) are due to the unavailability in any Tax 
period (or portion thereof) beginning after the Closing Date of any net operating losses, credits or other Tax attribute of the 
Company. 

  
(c) 
  

(i)                                  Representative shall timely file or cause to be filed when due (taking into account any applicable 



extensions) all Tax Returns of the Company in respect of taxable periods that end on or prior to the Closing Date that are due 
following the Closing Date.  Representative shall provide Buyer with copies of all such Tax Returns at least twenty (20) Business 
Days prior to the due date for filing thereof, along with supporting documentation, for Buyer’s review and comment.  
Representative and Buyer shall attempt in good faith to resolve any disagreements regarding such Tax Returns prior to the due date 
for filing.  In the event that Representative and Buyer cannot resolve any such dispute prior to the due date for filing the applicable 
Tax Return, (A) such dispute shall be submitted to the Accounting Firm to determine whether such Tax Return was prepared in 
accordance with the requirements of this Section 8.12(c)(i), (B) any resolution of such dispute shall be made in accordance with the 
procedures set forth in Section 3.2, (C) the Company shall file such Tax Return as prepared by Representative, and (D) such Tax 
Return shall be amended thereafter, if applicable and necessary, to reflect the Accounting Firm’s resolution of such dispute.  The 
Sellers shall pay all Taxes shown due on such Tax Returns, as finally determined, or reimburse Buyer for such Taxes within fifteen 
(15) days of payment of such Taxes by Buyer (except in either case to the extent such Taxes were taken into account in the 
computation of Closing Net Working Capital). 
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(ii)                              Buyer shall timely file or cause to be filed when due (taking into account any applicable extensions) 

all Tax Returns of the Company in respect of Straddle Periods.  Except as otherwise agreed by Representative, all Tax Returns for 
Straddle Periods of the Company shall be prepared on a “closing of the books” basis under Section 706 of the Code and 
analogous provisions of other applicable Law.  Each Tax Return prepared pursuant to this Section 8.12(c)(ii) shall be prepared in 
accordance with the past practice and custom of the Company in preparing its Tax Returns, except as otherwise required by 
applicable Law.  Buyer shall provide Representative with copies of all such Tax Returns at least twenty (20) Business Days prior to 
the due date for filing thereof, along with supporting documentation, for Representative’s review and comment.  Representative and 
Buyer shall attempt in good faith to resolve any disagreements regarding such Tax Returns prior to the due date for filing.  In the 
event that Representative and Buyer cannot resolve any such dispute prior to the due date for filing the applicable Tax Return, 
(A) such dispute shall be submitted to the Accounting Firm to determine whether such Tax Return was prepared in accordance 
with the requirements of this Section 8.12(c)(ii), (B) any resolution of such dispute shall be made in accordance with the procedures 
set forth in Section 3.2, (C) Buyer shall file such Tax Return in accordance with the manner of preparation described in the third 
sentence of this Section 8.12(c)(ii), without prejudice to the resolution of such dispute, and (D) such Tax Return shall be amended 
thereafter, if applicable and necessary, to reflect the Accounting Firm’s resolution of such dispute.  The Sellers shall pay the Pre-
Closing Date Share of the Taxes shown due on such Tax Returns, as finally determined, or reimburse Buyer for such Taxes within 
fifteen (15) days of payment of such Taxes by Buyer (except in either case to the extent such Taxes were taken into account in the 
computation of Closing Net Working Capital). 

  
(iii)                          The Blocker Sellers shall prepare or cause to be prepared (taking into account any applicable 

extensions) all Tax Returns of the Blocker in respect of taxable periods that end on or prior to the Closing Date that are due 
following the Closing Date, and shall deliver such Tax Returns to Buyer, which shall timely file or cause to be filed such Tax 
Returns.  Each Tax Return prepared pursuant to this Section 8.12(c)(iii) shall be prepared in accordance with the past practice and 
custom of the Blocker in preparing its Tax Returns, except as otherwise required by applicable Law.  The Blocker Sellers shall 
provide Buyer with copies of all such Tax Returns at least twenty (20) Business Days prior to the due date for filing thereof, along 
with supporting documentation, for Buyer’s review and comment.  The Blocker Sellers and Buyer shall attempt in good faith to 
resolve any disagreements regarding such Tax Returns prior to the due date for filing.  In the event that the Blocker Sellers and 
Buyer cannot resolve any such dispute prior to the due date for filing the applicable Tax Return, (A) such dispute shall be submitted 
to the Accounting Firm to determine whether such Tax Return was prepared in accordance with the requirements of this 
Section 8.12(c)(iii), (B) any resolution of such dispute shall be made in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 3.2, 
(C) the Blocker shall file such Tax Return in accordance with the manner of preparation described in the second sentence of this 
Section 8.12(c)(iii), without prejudice to the resolution of such dispute, and (D) such Tax Return shall be amended thereafter, if 
applicable and necessary, to reflect the Accounting Firm’s resolution of such dispute.  The Blocker Sellers shall pay all Taxes 
shown due on such Tax Returns, as finally determined, or reimburse Buyer for such Taxes within fifteen (15) days of payment of 
such Taxes by Buyer (except in each case to the extent such Taxes were taken into account in the computation of Closing Net 
Working Capital). 
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(iv)                          Buyer shall timely file or cause to be filed when due (taking into account any applicable extensions) 
all Tax Returns of the Blocker in respect of Straddle Periods. Each Tax Return prepared pursuant to this Section 8.12(c)(iv) shall 
be prepared in accordance with the past practice and custom of the Blocker in preparing its Tax Returns, except as otherwise 
required by applicable Law.  Buyer shall provide the Blocker Sellers with copies of all such Tax Returns at least twenty (20) 
Business Days prior to the due date for filing thereof, along with supporting documentation, for the Blocker Sellers’ review and 
comment.  The Blocker Sellers and Buyer shall attempt in good faith to resolve any disagreements regarding such Tax Returns prior 
to the due date for filing.  In the event that the Blocker Sellers and Buyer cannot resolve any such dispute prior to the due date for 
filing the applicable Tax Return, (A) such dispute shall be submitted to the Accounting Firm to determine whether such Tax Return 
was prepared in accordance with the requirements of this Section 8.12(c)(iv), (B) any resolution of such dispute shall be made in 
accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 3.2, (C) Buyer shall file such Tax Return in accordance with the manner of 
preparation described in the second sentence of this Section 8.12(c)(iv), without prejudice to the resolution of such dispute, and 
(D) such Tax Return shall be amended thereafter, if applicable and necessary, to reflect the Accounting Firm’s resolution of such 
dispute. The Blocker Sellers shall pay all Taxes shown due on such Tax Returns, as finally determined, or reimburse Buyer for such 
Taxes within fifteen (15) days of payment of such Taxes by Buyer (except in each case to the extent such Taxes were taken into 
account in the computation of Closing Net Working Capital). 

  
(d)                        With respect to Taxes of a Person relating to a Straddle Period, the parties agree that the portion of such 

Tax that relates to the portion of such Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date shall (i) in the case of any Taxes other than Taxes 
based upon, related to or measured by net income, gain, activities, events, receipts, proceeds, profits or similar items, be deemed 
to be the amount of such Tax for the entire Straddle Period multiplied by a fraction (A) the numerator of which is the number of 
days in the Straddle Period ending on the Closing Date and (B) the denominator of which is the number of days in the entire 
Straddle Period , and (ii) in the case of any Tax based upon, related to or measured by net income, gain, activities, events, receipts, 
proceeds, profits or similar items, be determined as though the taxable year of such Person terminated at the close of business on 
the Closing Date; provided that exemptions, allowances or deductions that are calculated on an annual basis, such as the deduction 
for depreciation, shall be apportioned ratably between the portion of the applicable Straddle Period ending on and including the 
Closing Date and the portion of such Straddle Period beginning after the Closing Date based on the number of days for the portion 
of such Straddle Period ending on and including the Closing Date on the one hand and the number of days for the portion of such 
Straddle Period beginning after the Closing Date, on the other hand. 

  
(e) 
  

(i)                                  Any Tax refunds that are received by Buyer or any of its Affiliates (including, after the Closing for 
the avoidance of doubt, the Company or the Blocker), and any amounts credited against any Tax to which Buyer or any of its 
Affiliates (including, after the Closing for the avoidance of doubt, the Company or the Blocker) become entitled, in each case that 
relate to any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending on or before the Closing Date of the Blocker, shall be for the benefit of, and 
held in trust for, the Blocker Sellers, and Buyer or the Company shall pay over to the Blocker Sellers, as additional purchase price 
for the Blocker 
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Interests, any such refund or the amount of any such credit (including any interest thereon, but reduced by Tax, if any, owed by the 
Blocker as a result of such refund) within five (5) Business Days after receipt or entitlement thereto.  At the Blocker Sellers’ written 
request, Buyer shall timely and properly prepare, or cause to be prepared (in a manner consistent with Section 8.12(c)) and file, or 
cause to be filed, any claim for refund, amended Tax Return, or other Tax Return required to obtain any available Tax refunds that 
are payable to the Blocker Sellers pursuant to this Section 8.12(e).  Buyer shall permit the Blocker Sellers to control at the Blocker 
Sellers’ expense the prosecution of any such refund claim. 

  
(ii)                              Any Tax refunds that are received by Buyer or any of its Affiliates (including after the Closing for 

the avoidance of doubt, the Company), and any amounts credited against any Tax to which Buyer or any of its Affiliates (including, 
after the Closing for the avoidance of doubt, the Company or the Blocker) become entitled, in each case that relate to any taxable 
period (or portion thereof) ending on or before the Closing Date of the Company shall be for the benefit of, and held in trust for, the 
Sellers, and Buyer or the Company shall pay over to the Sellers, as additional purchase price for the Subject Units and the Blocker 
Interests, any such refund or the amount of any such credit (including any interest thereon, but reduced by Tax, if any, owed by the 
Company or the Blocker as a result of such refund) within five (5) Business Days after receipt or entitlement thereto.  At the 



Seller’s written request, Buyer shall timely and properly prepare, or cause to be prepared (in a manner consistent with Section 8.12
(c)) and file, or cause to be filed, any claim for refund, amended Tax Return, or other Tax Return required to obtain any available 
Tax refunds that are payable to the Sellers pursuant to this Section 8.12(e).  Buyer shall permit the Representative to control at its 
expense the prosecution of any such refund claim. 

  
(f) 
  

(i)                                  If, following the Closing Date, Buyer or the Company receives from any Taxing Authority written 
notice of any Tax Claim (including as a result of being liable for such Taxes on a pass through basis), Buyer or the Company shall 
promptly provide a copy of such notice to Representative. 

  
(ii)                              Representative shall have the right to elect to control the conduct of any Tax Claim attributable to 

any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date with respect to which the Sellers may reasonably have any liability 
(including as a result of being liable for such Taxes on a pass through basis), and make all decisions in connection therewith at its 
own expense; provided, that, (A) Representative shall keep Buyer reasonably informed with respect to any material issue relating to 
such Tax Claim and (B) Buyer shall have the right to participate in (but not control) such Tax Claim at its own expense. 

  
(iii)                          Buyer shall control the conduct of any Tax Claim attributable to any Straddle Period, and make all 

decisions in connection therewith; provided, that, (A) Buyer shall keep Representative reasonably informed with respect to any 
material issue relating to such Tax Claim; (B) Representative shall have the right to participate in (but not control) such Tax Claim at 
its own expense; and (C) Buyer will not settle any Tax Claim, or enter into any resolution, closing or other agreement with respect 
thereto with a Taxing Authority without the 
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prior written consent of Representative, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

  
(iv)                          To the extent any provision of this Section 8.12(f) conflicts with, or is inconsistent with, any other 

provision in Section 10.5, the provisions of this Section 8.12(f) shall govern. 
  

(g) 
  

(i)                                  If, following the Closing Date, Buyer or the Blocker receives from any Taxing Authority written 
notice of any Tax Claim with respect to which the Blocker Sellers may reasonably have any liability, Buyer or the Blocker shall 
promptly provide a copy of such notice to the Blocker Sellers; provided, that the failure to promptly provide a copy of such notice 
to the Blocker Sellers shall not relieve the Blocker Sellers from their obligations under Section 8.12(b), except to the extent that the 
Blocker Sellers are actually prejudiced by such failure. 

  
(ii)                              The Blocker Sellers shall have the right to elect to control the conduct of any Tax Claim attributable 

to any taxable period ending on or prior to the Closing Date at their own expense, and make all decisions in connection therewith; 
provided, that, (A) the Blocker Sellers shall keep Buyer reasonably informed with respect to any material issue relating to such Tax 
Claim; (B) Buyer shall have the right to participate in (but not control) such Tax Claim at its own expense and (C) the Blocker 
Sellers shall not settle any Tax Claim, in each case that would reasonably be expected to expressly affect taxable periods (or 
portions thereof) beginning after the Closing Date, without the consent of Buyer, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed. 

  
(iii)                          Buyer shall control the conduct of any Tax Claim attributable to any Straddle Period, and make all 

decisions in connection therewith; provided, that, (A) Buyer shall keep the Blocker Sellers reasonably informed with respect to any 
material issue relating to such Tax Claim; (B) the Blocker Sellers shall have the right to participate in (but not control) such Tax 
Claim at its own expense; and (C) Buyer shall not settle any Tax Claim, or enter into any resolution, closing or other agreement with 
respect thereto with a Taxing Authority without the prior written consent of the Blocker Sellers, such consent not to be 
unreasonably withheld, conditioned or delayed. 

  
(iv)                          To the extent any provision of this Section 8.12(g) conflicts with, or is inconsistent with, any other 



provision in Section 10.5, the provisions of this Section 8.12(g) shall govern. 
  

(h)                         Buyer, the Company, the Blocker Sellers and Representative shall cooperate fully, as and to the extent 
reasonably requested by the other party, in connection with the filing of Tax Returns or any Tax audit, litigation or other 
administrative or judicial proceeding, in each case attributable to any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending on or prior to the 
Closing Date.  Such cooperation shall include the retention and (upon the relevant party’s request) the provision of records and 
information which are reasonably relevant to any such Tax Return or Tax audit, litigation or other proceeding and making 
employees available on a mutually convenient basis to provide additional information and explanation of any material 

  
53 

 

  
provided hereunder.  Unless otherwise consented to in writing by Representative, Buyer and the Company shall not, for a period of 
seven (7) years following the Closing Date, destroy, alter or otherwise dispose of any of the books and records of the Company 
related to Taxes attributable to any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending on or prior to the Closing Date without first offering 
to surrender to Representative such books and records.  Unless otherwise consented to in writing by the Blocker Sellers, Buyer 
and the Blocker shall not, for a period of seven (7) years following the Closing Date, destroy, alter or otherwise dispose of any of 
the books and records of the Blocker related to Taxes attributable to any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending on or prior to 
the Closing Date without first offering to surrender to the Blocker Sellers such books and records. 

  
(i)                             Amended Tax Returns. 
  

(i)                                  Without the prior written consent of Representative (such consent not to be unreasonably withheld, 
conditioned or delayed), Buyer shall not, and shall not permit any of its Affiliates (including, after the Closing for the avoidance of 
doubt, the Company) to, (A) file, or cause to be filed, any amended Tax Return with respect to the Company for any taxable 
period (or portion thereof) ending on or prior to the Closing Date, (B) voluntarily approach any Taxing Authority regarding any 
Taxes or Tax Returns of the Company that relate to Taxes attributable to a taxable period (or portion thereof) that ends on or 
before the Closing Date, or (C) take any action on the Closing Date outside the ordinary course of business that could create a Tax 
liability on the Closing Date or otherwise related to Taxes. 

  
(ii)                              Without the prior written consent of the Blocker Sellers (such consent not to be unreasonably 

withheld, conditioned or delayed), Buyer shall not, and shall not permit any of its Affiliates (including, after the Closing for the 
avoidance of doubt, the Company or the Blocker) to, (A) file, or cause to be filed, any amended Tax Return with respect to the 
Blocker for any taxable period (or portion thereof) ending on or prior to the Closing Date, (B) voluntarily approach any Taxing 
Authority regarding any Taxes or Tax Returns of the Blocker that relate to Taxes attributable to a taxable period (or portion 
thereof) that ends on or before the Closing Date, (C) make an election under Section 338(g) of the Code (or any similar or 
comparable provision of state, local or foreign Tax Law) with respect to the acquisition of the Blocker, or (D) take any action on 
the Closing Date outside the ordinary course of business that could create a Tax liability on the Closing Date or otherwise related to 
Taxes. 

  
(j)                             Buyer shall prepare a proposed allocation of the Final Purchase Price among the assets of the Company 

(the “Proposed Asset Allocation Statement”) for U.S. federal income tax purposes and provide it to the Representative on or 
before the earlier of (i) ninety (90) days after the determination of the Final Purchase Price and (ii) two hundred twenty-five (225) 
days after the Closing Date.  The Representative shall deliver any comments to the Proposed Asset Allocation Statement no later 
than the thirtieth (30th) day following receipt of the Proposed Asset Allocation Statement.  If Buyer accepts all comments 
requested by the Representative, the Proposed Asset Allocation Statement, as so revised, shall be the “Final Asset Allocation 
Statement,” which shall be used by all parties hereto for U.S. federal income tax purposes.  If Buyer does not accept the 
Representative’s comments, the Representative and Buyer shall consult and attempt to resolve in good faith each such comment not 
accepted by Buyer.  If all such comments are resolved, the version of the Proposed Asset Allocation Statement 
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incorporating the resolutions to such comments shall be the Final Asset Allocation Statement.  If the Representative and Buyer 
cannot mutually agree on the appropriate allocation(s) within fifteen (15) days, Buyer and the Representative shall utilize their own 



separate versions of the Proposed Asset Allocation Statement as their respective Final Asset Allocation Statements.  
Notwithstanding the foregoing, Buyer and the Representative agree that the allocation of the Final Purchase Price as reflected in the 
Final Asset Allocation Statements shall be done in accordance with the limitation set forth in Schedule 8.12(j). 

  
SECTION 8.13                   Non-Compete, Non-Solicit and Related Covenants. 
  

(a)                          In order to induce Buyer to enter into this Agreement and to induce Buyer to consummate the transactions 
contemplated hereby, (i) each Unit Seller (other than Weiser and Stephen M. McDonnell) hereby agrees that, during the period 
beginning immediately following the Closing and ending on the second (2nd) anniversary of the Closing Date, and (ii) each of 
Weiser and Stephen M. McDonnell hereby agrees that during the period beginning immediately following the Closing and ending on 
the fifth (5th) anniversary of the Closing Date, such Unit Seller shall not, and such Unit Seller shall not cause any of its Affiliates to, 
directly or indirectly, own, operate, be a partner, shareholder, co-venturer or otherwise invest in, lend money to, consult with, 
manage or render services to, act as agent for, or acquire or hold any interest in, any Person that engages in the Covered Business 
in North America without the consent of Buyer; provided, that such Seller may own up to five percent (5%) of any class of 
securities that is listed or admitted to trading on a national securities exchange.  For this purpose “Covered Business” shall mean the 
business of marketing, distributing or selling natural or organic meat or cheese products conducted by the Company at any time 
during the one (1)-year period preceding the Closing Date or that is in development by, or being developed for, the Company 
immediately preceding the Closing. 

  
(b)                         During the period beginning immediately following the Closing and ending on the second (2nd) anniversary 

of the Closing Date, no Seller shall solicit or hire for employment, or cause any of its Affiliates to solicit or hire for employment, any 
individual who, at the Closing, is an officer or management employee employed by the Company; provided that nothing herein shall 
prohibit any Seller from (i) conducting a general solicitation of prospective employees in the ordinary course of business consistent 
with past practice if not specifically directed towards any employees of the Company or hiring any Person where the initial contact 
with such Person regarding such hiring primarily arose as a result of such general solicitation or (ii) soliciting or hiring any individual 
whose employment with the Company is terminated. 

  
(c)                          During the period beginning immediately following the Closing and ending on the second (2nd) anniversary 

of the Closing Date, neither Stephen M. McDonnell nor Weiser shall, directly or indirectly, solicit, request or advise any key 
customer, key supplier or other key business contact of the Company to cancel, curtail or otherwise materially and adversely 
change its business or relationship with the Company. 

  
(d)                        During the period beginning immediately following the Closing and ending on the second (2nd) anniversary 

of the Closing Date, (i) no Seller shall publicly disparage by any means (whether written or oral) the Company or any aspect of the 
Company’s management, policies, operations, products, services or practices in a manner that has or would reasonably 
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have a material adverse effect on the Company and (ii) none of Buyer or the Company or any of their respective Affiliates shall 
publicly disparage by any means (whether written or oral) any Seller in a manner that has or would reasonably have a material 
adverse effect on such Seller. 

  
(e)                          Subject to Section 8.13(f), each Seller, on behalf of such Seller, such Seller’s estate, heirs, executors, 

administrators, legal representatives and trusts (as applicable), and such Seller’s successors and assigns (collectively, the “Releasing 
Persons”), hereby absolutely and unconditionally releases, waives and forever discharges each Releasee of and from any and all 
Proceedings, Losses, debts, sums of money, accounts, bonds, bills, rights, covenants, Contracts, obligations, controversies, 
entitlements, promises, benefits, awards, decisions, Orders, subpoenas and verdicts whatsoever, whether state or federal, in law or 
in equity, known or unknown, asserted or unasserted, suspected or unsuspected, liquidated or unliquidated, absolute or contingent, 
which the Releasing Persons ever had or may now have against any Releasee for, upon, arising out of, based in whole or in part 
upon, or by reason of the ownership (or any claimed ownership) by such Seller at any time at or before the Closing of any equity 
interest of the Company, the Blocker or any of their predecessor entities (by merger, asset purchase or otherwise) (or any other 
equity interest or right to purchase an equity interest in the Company or the Blocker), such Seller’s status as a member of the 
Company, or such Seller’s status as a stockholder of the Blocker, in each case arising out of any act or omission occurring at any 
time at or before the Closing; 

  



  
(f)                           Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in Section 8.13(e), Section 8.13(e) shall not limit, reduce or 

otherwise affect any right or remedy of any Seller (1) arising under this Agreement or any Seller Document or (2) to be indemnified 
as an officer, director or manager of the Company or the Blocker under applicable Law or the Company’s or the Blocker’s 
organizational documents. 

  
(g)                         For purposes of Section 8.13(e) “Releasees” shall mean (1) Buyer, the Company, the Blocker and each of 

their respective past, present and future Affiliates, related entities and subsidiaries, (2) each of the respective past, present and 
future employees, officers, directors, managers, members, shareholders, equity holders, partners, agents, representatives, 
successors and assigns of the entities described in Section 8.13(g)(1) above, and (c) any company providing insurance to any of the 
foregoing in the past, present or future (other than with respect to the “tail” policy described in Section 8.7(c)). 

  
(h)                         The Sellers acknowledge that (1) the covenants set forth in this Section 8.13 are reasonable and an essential 

element of this Agreement, (2) but for the agreement of the Sellers to comply with these covenants, Buyer would not have entered 
into this Agreement and (3) breach of this Section 8.13 will harm Buyer to such an extent that monetary damages alone would be 
an inadequate remedy and Buyer would not have an adequate remedy at law.  Therefore, in the event of a breach by any Seller of 
this Section 8.13, (1) Buyer (in addition to all other remedies Buyer may have) will be entitled to seek an injunction and other 
equitable relief restraining any Seller from committing or continuing such breach and to enforce specifically this Agreement and its 
terms and (2) the duration of any period in Sections 8.13(a), 8.13(b) and 8.13(c) will be extended beyond its then-scheduled 
termination date for a period equal to the duration of such breach, as applicable. 
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(i)                             If any provision contained in this Section 8.13 is held by any court of competent jurisdiction to be 

unenforceable because of the duration of such provision, the geographic area covered thereby or otherwise, the court making such 
determination shall have the power to, and is hereby directed by the parties to, reduce the duration or geographic area of such 
provision or otherwise modify such provision, and, in its reduced or modified form, such provision shall be enforceable.  In 
addition, upon a determination that any such term or other provision, or any portion thereof, is invalid, illegal or incapable of being 
enforced, the parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as 
closely as possible in an acceptable manner to the end that the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated to the fullest 
extent possible. 

  
SECTION 8.14                   No Shop.  Throughout the period that begins on the date hereof and ends upon the earlier of the 

Closing or the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 11.1, no Seller will, and no Seller will authorize the Company or 
the Blocker or any representative or agent of such Seller, the Company or the Blocker to, directly or indirectly, solicit, initiate, seek 
or encourage any inquiry, proposal or offer from, furnish any information to or participate in any discussion or negotiation with any 
Person (other than Buyer or any Person on Buyer’s behalf) regarding any acquisition of the Company’s or Blocker’s equity 
interests, assets or business, in whole or in part (by purchase, merger, tender offer, statutory share exchange, joint venture or 
otherwise), except for sales of assets in the Ordinary Course of Business.  Each Seller will, and each Seller will cause the Company 
and the Blocker and the other representatives and agents of such Seller, the Company and the Blocker to, immediately terminate all 
such discussions or negotiations that may be in progress on the date hereof. 

  
SECTION 8.15                   Notices.  Throughout the period that begins on the date hereof and ends upon the earlier of the Closing 

or the termination of this Agreement pursuant to Section 11.1, the Company shall notify Buyer as promptly as practicable after 
receiving written notice from a Customer or Supplier reducing, making a material adverse change in, canceling or otherwise 
terminating its relationship with the Company or threatening to do any of the foregoing. 

  
SECTION 8.16                   Delivery of 2014 Audited Financial Statements.  Within ten (10) Business Days after the date hereof, 

the Company shall deliver to Buyer copies of the audited balance sheet of the Company as of December 26, 2014 and the related 
statements of income and members’ equity and cash flows of the Company for the fifty-two (52) weeks ended December 26, 
2014, in each case, which are consistent with the 2014 Financial Statements. 

  
SECTION 8.17                   Advisory Committee.  Promptly after Closing, Buyer shall cause the board of directors of the Company 

to (i) adopt the Advisory Committee Charter set forth on Exhibit F and (ii) form the advisory committee contemplated in the 
Advisory Committee Charter consisting of the initial members specified in the Advisory Committee Charter.  Buyer shall cause the 



board of directors of the Company to keep the Advisory Committee Charter and advisory committee in place for a period of at 
least three (3) years following the Closing. 
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ARTICLE IX 

  
CONDITIONS TO CLOSING 

  
SECTION 9.1                           Conditions Precedent to Obligations of Buyer.  The obligations of Buyer to consummate the 

transactions contemplated by this Agreement are subject to the satisfaction, on or prior to the Closing Date, of each of the following 
conditions (any or all of which may be waived by Buyer in whole or in part to the extent permitted by applicable Law): 

  
(a)                          (i) the representations and warranties of the Sellers contained in Article IV (other than Sections 4.1 

(Organization), 4.2 (Authorization of Agreement) and 4.4 (Title)) qualified by materiality or material adverse effect, shall be true 
and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a specific date, at and as of such 
date), (ii) the representations and warranties of the Sellers contained in Article IV (other than Sections 4.1 (Organization), 4.2 
(Authorization of Agreement) and 4.4 (Title)) not so qualified shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the Closing 
Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a specific date, at and as of such date) and (iii) the representations 
and warranties of the Sellers contained in Sections 4.1 (Organization), 4.2 (Authorization of Agreement) and 4.4 (Title) shall be 
true and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a specific date, at and as of such 
date) with only such exceptions as are de minimis in nature; and Buyer shall have received a certificate signed by an authorized 
officer of the Company, confirming the foregoing; 

  
(b)                         (i) the representations and warranties of the Company contained in Article V (other than Sections 5.1 

(Organization), 5.2 (Authorization of Agreement) and 5.4 (Capitalization)) disregarding all qualifications and exceptions 
contained therein relating to materiality or Material Adverse Effect, shall be true and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on 
and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a specific date, at and as of such date), except where the failure of such 
representations and warranties to be so true and correct would not have a Material Adverse Effect and (ii) the representations and 
warranties of the Company contained in Sections 5.1 (Organization), 5.2 (Authorization of Agreement) and 5.4 
(Capitalization) shall be true and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a 
specific date, at and as of such date) with only such exceptions as are de minimis in nature; and Buyer shall have received a 
certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Company, confirming the foregoing; 

  
(c)                          (i) the representations and warranties of the Blocker contained in Article VI (other than Sections 6.1 

(Organization), 6.2 (Authorization of Agreement), 6.4 (Capitalization) and 6.6 (Blocker Operations)) qualified by materiality 
or material adverse effect, shall be true and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as 
of a specific date, at and as of such date), (ii) the representations and warranties of the Blocker contained in Article VI (other than 
Sections 6.1 (Organization), 6.2 (Authorization of Agreement), 6.4 (Capitalization) and 6.6 (Blocker Operations)) not so 
qualified shall be true and correct in all material respects as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if 
given as of a specific date, at and as of such date), (iii) the representations and warranties of the Blocker contained in Section 6.6 
(Blocker Operations), shall be true and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a 
specific date, at and as  
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of such date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be true and correct would not have a material 
adverse effect on the Blocker and the Company taken as a whole and (iv) the representations and warranties of the Blocker 
contained in Sections 6.1 (Organization), 6.2 (Authorization of Agreement) and 6.4 (Capitalization) shall be true and correct 
as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a specific date, at and as of such date) with only 
such exceptions as are de minimis in nature; and Buyer shall have received a certificate signed by an authorized officer of the 
Blocker, confirming the foregoing; 

  



(d)                        the Company, the Blocker and the Sellers shall have performed and complied in all material respects with all 
obligations, covenants and agreements required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by the Company, the Blocker 
or the Sellers at or prior to the Closing; and Buyer shall have received a certificate signed by an authorized officer of the Company, 
confirming the foregoing; 

  
(e)                          no Governmental Body of competent jurisdiction shall have instituted any litigation to restrain, prohibit, or 

otherwise challenge the legality or validity of the transactions contemplated hereby that has not been dismissed or otherwise 
resolved in a manner that does not materially and adversely affect the transactions contemplated hereby and there shall not be in 
effect any Order by a Governmental Body of competent jurisdiction restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby; 

  
(f)           the waiting period applicable to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement under the HSR Act shall 

have expired or early termination shall have been granted; and 
  
(g)                         from the date of this Agreement, there shall not have occurred any Material Adverse Effect. 

  
SECTION 9.2                           Conditions Precedent to Obligations of the Company, the Blocker and the Sellers.  The obligations of 

the Company, the Blocker and the Sellers to consummate the transactions contemplated by this Agreement are subject to the 
satisfaction, on or prior to the Closing Date, of each of the following conditions (any or all of which may be waived by the 
Representative in whole or in part to the extent permitted by applicable Law): 

  
(a)                          (i) the representations and warranties of Buyer contained in Article VII (other than Sections 7.1 

(Organization) and 7.2 (Authorization of Agreement)) disregarding all qualifications and exceptions contained therein relating to 
materiality or adverse effect, shall be true and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given 
as of a specific date, at and as of such date), except where the failure of such representations and warranties to be true and correct 
would not reasonably be expected to impair in any material respect the ability of Buyer to perform its obligations under this 
Agreement or prevent or materially delay consummation of the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and (ii) the 
representations and warranties of Buyer contained in Sections 7.1 (Organization) and 7.2 (Authorization of Agreement) shall be 
true and correct as of the Closing Date as if made on and as of the Closing Date (or, if given as of a specific date, at and as of such 
date) with only such  
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exceptions as are de minimis in nature; and the Representative shall have received a certificate signed by an authorized officer of 
Buyer, confirming the foregoing; 

  
(b)                         Buyer shall have performed and complied in all material respects with all obligations, covenants and 

agreements required by this Agreement to be performed or complied with by Buyer at or prior to the Closing; and the 
Representative shall have received a certificate signed by an authorized officer of Buyer, confirming the foregoing; 

  
(c)                          no Governmental Body of competent jurisdiction shall have instituted any litigation to restrain, prohibit, or 

otherwise challenge the legality or validity of the transactions contemplated hereby that has not been dismissed or otherwise 
resolved in a manner that does not materially and adversely affect the transactions contemplated hereby and there shall not be in 
effect any Order by a Governmental Body of competent jurisdiction restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the 
consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby; 

  
(d)          the waiting period applicable to the transactions contemplated by this Agreement under the HSR Act shall 

have expired or early termination shall have been granted; and 
  
(e)         the Representative shall have received evidence of payment of all amounts contemplated by Section 2.3 that 

are payable at or prior to the Closing. 
  
SECTION 9.3                           Frustration of Closing Conditions.  None of the Company, the Blocker the Sellers or Buyer may rely on 

the failure of any condition set forth in Section 9.1 or Section 9.2, as the case may be, to be satisfied if such failure was caused by 
such party’s failure to use its best efforts or reasonable best efforts, as applicable, to comply with any provision of this Agreement. 



  
ARTICLE X 

  
INDEMNIFICATION AND RESOLUTION OF CERTAIN DISPUTES 

  
SECTION 10.1                   Indemnification in Favor of Buyer. 

  
(a)                          Subject to the other terms of this Article X, from and after Closing, the Sellers (severally, and not jointly, in 

accordance with their Pro Rata Portions) will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Buyer and each of Buyer’s Other Indemnified 
Persons (including the Company from and after the Closing) from and against all Losses to the extent arising out of or resulting from 
any: 

  
(i)                                  breach of any Fundamental Representation made by the Company in Article V (A) in the case of 

any Fundamental Representation made as of a specific date, as of such date, and (B) in the case of all other Fundamental 
Representations, as of the date hereof or as of the Closing Date; 

  
(ii)                              Indebtedness or Transaction Expenses, to the extent not included in the calculation of the Closing 

Indebtedness or Closing Transaction Expenses, or any inaccuracy in the Payment Schedule; or 
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(iii)                          action of the Representative acting in the Representative’s capacity hereunder, including any breach 

or with respect to any disbursements to Sellers of any amounts held by the Representative for the benefit of the Sellers. 
  
(b)                         Subject to the other terms of this Article X, from and after Closing, each Seller will indemnify, defend and 

hold harmless Buyer and each of Buyer’s Other Indemnified Persons (including the Company from and after the Closing) from and 
against all Losses to the extent arising out of or resulting from any: 

  
(i)                                  breach of any Fundamental Representation made by such Seller in Article IV (A) in the case of any 

Fundamental Representation made as of a specific date, as of such date, and (B) in the case of all other Fundamental 
Representations, as of the date hereof or as of the Closing Date; or 

  
(ii)                              breach of any covenant or agreement of such Seller in this Agreement to be performed at or after 

the Closing (other than the covenants and agreements of the Blocker Sellers in Section 8.12, which, for the avoidance of doubt, are 
addressed solely in Section 10.1(c)(iii)). 

  
(c)                          Subject to the other terms of this Article X, from and after Closing, each Blocker Seller (severally, and not 

jointly, in accordance with their Pro Rata Portions) will indemnify, defend and hold harmless Buyer and each of Buyer’s Other 
Indemnified Persons (including the Company from and after the Closing) from and against all Losses to the extent arising out of or 
resulting from any: 

  
(i)                                  breach of any Fundamental Representation made by the Blocker in Article VI (A) in the case of 

any Fundamental Representation made as of a specific date, as of such date, and (B) in the case of all other Fundamental 
Representations, as of the date hereof or as of the Closing Date; 

  
(ii)                              Pre-Closing liabilities or Indebtedness of the Blocker (other than Pre-Closing Blocker Taxes which 

shall be governed exclusively by Section 8.12(b)(i)); or 
  
(iii)        breach of any covenant or agreement of such Blocker Seller in Section 8.12. 

  
(d)                        Subject to the other terms of this Article X, from and after Closing, Buyer and each of Buyer’s Other 

Indemnified Persons (including the Company from and after the Closing) shall be entitled to be indemnified and held harmless solely 
out of the funds in the Indemnification Escrow Account, if any, from and against all Losses to the extent arising out of or resulting 
from any: 

  



  
(i)                                  breach of any representation or warranty made by the Sellers in Article IV, the Company in 

Article V or the Blocker in Article VI (other than the Fundamental Representations) (A) in the case of any representation or 
warranty made as of a specific date, as of such date, and (B) in the case of all other representations or warranties, as of the date 
hereof or as of the Closing Date; or 
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(ii)                              breach of any covenant or agreement of the Company or the Blocker in this Agreement to be 

performed prior to the Closing. 
  
SECTION 10.2                   Indemnification in Favor of Sellers.  Subject to the other terms of this Article X, from and after Closing, 

Buyer will indemnify, defend and hold harmless each Seller (including any Other Indemnified Person of any of them) from and 
against all Losses to the extent arising out of or resulting from any: 

  
(a)                          breach of any representation or warranty made by Buyer in this Agreement (A) in the case of any 

representation or warranty made as of a specific date, as of such date, and (B) in the case of all other representations or warranties, 
as of the date hereof or as of the Closing Date; or 

  
(b)                         breach of any covenant or agreement of Buyer in this Agreement. 

  
SECTION 10.3                   Certain Limitations and Other Matters Regarding Claims. 

  
(a)                          Threshold on the Sellers’ Obligations. 

  
(i)                                  There will be no right to obtain any indemnification under Section 10.1(d), unless and until the 

aggregate amount of Losses for which indemnification rights arise under Section 10.1(d) exceeds $4,000,000 (the “Deductible”), at 
which point an indemnification claim can be made to the extent of any such excess, subject to the other limitations in this Article X. 

  
(ii)                              Neither Buyer nor any of Buyer’s Other Indemnified Persons shall have any right to indemnification 

under Section 10.1(d) for any Losses resulting from any individual or series of related events that do not exceed $100,000 (which 
Losses shall not be counted toward the Deductible). 

  
(b)                         Buyer’s Recovery Limited to Amount in the Indemnification Escrow Account.  Notwithstanding anything 

herein to the contrary, after the Closing, the Sellers shall have no obligation for any breach of any representation or warranty made 
in this Agreement (other than the Fundamental Representations) or any breach of any covenant or agreement of the Company or 
the Blocker in this Agreement to be performed prior to the Closing, and neither Buyer nor any of Buyer’s Other Indemnified 
Persons shall have any right to indemnification under Section 10.1(d) at any given time for any amount in excess of the amount in 
the Indemnification Escrow Account at such time. 

  
(c)                          Super Cap on the Sellers’ Obligations.  After the Closing, the aggregate liability of each Seller hereunder for 

Losses suffered by Buyer and each of Buyer’s Other Indemnified Persons shall in no event exceed such Seller’s Pro Rata Portion 
of the Enterprise Value.  The maximum aggregate amount of indemnifiable Losses that may be recovered by Buyer and the Buyer’s 
Other Indemnified Persons pursuant to Article X shall be equal to the Enterprise Value. 
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(d) 

  
(i)                                  Threshold on Buyer’s Obligations.  There will be no right to obtain any indemnification under 

Section 10.2(a) unless and until the aggregate amount of Losses for which indemnification rights arise under Section 10.2
(a) exceeds the Deductible, at which point an indemnification claim can be made to the extent of any such excess, subject to the 
other limitations in this Article X. 

  



(ii)                              Neither Seller nor any of Seller’s Other Indemnified Persons shall have any right to indemnification 
under Section 10.2(a) for any Losses resulting from any individual or series of related events that do not exceed $100,000 (which 
Losses shall not be counted toward the Deductible). 

  
(e)                          [Reserved]. 
  
(f)                           Super Cap on Buyer’s Obligations.  After the Closing, the aggregate liability of Buyer hereunder for Losses 

suffered by any Seller and any of the Seller’s Other Indemnified Persons shall in no event exceed the Enterprise Value.  The 
maximum aggregate amount of indemnifiable Losses that may be recovered by the Sellers and the Sellers’ Other Indemnified 
Persons pursuant to Article X shall be equal to the Enterprise Value. 

  
(g)                         [Reserved]. 
  
(h)                         Sole and Exclusive Remedies.  Notwithstanding any other term herein, other than (i) as contemplated herein 

regarding the Accounting Firm under Section 3.2 (Post-Closing Adjustment), (ii) the indemnification provided in Section 8.12 
(Tax Matters), and (iii) claims for actual fraud (provided that such fraud is of a type of which an element is intent), after the 
Closing, the sole and exclusive remedies of the parties hereto arising out of, relating to or resulting from any breach, inaccuracy, 
non-fulfillment or non-performance of any representation, warranty, covenant, agreement or other claim arising out of or relating to 
this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby will be strictly limited to those contained in this Article X and 
Section 12.14 (Performance).  In furtherance of the foregoing, to the maximum extent permitted by applicable Law, other than in 
the case of fraud (provided that such fraud is of a type of which an element is intent), upon consummation of the transactions 
contemplated hereby, each party hereto waives and (if necessary to give effect to this Section) will cause each of its Other 
Indemnified Persons to waive, all claims, causes of action and other remedies with respect to such Person against each other as a 
matter of Contract, equity, under or based upon any applicable Law or otherwise (including for rescission) arising out of, relating to 
or resulting from this Agreement or the transactions contemplated hereby, except to the extent expressly stated in Section 3.2 
(Post-Closing Adjustment), 8.12 (Tax Matters), 12.12(e) (Representative), 12.14 (Performance) or this Article X 
(Indemnification and Resolution of Certain Disputes). 

  
(i)                             [Reserved]. 
  
(j)                             Knowledge Not Limiting.  No right or obligation under this Article X will be waived or otherwise affected 

by any knowledge (of any form or type) of Buyer or by any investigation, due diligence or verification by or on behalf of Buyer on 
or before the date hereof or at or before Closing.  All representations, warranties, covenants and agreements herein will be  
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deemed material and relied upon by each party hereto, and none will be waived by any failure to pursue any action or 
consummation of the transactions contemplated herein, except to the extent stated herein. 
  

(k)                         Recoveries.  The amount of any and all Losses under this Article X shall be determined net of (i) any Tax 
benefit arising in connection with accrual, incurrence or payment of any such Losses that is received in cash or as an offset to any 
Tax by the applicable Claiming Party or any of its Affiliates for the Taxable year the Loss is incurred and (ii) any insurance 
proceeds actually received by a Claiming Party from a third-party insurer (after giving effect to any deductible) for the Losses giving 
rise to the right of indemnification (less any directly related out-of-pocket costs, expenses and fees resulting from or incurred in 
connection with such insurance claim or claims).  The existence or potential existence of monies from an insurer shall not, however, 
delay any payment pursuant to the indemnification provisions contained herein and otherwise determined to be due and owing to a 
Claiming Party, it being understood that a Claiming Party shall have no obligation to first seek recovery from a third party or submit 
or to collect upon any applicable insurance coverage as a precondition to making a claim for indemnification hereunder or obtaining 
indemnification for Losses thereof.  The out-of-pocket costs and expenses of the efforts to mitigate any claim, liability or 
indemnifiable Losses that are entitled to indemnification hereunder shall be included in the amount of indemnifiable Losses.  If a 
Claiming Party actually receives proceeds or payment in respect of indemnifiable Losses after payment from the Indemnifying Party 
for such Losses, the Claiming Party will pay as promptly as practicable to the Indemnifying Party such proceeds or payment (less 
any directly related out-of-pocket costs, expenses and fees resulting from or incurred in connection with such insurance claim or 
claims) to the extent of the prior payment from the Indemnifying Party. 

  



  
SECTION 10.4                   Certain Survival Period. 

  
(a)                          Survival of Representations and Warranties and pre-Closing Covenants and Agreements.  Subject to 

Section 10.4(b), each representation or warranty herein and each covenant and agreement to be performed prior to the Closing will 
survive the execution and delivery of this Agreement and remain in full force and effect until the date that is eighteen (18) months 
after the Closing Date, at which time such representation, warranty, covenant or agreement will expire and terminate and no 
indemnification obligation will be associated therewith or based thereon, except that (i) each Fundamental Representation (other 
than the Tax Representations) will survive until the date that is six (6) years after the Closing Date and (ii) each Tax Representation 
will survive until the expiration of the applicable statute of limitations. 

  
(b)                         Survival of Representations and Warranties Until Final Determination.  Notwithstanding Section 10.4(a), for 

each claim for indemnification hereunder regarding a representation or warranty or covenant or agreement that is made before 
expiration of such representation or warranty or covenant or agreement, such claim and associated right to indemnification for such 
claim (including any right to pursue such indemnification, including via any Proceeding) will not terminate before final determination 
and satisfaction of such claim. 

  
(c)                          Survival of Covenants and Agreements.  Each covenant and agreement set forth in this Agreement (other 

than representations or warranties or the covenants and  
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agreements to be performed prior to the Closing), and all associated rights to indemnification, will survive Closing and will continue 
in full force thereafter pursuant to the terms thereof. 

  
SECTION 10.5                   Notice of Claims and Procedures. 
  

(a)                          Notice of Claims.  A Person entitled to indemnification hereunder (the “Claiming Party”) will give to the 
Representative (if the Indemnifying Party is a Seller) and each other Person obligated to provide such indemnification (the 
“Indemnifying Party”) prompt notice of any claim, for which such Claiming Party proposes to demand indemnification, (1) by a 
Person that is not a party hereto or Other Indemnified Person (such a claim being a “Third Party Claim” and such notice of such 
Third Party Claim being the “Initial Claim Notice”) or (2) that does not involve a Third Party Claim, in each case specifying in 
reasonable detail the amount and nature of, and the facts and circumstances giving rise to, such claim (to the extent known), a 
reference to the provision of this Agreement upon which such claim is based and such other information with respect thereto as the 
Representative (if the Indemnifying Party is a Seller) or the Indemnifying Person may reasonably request.  Thereafter, the Claiming 
Party will give the Indemnifying Party, promptly after the Claiming Party’s (or any of its applicable Other Indemnified Person’s) 
receipt or delivery thereof, copies of all documents (including court papers) received or delivered by the Claiming Party (or any 
such Other Indemnified Person) relating to any such Third Party Claim.  The failure to promptly give such notice or to promptly give 
such copies will not relieve the Indemnifying Party of any liability hereunder, except, and only to the extent that, the Indemnifying 
Party was adversely affected or prejudiced by such failure. 

  
(b)                         Access and Cooperation.  Each Claiming Party and Indemnifying Party will, and will cause its Other 

Indemnified Persons to, cooperate and assist in all reasonable respects regarding such Third Party Claim, including by promptly 
making available to each other (and each other’s legal counsel and other professional advisers with a reasonable need to know) all 
books and records in its possession or control relating to such Third Party Claim, subject to reasonable confidentiality precautions. 

  
(c)                          Defense and Participation. 

  
(i)                                  Election to Conduct Defense.  After receiving an Initial Claim Notice under Section 10.5(a), the 

Indemnifying Party will have the option, exercisable by written notice to the Claiming Party within thirty (30) days of receipt of such 
Initial Claim Notice, to conduct the defense of such Third Party Claim, with counsel reasonably satisfactory to the Claiming Party, 
at the expense of the Indemnifying Party, except if (A) the Claiming Party and the Other Indemnified Persons have certified to the 
Indemnifying Party that (x) the aggregate amount of the reasonable potential obligations of the Claiming Party (or its Other 
Indemnified Persons) regarding such Third Party Claim exceeds the then-current balance (less any other pending claims) of the 
Indemnification Escrow Account and (y) recovery of such Third Party Claim is limited to the Indemnification Escrow Account, (B)  



such Third Party Claim seeks a temporary restraining order, a preliminary or permanent injunction or specific performance against 
the Claiming Party (or any of its Other Indemnified Persons) or other material non-monetary damages, restrictions or limitations on 
the Claiming Party (or any of its Other Indemnified Persons) other than non-disparagement, non-disclosure and other customary  
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settlement terms, or (C) that involves criminal allegations against the Claiming Party.  To elect to conduct such defense, the 
Indemnifying Party must give written notice of such election to the Claiming Party within thirty (30) days after the Claiming Party 
gives the corresponding Initial Claim Notice to the Indemnifying Party (otherwise, such right to conduct such defense will be 
deemed waived).  If the Indemnifying Party validly makes such election, it will nonetheless lose such right to conduct such defense if 
it fails to conduct such defense in a reasonably active and diligent manner. 
  

(ii)                              Conduct of Defense, Participation and Settlement.  If the Indemnifying Party conducts the defense 
of such Third Party Claim, then (A) the Claiming Party may participate, at its own expense (except that the Indemnifying Party will 
be responsible for the fees and expenses of the Claiming Party’s counsel (but not more than one law firm per jurisdiction) if the 
Claiming Party reasonably concludes that there is a conflict of interest between the Indemnifying Party and the Claiming Party in the 
defense of such Third Party Claim), in such defense (including any Proceeding regarding such Third Party Claim) and will have the 
right to receive copies of all notices, pleadings or other similar submissions regarding such defense, (B) the Indemnifying Party will 
keep the Claiming Party reasonably informed of all matters material to such defense and Third Party Claim at all stages thereof, 
(C) the Claiming Party will not (and will cause its Other Indemnified Persons not to) admit liability with respect to, or compromise 
or settle, such Third Party Claim without the Indemnifying Party’s prior written consent (which consent will not be unreasonably 
withheld or delayed) and (D) there will be no compromise or settlement of such Third Party Claim without the consent of the 
Claiming Party (which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed) 

  
(iii)                          Indemnifying Party Does Not Conduct Defense.  If the Indemnifying Party does not have the option 

to conduct the defense of such Third Party Claim or does not validly elect such option or does not preserve such option (including 
by failing to commence such defense within thirty (30) days following receipt of such Initial Claim Notice), then (A) the 
Indemnifying Party may participate, at its own expense, in such defense (including any Proceeding regarding such Third Party 
Claim) and will have the right to receive copies of all notices, pleadings or other similar submissions regarding such defense, (B) the 
Claiming Party will keep the Indemnifying Party reasonably informed of all matters material to such defense and Third Party Claim 
at all stages thereof, (C) the Indemnifying Party will not admit liability with respect to, or compromise or settle, such Third Party 
Claim without the Claiming Party’s prior written consent (which consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed), and 
(D) there will be no compromise or settlement of such Third Party Claim without the consent of the Indemnifying Party (which 
consent will not be unreasonably withheld or delayed). 

  
SECTION 10.6                   Materiality Qualifiers.  Solely for the purposes of this Article X and solely for the purposes of 

determining the amount of any Losses (and not, for the avoidance of doubt, for purposes of determining if such an inaccuracy or 
breach has occurred), all qualifications to any representation or warranty (other than the representations or warranties set forth in 
Section 5.5 (Financial Statements), 5.7 (Absence of Certain Developments), 5.20 (Suppliers), 5.21 (Customers) and the 
definition of “Material Contracts”) by use of the word “material,” “materially” or other variations of the root word “material” or by a 
reference regarding the occurrence or non-occurrence or possible occurrence or non-occurrence of a 
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Material Adverse Effect or a “materially adverse effect” will be ignored and each representation and warranty will be read and 
interpreted without regard to any such qualification. 
  

SECTION 10.7                   Effect of Purchase Price Calculation.  To avoid double counting, any Loss for which a Person would 
otherwise be obligated to provide indemnification hereunder will be offset to the extent (but only to the extent) such Loss is 
reflected in the calculation of the Purchase Price under Article III. 

  
SECTION 10.8                   Indemnification Adjusts Purchase Price for Tax Purposes.  Indemnification payments under this 

Agreement will be treated (including retroactively) as adjustments to the Purchase Price for Tax purposes to the extent permitted 



under applicable Law. 
  
SECTION 10.9                   Reconciliation Escrow Amount and Indemnification Escrow Amount.  The Reconciliation Escrow 

Amount will be used only for matters arising out of, relating to or resulting from Section 3.2.  The Indemnification Escrow Amount 
may be used for matters arising out of or resulting from Section 3.2 to the extent the Reconciliation Escrow Amount has been 
depleted.  Subject to the terms of this Agreement (and the Escrow Agreement), Buyer or Buyer’s Other Indemnified Persons may 
seek disbursement for any Seller’s indemnification obligation under Section 10.1 (other than Section 10.1(b)(ii)) from the 
Indemnification Escrow Amount, without regard to whether fewer than all Sellers owe the related indemnification obligation to 
Buyer or Buyer’s Other Indemnified Persons and without regard to whether such obligation is several and not joint.  
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, Buyer and Buyer’s Other Indemnified Persons must seek disbursement for any 
Seller’s indemnification obligation under Section 10.1(a) first from the Indemnification Escrow Amount.  Disbursements from such 
escrow accounts will occur pursuant to the applicable terms of this Agreement and the Escrow Agreement.  For the avoidance of 
doubt, (i) the escrow accounts are the sole source of funds for Sellers’ obligations under Section 3.2, (ii) the Indemnification 
Escrow Amount is the sole source of funds for any Losses that are indemnifiable under Section 10.1(d) and (iii) Buyer’s sole 
recourse for any Seller’s indemnification obligation under Section 10.1(b)(ii) is against the applicable breaching Seller; provided that 
if a Seller’s indemnification obligation under Section 10.1(b)(ii) is unpaid or unresolved as of the Indemnification Escrow Release 
Date, (i) the amount of cash in escrow that would otherwise be released to such Seller shall be reduced by (x) the amount of the 
unpaid indemnification obligations under Section 10.1(b)(ii) owed by such Seller and such amount shall, instead, be used to satisfy 
such unpaid indemnification obligations, if any, and (y) the amount of unresolved indemnfication claims made by Buyer or Buyer’s 
Other Indemnified Persons under Section 10.1(b)(ii) against such Seller prior to that time (and such funds subject to unresolved 
claims shall remain in the Indemnification Escrow Account until the resolution thereof), if any, and (ii) the joint written instructions to 
the Escrow Agent issued by Buyer and the Representative shall provide for the adjustments and payments required by the 
foregoing clause (i). 

  
ARTICLE XI 

  
TERMINATION 

  
SECTION 11.1                   Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement may be terminated and the transactions contemplated 

hereby may be abandoned any time prior to the Closing as follows: 
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(a)                          by the Representative or Buyer on or after August 24, 2015 (the “Outside Date”) if the Closing shall not 

have occurred by the close of business on such date; provided that if the DOJ or FTC issue a “second request” under the HSR 
Act, such Outside Date shall be extended until February 22, 2016; provided, further, that the right to terminate this Agreement 
pursuant to this Section 11.1(a) shall not be available to the Representative or Buyer, as applicable, if the principal reason the 
Closing shall not have occurred by such time is the breach by such party (including the Sellers, the Company and the Blocker, in the 
case of the Representative) of any of its obligations under this Agreement; 

  
(b)                         by mutual written consent of the Representative and Buyer; 
  
(c)                          by the Representative or Buyer if there shall be in effect a final nonappealable Order of a Governmental 

Body of competent jurisdiction restraining, enjoining or otherwise prohibiting the consummation of the transactions contemplated 
hereby; provided that the right to terminate this Agreement pursuant to this Section 11.1(c) shall not be available to the 
Representative or Buyer, as applicable, if the issuance of such final nonappealable Order was primarily due to the breach by such 
party (including the Sellers, the Company and the Blocker, in the case of the Representative) of its obligations under this 
Agreement; 

  
(d)                        by Buyer if (i) Buyer is not then in material breach of any of its representations, warranties, covenants or 

agreements contained in this Agreement, and (ii) any of the conditions set forth in Section 9.1, is incapable of fulfillment by the 
Outside Date, or if the breach giving rise to the failure of any such conditions to be satisfied is incurable by the Outside Date; or 

  
(e)                          by the Representative if (i) none of the Sellers, the Blocker or the Company is then in material breach of any 

of its representations, warranties, covenants or agreements contained in this Agreement, and (ii) any of the conditions set forth in 



Section 9.2 is incapable of fulfillment by the Outside Date, or if the breach giving rise to the failure of any such conditions to be 
satisfied is incurable by the Outside Date. 

  
SECTION 11.2                   Procedure Upon Termination.  In the event of termination of this Agreement by Buyer or the 

Representative, or both, pursuant to Section 11.1, written notice thereof shall forthwith be given to Representative by Buyer (in the 
event Buyer terminates this Agreement) or by the Representative to Buyer (in the event that the Representative terminates this 
Agreement), and this Agreement shall terminate, and the transactions contemplated hereby shall be abandoned, without further 
action by the parties. 

  
SECTION 11.3                   Effect of Termination.  If this Agreement is validly terminated pursuant to Section 11.1, this Agreement 

shall become void and of no effect with no liability on the part of any party (or any stockholder, director, manager, officer, 
employee, agent, consultant or representative of such party) to the other parties hereto; provided, however, that, subject to the 
terms of this Agreement, if such termination shall result from the failure of any party to perform an agreement or covenant contained 
herein, such party shall not be relieved of any liability as a result of such failure or breach; provided, further, that the provisions of 
Section 8.8, this Section 11.3, Article I and Article XII and the provisions of the Confidentiality Agreement shall survive any such 
termination. 
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ARTICLE XII 

  
MISCELLANEOUS 

  
SECTION 12.1                   Payment of Sales, Use or Similar Taxes.  Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrary, the sales, 

use, transfer, intangible, recordation, documentary stamp or similar Taxes or charges of any nature whatsoever (including any 
penalties, interest and additions to Tax), applicable to, or resulting from, the transactions contemplated by this Agreement shall be 
borne fifty percent (50%) by each of Buyer and Sellers.  Buyer and Sellers shall reasonably cooperate with respect to all filings, 
Tax Returns, reports and forms as may be required with respect to all such Taxes. 

  
SECTION 12.2                   Expenses.  Except as is expressly stated otherwise herein, each party to this Agreement shall bear its 

respective fees, costs and expenses incurred in connection with the preparation, negotiation, execution and performance of this 
Agreement and the transactions contemplated hereby (including legal, accounting, financial advisor and other professional fees), 
except Sellers will bear all such fees costs and expenses of the Company and the Blocker.  Without limiting the foregoing, Buyer 
shall pay and be solely responsible for all filing fees payable under the HSR Act. 

  
SECTION 12.3                   Entire Agreement.  This Agreement (including the schedules and exhibits hereto), the Confidentiality 

Agreement, and each other agreement, document, instrument or certificate contemplated hereby or to be executed in connection 
with the transactions contemplated hereby, represent the entire understanding and agreement among the parties hereto with respect 
to the subject matter hereof and thereof, and supersede all prior agreements among the parties respecting the transactions 
contemplated hereby.  The parties hereto have voluntarily agreed to define their rights, liabilities and obligations respecting the 
transactions contemplated hereby exclusively in contract pursuant to the express terms and provisions of this Agreement and the 
other agreements, documents, instruments and certificates contemplated hereby. 

  
SECTION 12.4                   Amendments and Waivers.  This Agreement can be amended, supplemented or changed, and any 

provision hereof can be waived, only by written instrument making specific reference to this Agreement signed by Buyer and the 
Representative.  No action taken pursuant to this Agreement, including any investigation by or on behalf of any party, shall be 
deemed to constitute a waiver by the party taking such action of compliance with any representation, warranty, covenant or 
agreement contained herein.  The waiver by any party hereto of a breach of any provision of this Agreement shall not operate or be 
construed as a further or continuing waiver of such breach or as a waiver of any other or subsequent breach.  No failure on the part 
of any party to exercise, and no delay in exercising, any right, power or remedy hereunder shall operate as a waiver thereof, nor 
shall any single or partial exercise of such right, power or remedy by such party preclude any other or further exercise thereof or the 
exercise of any other right, power or remedy. 

  
SECTION 12.5                   Governing Law.  All matters relating to the interpretation, construction, validity and enforcement of this 



Agreement, including all claims or causes of action (whether in contract or tort) that may be based upon, arise out of or relate to 
this Agreement, or the negotiation, execution or performance of this Agreement, or the transactions  
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contemplated hereby (including any claim or cause of action based upon, arising out of or related to any representation or warranty 
made in or in connection with this Agreement or as an inducement to enter into this Agreement), shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the domestic Laws of the State of Delaware without giving effect to any choice or conflict of law 
provision or rule (whether of the State of Delaware or any other jurisdiction) that would cause the application of Laws of any 
jurisdiction other than the State of Delaware. 
  

SECTION 12.6                   Jurisdiction and Venue.  Any litigation against any party to this Agreement arising out of or in any way 
relating to this Agreement shall be brought exclusively in the Court of Chancery of the State of Delaware (unless the Court of 
Chancery of the State of Delaware declines to accept jurisdiction over a particular matter, in which case, in any state or federal 
court within the State of Delaware located in New Castle County) (together with the appellate courts thereof, the “Chosen Courts”) 
and each of the parties hereby submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the Chosen Courts for the purpose of any such litigation.  
Each party irrevocably and unconditionally agrees not to assert (a) any objection which it may ever have to the laying of venue of 
any such litigation in any Chosen Court, (b) any claim that any such litigation brought in any Chosen Court has been brought in an 
inconvenient forum and (c) any claim that any Chosen Court does not have jurisdiction with respect to such litigation.  To the extent 
that service of process by mail is permitted by applicable Law, each party irrevocably consents to the service of process in any 
such litigation in such courts by the mailing of such process by registered or certified mail, postage prepaid, to such party at its 
address for notices provided for herein. 

  
SECTION 12.7                   Notices.  All notices and other communications under this Agreement shall be in writing and shall be 

deemed given (i) when delivered personally by hand (with written confirmation of receipt), (ii) when sent by facsimile or e-mail of a 
PDF document (with written confirmation of transmission) or (iii) one (1) Business Day following the day sent by overnight courier 
(with written confirmation of receipt), in each case to the parties at the following addresses (or to such other address as a party may 
have specified by notice given to the other parties pursuant to this provision): 

  
If to the Company prior to the Closing, to: 
  
Applegate Farms, LLC 
750 Rt. 202 South, Suite 300 
Bridgewater, NJ 08807-5530 
Attn:              Stephen M. McDonnell 
Fax:                    215-297-8615 
Email:       Stephen.McDonnell@applegatefarms.com 
  
with copies (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
  
Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP 
One New York Plaza 
New York, NY  10004 
Attn:              Steven J. Steinman 
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Fax:                    212-859-4000  
Email:       steven.steinman@friedfrank.com 
  
Ballard Spahr Andrews & Ingersoll, LLP 
1735 Market Street, 51st Floor 
Philadelphia, PA  19103-7599 



Attn:              Richard J. Braemer 
Fax:                    215-864-8899 
Email:       Braemer@ballardspahr.com 
  
If to the Blocker prior to the Closing, to: 
  
Applegate Investment Corporation 
c/o Swander Pace Capital 
550 Hills Drive, Suite 106 
Bedminster, NJ 07921 
Attn:              Andrew Richards and Rob DesMarais 
Fax:                    903-719-9311 
Email:       Andrew@spcap.com and Rob@spcap.com 
  
with copies (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
  
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
555 California Street, Suite 2700 
San Francisco, CA  94104 
Attn:              Stuart E. Casillas, P.C. 
Fax:                    415-439-1500 
Email:       casillas@kirkland.com 
  
SPC Partners IV, L.P. 
c/o Swander Pace Capital 
550 Hills Drive, Suite 106 
Bedminster NJ 07921 
Attn:              Andrew Richards and Rob DesMarais 
Fax:                    903-719-9311 
Email:       Andrew@spcap.com and Rob@spcap.com 
  
If to the Representative, to: 
  
Weiser, Inc. 
7248 Groveland Road 
Pipersville, PA 18947-1520 
Attn:              Stephen M. McDonnell 
Email:       stephen.mcdonnell2@icloud.com 
  
with copies (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
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Fried, Frank, Harris, Shriver & Jacobson LLP 
One New York Plaza 
New York, NY  10004 
Attn:              Steven J. Steinman 
Fax:                    212-859-4000  
Email:       steven.steinman@friedfrank.com 
  
Ballard Spahr Andrews & Ingersoll, LLP 
1735 Market Street, 51st Floor 
Philadelphia, PA  19103-7599 
Attn:              Richard J. Braemer 



Fax:                    215-864-8899  
Email:       Braemer@ballardspahr.com 
  
If to the Blocker Sellers, to: 
  
SPC Partners IV, L.P. 
c/o Swander Pace Capital 
550 Hills Drive, Suite 106 
Bedminster, NJ 07921 
Attn:              Andrew Richards and Rob DesMarais 
Fax:                    903-719-9311 
Email:       Andrew@spcap.com and Rob@spcap.com 
  
and 
  
K&E Investment Partners, L.P. 
c/o Swander Pace Capital 
550 Hills Drive, Suite 106 
Bedminster, NJ 07921 
Attn:              Andrew Richards and Rob DesMarais 
Fax:                    (903) 719-9311 
Email:       Andrew@spcap.com and Rob@spcap.com 
  
with copies (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
  
Kirkland & Ellis LLP 
555 California Street, Suite 2700 
San Francisco, CA  94104 
Attn:              Stuart E. Casillas, P.C. 
Fax:                    415-439-1500 
Email:       casillas@kirkland.com 
  
SPC Partners IV, L.P. 
c/o Swander Pace Capital 
550 Hills Drive, Suite 106 
Bedminster, NJ 07921 
Attn:              Andrew Richards and Rob DesMarais 
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Fax:                    903-719-9311 
Email:       Andrew@spcap.com and Rob@spcap.com 
  
If to Buyer and, post-Closing, the Company or the Blocker, to: 
  
Hormel Foods Corporation 
One Hormel Place 
Austin, Minnesota 55912 
Attn: Fred Halvin, Vice President Corporate Development 
Fax: (507) 437-5108 
Email: fdhalvin@hormel.com 
  
with copies (which shall not constitute notice) to: 
  



Hormel Foods Corporation 
One Hormel Place 
Austin, Minnesota 55912 
Attn: Legal Department 
Fax: (507) 437-5135 
Email: mwclausman@hormel.com 
  
Faegre Baker Daniels LLP 
2200 Wells Fargo Center 
90 South 7  Street 
Minneapolis, Minnesota 55402-3901 
Attn:              Michael A. Stanchfield 
Fax:                    (612) 776-1600 
Email:       mike.stanchfield@faegrebd.com 
  

SECTION 12.8                   Severability.  If any term or other provision of this Agreement is invalid, illegal or incapable of being 
enforced by any Law or public policy, all other terms or provisions of this Agreement shall nevertheless remain in full force and 
effect so long as the economic or legal substance of the transactions contemplated hereby is not affected in any manner materially 
adverse to any party.  Upon such determination that any term or other provision is invalid, illegal or incapable of being enforced, the 
parties hereto shall negotiate in good faith to modify this Agreement so as to effect the original intent of the parties as closely as 
possible in an acceptable manner in order that the transactions contemplated hereby are consummated as originally contemplated to 
the greatest extent possible. 

  
SECTION 12.9                   Binding Effect; Assignment; Third Party Beneficiaries.  This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure 

to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors and permitted assigns.  Except as contemplated by Section 8.7 
(Indemnification, Exculpation and Insurance) and for the Other Indemnified Persons (each of which provisions is intended to be 
for the benefit of the Persons referred to therein and may be enforced by any such Person), nothing in this Agreement shall create 
or be deemed to create any third party beneficiary rights in any Person not a party to this Agreement.  Notwithstanding anything 
herein to the  
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contrary, prior to the Closing, the Company shall have the right to enforce the rights of the Sellers to pursue damages in the event of 
Buyer’s breach of this Agreement.  In addition, the Representative shall have the right, but not the obligation, to enforce any rights 
of the Sellers under this Agreement.  No assignment of this Agreement or of any rights or obligations hereunder may be made by 
any party, directly or indirectly (by operation of law or otherwise), without the prior written consent of the other parties hereto, and 
any attempted assignment without the required consents shall be void. 
  

SECTION 12.10           Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of which will be 
deemed to be an original copy of this Agreement and all of which, when taken together, will be deemed to constitute one and the 
same agreement.  A signature delivered by facsimile or by electronic means intended to preserve the original graphic and pictorial 
appearance thereof shall be deemed to be an original signature. 

  
SECTION 12.11           Waiver of Jury Trial.  Each party hereto hereby waives to the fullest extent permitted by applicable Law 

any right it may have to a trial by jury in respect of any Proceeding directly or indirectly arising out of, under or in connection with 
this Agreement, any Company Documents, any Blocker Documents, any Seller Documents, any Buyer Documents or any 
transaction contemplated hereby or thereby.  Each party hereto (i) certifies that no representative, agent or attorney of any other 
party has represented, expressly or otherwise, that such other party would not, in the event of litigation, seek to enforce the 
foregoing waiver and (ii) acknowledges that it and the other parties hereto have been induced to enter into this Agreement and the 
other documents contemplated hereby, as applicable, by, among other things, the mutual waivers and certifications in this 
Section 12.11. 

  
SECTION 12.12           Representative. 

  
(a)                          Without any further act of any Seller, Weiser is hereby irrevocably appointed as the agent and attorney-in-

th



fact for each of the Sellers to act as the initial Representative under this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby 
in accordance with the terms of this Section 12.12.  The Representative may resign upon written notice to all Sellers.  The 
Representative may be changed or replaced by vote of a majority of Sellers (computed on the basis of their respective Pro Rata 
Portions) upon written notice to the Representative.  The Representative will immediately inform Buyer in the event of the 
Representative’s removal or resignation.  In the event of the resignation or removal of the Representative, a successor 
Representative reasonably satisfactory to Buyer shall thereafter be appointed by an instrument in writing signed by Buyer and such 
successor Representative. 

  
(b)                         The Representative is hereby authorized and empowered to act for, and on behalf of, any and all of the 

Sellers (with full power of substitution in the premises) in connection with such matters as are reasonably related to the transactions 
contemplated in this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby including: (i) to receive all payments owing to the 
Sellers under this Agreement, (ii) to terminate, amend, waive any provision of, or abandon, this Agreement or the other agreements 
contemplated hereby, (iii) to act as the representative of the Sellers to review and authorize all claims and disputes or question the 
accuracy thereof, (iv) to negotiate and compromise on their behalf with Buyer any claims asserted hereunder and to authorize 
payments to be made with respect thereto, (v) to take such  
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further actions as are authorized in this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby, and (vi) in general, do all things 
and perform all acts, including executing and delivering all agreements (including the Escrow Agreement and the other agreements 
contemplated in this Agreement), certificates, receipts, consents, elections, instructions and other documents contemplated by, or 
deemed by the Representative to be necessary or desirable in connection with, this Agreement, the other agreements contemplated 
hereby and the transactions contemplated herein or therein.  Buyer shall be entitled to rely on such appointment and to treat the 
Representative as the duly appointed attorney-in-fact of each Seller.  Notices given to the Representative in accordance with the 
provisions of this Agreement shall constitute notice to the Sellers for all purposes under this Agreement.  In all matters relating to 
this Section, the Representative will be the only party entitled to assert the rights of Sellers.  The Representative will have no power 
or authority to bind Buyer, and Buyer will not have any liability to any person for any act or omission by the Representative. 
  

(c)                          The appointment of the Representative is an agency coupled with an interest and is irrevocable and any 
action taken by the Representative pursuant to the authority granted in this Section 12.12 shall be effective and absolutely binding 
on each Seller notwithstanding any contrary action of or direction from such Seller.  The death or incapacity, or dissolution or other 
termination of existence, of any Seller shall not terminate the authority and agency of the Representative.  Buyer and any other party 
to any document contemplated by this Agreement in dealing with the Representative may conclusively and absolutely rely, without 
inquiry, upon any act, statement, action, representation, or decision of the Representative as being the binding acts of all Sellers or 
any of them, notwithstanding any communication from any Seller to the contrary (other than communication regarding the 
resignation or removal of the Representative pursuant to this Section). 

  
(d)                        The Representative shall not be liable to any Seller or any other Person (other than Buyer) with respect to 

any action taken or omitted to be taken by the Representative in its role as Representative under or in connection with this 
Agreement, unless such action or omission results from or arises out of willful misconduct or gross negligence on the part of the 
Representative, and the Representative shall not be liable to any Seller in the event that, in the exercise of its reasonable judgment, 
the Representative believes there will not be adequate resources available to cover potential costs and expenses to contest a claim 
made by Buyer.  Sellers shall be responsible to Buyer for any breach by the Representative of its obligations hereunder. 

  
(e)                          The Representative shall be indemnified from the Sellers for any and all expenses, charges and liabilities, 

including reasonable attorneys’ fees, incurred by the Representative in the performance or discharge of its duties pursuant to this 
Section 12.12 (the “Representative Expenses”).  In addition, the Representative shall be entitled to reimbursement from the 
Representative Expense Amount for the Representative Expenses. 

  
(f)                           As soon as practical following the later of (i) the date that is twenty-four (24) months after the Closing Date 

and (ii) the final resolution of all indemnification claims made under this Agreement that are outstanding as of the date that is twenty-
four (24) months after the Closing Date, the Representative shall pay or cause to be paid the unused portion of the 
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Representative Expense Amount (if any) to the Sellers by wire transfer of immediately available funds. 
  

SECTION 12.13   Legal Representation. 
  

(a)       In any dispute or Proceeding arising after the Closing under or in connection with this Agreement or any of 
the other agreements contemplated hereby, the parties agree that any of the Sellers shall have the right, at its election, to retain any 
Law Firm to represent such Seller in such matter, and Buyer and the Company (on behalf of themselves, their respective Affiliates, 
directors, managers, officers, employees and representatives and their respective successors and assigns) hereby irrevocably waive 
and consent to any such representation in any such matter. 

  
(b)      Each of the parties further agrees that all communications solely between any Law Firm and the Company or 

any Law Firm and any Seller in connection with this Agreement or any of the other agreements contemplated hereby, together with 
the attorney-client privilege related thereto (if any), the expectation of client confidence related thereto (if any) and all other rights to 
any evidentiary privilege related thereto, belong to such Seller, and shall not pass to or be claimed by the Company or any of its 
Affiliates. 

  
(c)       If the transactions contemplated by this Agreement and the other agreements contemplated hereby are 

consummated: 
  

(i)         the Company shall have no right of access to or control over any of the records of the Law Firms 
related to such transactions, which shall become the property of (and be controlled by) the Sellers, as applicable; and 

  
(ii)        it would be impracticable to remove from the records (including emails and other electronic files) of 

the Company any communications with or among any Law Firm, the Company and any Seller.  The Company and Buyer agree not 
to access, review or otherwise use, examine or rely upon such communications that may remain in the records of the Company, and 
the parties agree that no attorney-client privilege, attorney work product or other privilege or protection is waived or intended to be 
waived by allowing such material to remain in the files of the Company. 

  
(d)      Furthermore, in the event of a dispute between any of the Sellers, on the one hand, and the Company, on 

the other hand, arising out of or relating to any matter in which any Law Firm acted for them both, none of the attorney-client 
privilege, the expectation of client confidence or any other rights to any evidentiary privilege will protect from disclosure to the 
Sellers, as applicable, any information or documents developed or shared during the course of either Law Firm’s joint 
representation of the Sellers and the Company. 

  
SECTION 12.14   Performance. The parties hereto agree that irreparable damage would occur in the event that any of the 

provisions of this Agreement was not performed in accordance with its specific terms or was otherwise breached, and that 
monetary damages or legal remedies, even if available, would not be an adequate remedy therefor.  Therefore, it is accordingly 
agreed that, in addition to any other remedies, each party shall be entitled to equitable relief, including an injunction or injunctions, to 
prevent or restrain any breach or threatened breach of this 
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Agreement by any other party and to enforce specifically the terms and provisions of this Agreement to prevent breaches or 
threatened breaches of, or to enforce compliance with, the covenants and obligations of any other party, in the Chosen Courts, and 
appropriate injunctive relief (including any Order sought by the Company and/or the Representative to cause Buyer to perform its 
covenants and agreements contained in this Agreement) may be applied for and granted in connection therewith.  Each of the 
parties hereto hereby waives: (i) any defenses in any action for specific performance, including the defense that a remedy at law 
would be adequate; and (ii) any requirement to post a bond or other security as a prerequisite to obtaining equitable relief. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
  

HORMEL FOODS CORPORATION 
    
    
   

By:  /s/ JEFFREY M. ETTINGER 
Name:  Jeffrey M. Ettinger 
Title:  Chairman of the Board, President 

& Chief Executive Officer 

APPLEGATE FARMS, LLC 
    
   

    
By:  /s/ STEPHEN M. MCDONNELL 

Name:  STEPHEN M. MCDONNELL 
Title:  Founder / Chief Executive Officer 

    
      

/s/ ERIC MILLER 
ERIC MILLER 

      
      

/s/ LEAH PIRES 
LEAH PIRES 

      
      

/s/ KERRY COLLINS 
KERRY COLLINS 

      
      

/s/ NEIL LEINWAND 
NEIL LEINWAND 

      
      

/s/ VIVIAN CHANE 
VIVIAN CHANE 

    
   

    
WEISER, INC. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement as of the date first written above. 
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EXHIBIT 31.1 
  

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
  

    
By:  /s/ STEPHEN M. MCDONNELL 

Name:  STEPHEN M. MCDONNELL 
Title:  Chief Executive Officer 

    
    
    

/s/ STEPHEN M. MCDONNELL 
STEPHEN M. MCDONNELL 

SPC PARTNERS IV, L.P. 
    
   

    
By:  /s/ ANDREW RICHARDS 

Name:  ANDREW RICHARDS 
Title:  Managing Director 

    
    

K&E INVESTMENT PARTNERS, L.P. 
    
   

    
By:  /s/ MATTHEW STEINMETZ 

Name:  MATTHEW STEINMETZ 
Title:  Manager 

    
    

APPLEGATE INVESTMENT CORPORATION 
    
   

    
By:  /s/ ANDREW RICHARDS 

Name:  ANDREW RICHARDS 
Title:  Managing Director 

Section 3: EX-31.1 (EX-31.1) 



  
I, Jeffrey M. Ettinger, certify that: 
  
1.                                      I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Hormel Foods Corporation for the period ended April 26, 2015; 
  
2.                                      Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

  
3.                                      Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4.                                      The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 

  
a.          Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 

supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b.          Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
  

c.               Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  

d.              Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

  
5.                                      The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a.              All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
  
b.              Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal 

control over financial reporting. 
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EXHIBIT 31.2 
  

CERTIFICATION REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 
  
I, Jody H. Feragen, certify that: 
  
1.                                      I have reviewed this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q of Hormel Foods Corporation for the period ended April 26, 2015; 
  
2.                                      Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to 

make the statements made, in light of circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period 
covered by this report; 

  
3.                                      Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material 

respects the financial condition, results of operations, and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report; 
  
4.                                      The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as 

defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
 

Dated: June 5, 2015 Signed: /s/ JEFFREY M. ETTINGER 
JEFFREY M. ETTINGER 
Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive Officer, and 
Director 

Section 4: EX-31.2 (EX-31.2) 



15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have: 
  

a.          Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our 
supervision, to ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by 
others within those entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared; 

  
b.          Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our 

supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for 
external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles; 
  

c.               Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the 
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and 
  

d.              Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most 
recent fiscal quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely 
to materially affect, the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and 

  
5.                                      The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial 

reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent 
functions): 

  
a.              All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are 

reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and 
  
b.              Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal 

control over financial reporting. 
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EXHIBIT 32.1 
  

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350 

AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO 
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002 

  
  

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Hormel Foods Corporation (the “Company”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended April 26, 2015, as filed 
with the Securities and Exchange Commission (the “Report”), the undersigned hereby certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted 
pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that: 
  
  
(1)                                 The Report fully complies with the requirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and 
  
(2)                                 The information contained in the Report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the 

Company. 
  
  
  

Dated: June 5, 2015 Signed: /s/ JODY H. FERAGEN 
JODY H. FERAGEN 
Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Director 

Section 5: EX-32.1 (EX-32.1) 

Dated: June 5, 2015 /s/ JEFFREY M. ETTINGER 
JEFFREY M. ETTINGER 
Chairman of the Board, President, Chief Executive Officer, and 
Director 

    
    
    
    
Dated: June 5, 2015 /s/ JODY H. FERAGEN           

JODY H. FERAGEN 
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Executive Vice President, Chief Financial Officer, and Director 


